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DIRECTOR-GENERAL'S MESSAGE 

I am proud ro report the year has been marked 

by significant progress and achievement in the 

new Department's first full year of operation. 

The recommendations from the fijnctional 

review conducted in mid-1995 have been 

implemented and we are now well positioned to 

realise the Government's vision for the new 

organisation. 

Considerable time was spent during the year 

building on our recognised strengths by 

investing in our people, advancing technologies 

and introducing quality management systems to 

ensure we can offer to clients a broad mix of 

professional services and products which meet 

their needs. 

Following a series of planning workshops, our 

strategic plan. Vision 2001, was launched in 

April, establishing the framework for more 

detailed annual business plans. In the latter part 

of the year a number of staff participated as 

interdivisional teams in the development of our 

inaugural Corporate Plan. By year end, actions 

and targets necessary to implement the key 

objectives presented m rhe Strategic Plan had 

been identified. Following endorsement by the 

Minister the plan will be actioned in the first 

quarter of 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 . 

A Best Practice Program was announced in 

April as part of our commitment to ongoing 

process improvement and total quality service. 

This initiative will build on our past 

investments in quality assurance, and allow us 

to benchmark our performance against other 

world-class organisations. While feedback from 

recent client surveys has been positive and 

encouraging we recognise the need to 

continually measure our performance in rhe area 

of customer service and sansfaction. 

I am also pleased to report our financial 

performance for the year was excellent. 

Through strict budgetary controls and 

continued efficiencies we finished the year on a 

positive note. Overall turnover was marginally 

up on last year at $1.3 billion, while 

comparative operating costs were reduced by 

approximately $13 million. As an off-budget 

agency we continued to meet all our financial 

commitments under difficult economic 

circumstances. An operating surplus of $20,7 

million was achieved and provision for payment 

to Government of dividend and taxation 

equivalents totalled $14.5 million. A special 

dividend of $138.9 million was paid to the 

Government during the year from the sale and 

leaseback of the Department's vehicles to the 

Macquarie Bank ($102.9 million) and a capital 

resrrucrure ($36 million). 

Significant progress was made during the year 

in the development of whole of government 

policies, practices and guidelines for agency 

applicanon in information management and 

telecommunications. An IM&T 'blueprint' was 

being developed in partnership with agencies, 

and its release is expected in 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 . All chief 

execurive officers were linked electronically as 

the initial stage of a similar arrangement with 

their agencies. Work was well progressed on an 

IM&T policy and procedures manual for 

government agency guidance with its release 

expected in the first quarter of 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 . 

The Department continued to assist the 

Government and its agencies on a range of 

complex asset management issues by identifying 

alternative service outcomes through 'non-build' 

solutions. A draft: master plan addressing future 

government accommodation requirements was 

developed for submission ro Cabinet in the first 

quarter of 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 . Once approved, it will be 

used to straregically manage the State's 

1.1 million square metres of office accommodation. 

We continued to take a leading role in 

establishing the Government as Australia's 

pacesetter in environmental design, energy 
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efficiency and economically sustainable 

development, with the development of a 

comprehensive suite of environmental policies 

to be applied across the construction industry 

and in whole of government purchasing. 

Implementation of these guidelines will 

commence over the coming months, in 

consultation with affected agencies and industry 

stakeholders. 

During the year, a number of significant 

personnel changes occurred, including the 

transfer in October of the then Director-

General Ron Christie to the Roads and Traffic 

Authority and my subsequent appointment to 

the position in early December. On behalf of 

the Department, 1 would like to extend my 

appreciation ro Mr Christie for his valued 

direction and service to the former N S W 

Public Works and to the new organisation m 

the first SIX months from its formation. I would 

also like to acknowledge the stewardship of the 

Hon Michael Knight as our Minister up until 

December, when he handed over to rhe Hon 

Carl Scully who, since that time, has given us 

strong support and leadership. 

Finally, a special thanks to staff who, despite 

the major changes and disruptions that occurred 

through the year, have remained enrhusiastic, 

dedicated and continued to make an invaluable 

contribution to our future direction. 

Dick Persson 

Director-General 
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THE YEAR IN SUMMARY 

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND 
ACHIEVEMENTS 

The 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 year saw the continued 

implementation of management strategies 

designed to enhance the performance of the 

Department in delivering qualiry services to the 

Government and its agencies. 

Staffing levels at 30 June were 2423. Natural 

attrition and voluntary redundancies reduced 

1 9 9 4 / 9 5 staff numbers by eight per cent. Staff 

training focused on key result areas of client 

service, quality management and business 

practices. The Department's salaried Enterprise 

Agreement was registered during the year, A 

number of projects received prestige external 

awards, in recognition of the high standard of 

service provided to clients. 

Four graduates were selected for the Graduate 

Development Scheme, bringing to 12 the total 

number of participants currently in the two-year 

program. The Women's Network was re-aligned 

with the Spokeswomen's Program and an 

International Women's Day lunch for sraff was 

hosted by the Director-General. 

Improved Financial Performance 

A strong financial result for the first full year of 

operations was achieved despite budgetary 

constraints and the internal restructuring of a 

number ot majot client organisations during the 

year. Turnover for the year was $1.3 billion, with 

approximately $733 million expended on behalf 

of clients. Operating costs were reduced by 

approximately $13 million and the Department 

paid company tax equivalents of $7.4 million and 

dividends of $7.1 million to Treasury. 

Planning InirioHves 

Corporate planning included the development and 

launch of the Department's inaugural five year 

Strategic Plan, Vision 2001, and the development 

of the 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 Corporate Plan. To align the 

whole organisation wirh Vision 2001 a Corporate 

Best Practice Plan was initiated, focusing on 

improvements to the organisation's core processes. 

The Occupational Health and Safety Manual was 

revised and reissued during the year to better 

reflect all aspects of the Department's activities. 

Whole of Government Focus 

Key strategic activities undertaken on a whole of 

government basis included: 

• chairing rhe State Contracts Control Board 

• chairing the Construction Policy Steering Committee 

• developing a new Code of Practice and Code of 

Tendering for the construction industry 

• developing a draft Master Plan for government 

accommodation 

• developing an Information Management and 

Telecommunications 'Blueprint' 

• developing an Information Technology and 

Telecommunications Policy and Procedures 

Manual lor government agencies 

" completing a Chief Executive Officers' 

electronic messaging network 

• achieving communication carrier rebarcs to 

Government ot $26 million 

• achieving communication discounts to clients of 

$30 million 

• launching a new Contractor Accreditation Scheme 

for government contracts over $ 2 0 million 

• expanding and improving the Government 

Radio Network service 

" fonning a management team to develop a 

Government Procurement Policy, 

Delivery of Infrastructure Projects 

The Department let 307 major construction 
contracts during the year, and completed a range 
of significant infrastructure projects, including the 
New Children's Hospital, the Sydney 
Hospital/Sydney Eye Hospital redevelopment 
and Enfield Marshalling Yards. A total of 48 
major educational projects were completed, 
including a new high school at Cecil Park and 7 
new or replacement primary schools. All projects 
were completed within clients' approved budgets. 
A further three projects were "partnered' following 
the success in recent years of this technique of 
promoting teamwork and closer communication 
between participants in construction contracts. 

Projects continuing on behalf of clients include: 

• Metropolitan Remand and Reception Centre 

• Central 2000 redevelopment 

• Honeysuckle redevelopment 
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• Hunter Sewerage Project 

• Sydney Opera House Upgrade Program 

• City West redevelopment, including the 

Australian Technology Park, and 

• a range oi educational, health, law and order and 

water supply and sewerage projects. 

The Department continued to manage the 

operations of the South West Tablelands and 

Fish River Water Supply Schemes. Their activities 

arc reported in separate annual reports. 

Better Efficiencies in Property 
Management 
The Department's property management and 

strategic planning service continued to play a key 

role in the management of the Government's 

property asjtets. Achievements included: 

• a 99-ye3r lease for the State Office Block and 

disposal of the Ritz-Carlton site and 

Wentworth Chambers 

• 66.{XX) square metres of government office 
space .secured at competitive rentals 

• annual savmgs of $2.3 million in rentals for clients 

• selection of a preferred tenderer for the Walsh 
Bay redevelopment project 

• selection of a shortlist of tenderers for the 
Eastern Creek Raceway/Recn property project. 

Conservation of Heritage Assets 
Restor.uioii of stonework continued under the 

Minister's Program with $3,95 million expended 

on projects at the Australian Museum. 

Government House and other sites. A 'make-safe' 

program was commenced to review the condition 

of government-owned sandstone buildings. Under 

a special conservation grant from Treasury, work 

continued to restore the historic Coffs Harbour 

Jetty to its I 9 I 4 configuration. 

Response to Natural Disasters 
Under the Natural Disaster Relief Program, 

$1,736 million was provided to 54 councils and 

authorities for emergency works and repairs to 

public assets, 

Improved Access to Government 
The Department commenced the development of 

an Internet policy and guidelines for whole of 

government use and progressed a Government 

home page to link to each agency. The 

Department went live on the Internet during the 

vear with a regularly updated home page. 

The Government Information Service assisted 

with more than I25,tXK) public enquiries and 

published the 1995 N S W Government Directory. 

Consolidating Client Relationships 

Memorandums of Understanding and Service 

Agreements were established with 11 major clients 

and a ftirther six draft documents were prepared. 

During a visit to Sydney by a South African 

Public Works Department delegation a 

Declaration of the Establishment of a Closer 

Relationship was signed between the two 

organisations. 

Savings across Government 

Clients expended $1.3 billion using 300 period 

contracts managed by N S W Supply. Period 

contracts for electromedical equipment saved $2 

million, With $16.5 million spent on orders. The 

new Air Travel contract saved agencies 

approximately $2.8 million over the year. 

The sale and leaseback of vehicles allowed $102.9 

million in capital to be returned to Treasury. 

The Government Advertising Agency placed 

22,000 advertisements for clients, achieving $10 

million in savings. 

Purchases using Information Technology Service 

contracts exceeded $198 million during the year, 

and two Government Selected Application 

Systems computer software contracts were 

finalised for use by government agencies. 

Q Stores increased its overall client base, resulting 
in sales of $51.08 million, an increase of 32 per 
cent over last year. 

Minimising Environmental Impact 

Five new environmental policies were developed, 

reflecting the Department's commitment to the 

protection and enhancement of the environment. 

In addition, a new environmental purchasing 

policy was announced which will lead to N S W 

being the first State to set environmental 

performance as a key factor in government 

purchasing. 
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CHARTER AND ROLE 

'The Government's mandate for the organisation 

T h e Government created the Department to 

provide a sharper focus o n service dehvery, reduce 

waste and eliminate duplication. As a result, one 

o f our strengths is the tremendous breadth and 

diversity o f our work, ranging from developing 

and implementing whole o f government policies 

to providing cUent f o a i s e d commercial services. 

Our charter involves using a combinarion o f these 

skills and experience to harness this diversity to 

meet our clients' needs by developing creative 

solutions for a changing world. T h e main areas in 

which we will achieve our objectives are 

information technology and telecommunications, 

total asset management, procurement and supply 

o f a wide range o f goods and services, 

environmentally sensitive design, the strategic 

management o f government property assets, and 

in the building and construction industry. 

SERVICE PROVIDER 

T o provide strategically selected commercial and 

professional services to the N e w South Wales 

Government. 

IMPARTIAL ADVISER 

T o provide genuine impartial advice and 

innovarive solutions to meet rhe needs of other 

public sector agencies. 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

T o provide leadership in using 11 & I to 

transform the way services are deliveted and 

reduce the cost of delivering 5er\'ices to clients, 

ENVIRONMENT 

T o be a pacesetter in environmental design, energy 

efficiency and ecologically sustainable 

development. 

PROCUREMENT 

T o provide expert procurement services and 

advice, harnessing the Government's purchasing 

power to benefit the people o f N e w South Wales . 

INDUSTRY/GOVERNMENT INTERFACE 

T o manage the commercial interface between 

industry and government agencies, especially those 

which d o not have the relevant skills in-house. 

BUILDING AND CONSTRUQION 
INDUSTRY 

T o provide leadership by setting and maintaining 

standards focusing o n probity, competit iveness, 

sound eco-management and use o f technology. 

COMMERCIAL FOCUS 

T o strengthen the commercial focus o f rhe 

organisation and its off-budget status while 

ensuring the provision o f competit ive services to 

clients. 

OUR A^RKET 

T o maximise the benefits to Government by 

providing services to the public and private sectors 

in Ausrralia and overseas. 
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THE ORGANISATION 

EXECUTIVE TEAM AT 30 JUNE 1996 

D P E R S S O N , BA 

I )i rector-General 

R J EAGLE. BE, FIE Aust 

Director. Commercial Business Divis ion 

A G R I F F I N . BSc (Civil Eng) . Grad D i p A d m m , 

MIE (Aust ) 

Director. Policy Divis ion 

M H A N N O N . BE. LGE. M I E (Aust ) 

Director, Operations Divis ion and Acting 

Director, Client Service Divis ion 

I LEEK. 

Director, Information Techno logy and 

Telecommunicat ions Divis ion 

D L E W I S . BBus. M B A 

Director. Finance and Management Services 

Divis ion 

S M U D G E . F I N A 

Acting Manager. Corporate Finance 

A R E N O U F . BArch. M A I M 

Manager, Strategy Uni t 

DEPARTURES & ORGANISATIONAL 
CHANGES 

Mr R Christie. Director-General, transferred to 

the Roads and Traffic Authority on 13 October 

M r L Kelly, Act ing Director, State Projects 

resigned on 16 August 

Mr C Poulter, Deputy Director, Client Service 

Divis ion resigned on 14 N o v e m b e r 

Mr D Persson was appointed Director-General 

on 4 December 

Mr A Griffin was appointed Director. Policy 

Divis ion on 13 December 

Mr M Hannon was appointed Director, 

Operations Divis ion o n 15 December 

Mr R T o u t . Acting Director. Information 

Technology and Telecommunicat ions Div is ion 

resigned on 2 6 February 

Mr M Lilley. Acting Director, Corporate 

Services Div is ion resigned o n 2 7 March 

Mr R Eagle was appointed Director, 

Commercial Business Divis ion o n I April 

Mr B Hunt . Acting Director, Client Service 

Divis ion resigned o n 10 April 

Mr P Scarlett, Manager. Corporate Finance, 

transferred to the Roads and Traffic Authorit)' 

on 3 May 

M r D Lewis was appointed Director, Finance 

and Management Services Divis ion on 6 May 

Mr J Leek was appointed Director. Information 

Technology and Telecommunicat ions Divis ion 

o n 2 0 May. 

T h e Corporate Support Divis ion was renamed 

Finance and Management Services Divis ion in 

Augu.st. 

T h e Riverina and Western Regions were merged 

into a new Riverina-Western Region on 2 9 

September with the regional office located in 

Bathurst. 
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE 

MINISTER 

DIREaOR-GENERAL 

OPERATIONS 1 CLIENT SERVICE | 

DIVISION 1 DIVISION 1 

Project Management Marketing 

Project Risk Whole-of-Goveniment 

Management Knowledge & Advice 

Regional Program Development & 

Management Management of 

Client Partnerships 
Contract 

Client Partnerships 

Management Strategic TAM 

Planning Services: 
Design Management o 

- Built & Natural 
Constmction - Property & 

Management Accomodation 

Maintenance Program 

Management Management 

Asset Planning Solutions 

Public Buildings 
Development 

Program Development 

Management 
Natural Disaster 

Relief Program Infrastmcmre & 

Property 

Development 

Process Improvement 

Services 

Project Risk 

Management 

STRATEGY UNIT 

INTERNAL AUC 

POLICY 
DIVISION 

Constmction 

Industry Policy 

Risk Management 

Policies & Processes 

Total Asset 

Management Policy 

Contract Dispute 

Resolution 

Industiy Relations 

Policy 

Industry Quality 

Policy & Systems 

Chair: 
- Constmction Policy 

Steering Committee, 

and 

- State Contracts 

Control Board 

Procurement Policy 

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY & 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
DIVISION 

Whole-of-Govemmcn[ 

IT&T Policy 

Information 

Management Strategy 

Business Systems 

Strategy 

Communications 

Strategy 

Operations & 

Contracts 

COMMERCIAL 
BUSINESS 
DIVISION 

10 

Architecmral, 
Mechanical, Electrical 
& Civil Services 
- pre-design 
- design 
- document 
- asset management 

CADD/Survey/QS 

Water Services Design 
& Consulting 

Intemational Work 

Manly Hydraulics 
Laboratory 

Government Printing 
Service 

Government 
Information Service 

Government 
Advertising 

State Mail Service 

NSW Supply Service: 
- stores & stationery 
- infomiation 

technology 
- motor vehicles 

State Property: 
- property management 

(including disposal) 
- project land 

management 
- facilities planning 
- energy management 

FINANCE AND 
MANAGEMENT 

SERVICES DIVISION! 

Personnel 

Administration 

Corporate Relations 

Finance 

Information Services 

Legal Services 

Ministerial and 

Executive Support 
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Vision Mission Values 

VISION MISSION VALUES 

I 

( 
What we will UCnteVe wUhinfive years 

T o establish N e w S o u t h Wales as a wor ld leader in p rov id ing g o v e r n m e n t services. 

Hi ow we wi ill g e t t h e r e ^ 

By de l ive r ing m a x i m u m benef i t t o t h e c o m m u n i t y o n b e h a l f o f t h e N S W 

G o v e r n m e n t t h r o u g h t h e p r o v i s i o n o f excep t i ona l va lue a d d e d services in : 

• I n f o r m a t i o n t e c h n o l o g y a n d t e l e c o m m u n i c a t i o n s 

• Asse t m a n a g e m e n t , in f i -as t ruc ture a n d p r o c u r e m e n t 

• W h o l e o f g o v e r n m e n t po l i cy a n d se rv ice del ivery. 

^ W e v a l u e . . . 

St(t0^- t h e i r c rea t iv i ty a n d c o m m i t m e n t . 

Teamwork t o e n s u r e t h e b e s t s o l u t i o n s for o u r c l i en t s . 

Integrity in a l l o u r dea l ings w i t h o u r c l ien ts , co l leagues a n d s u p p l i 

Client service - b o t h i n t e r n a l a n d e x t e r n a l . 

Innovation t o e n s u r e b e t t e r s o l u t i o n s for a c h a n g i n g wor ld . 

lers. 

11 



Our Key Object ives 

OUR KEY OBJECTIVES 

Effective & strategic management of the Staters physical assets & infrastructure. 

t 

Significantly hetter, faster^ more comprehensive and. cheaper services 
aeries the whole of Government. 

ixinmm benefits using the Government's mnhasinp power 

Establish the NSW Government as Australia's pacesetter in environmental 
design^ energy efficiency and ecologically sustainable development 

Competitive business services that satisfy client needs. 

Recognition as the best performing public sector organisation in New South Wales. 

12 



o b j e c t i v e 1 

Effective & strategic 
management 

of the Staters physical assets and infrastructure. 

TOTAL ASSET MANAGEMENT 

The Department has a key role for Government in 

tlie development and implementation of total asset 

management (TAM) policies and procedures for 

application across all N S W government agencies. 

In recent years total asset management has been 

mstrumcntal in eftcctmg a substantial cultural 

shift in the way agencies manage public 

mfrastructurc through all phases - specifying the 

need, procurement, operation and disposal. This 

includes the redirection from the provision of 

.services being highly dependent on capita! 

expenditure and asset creation to an investment 

regime where innovative service strategies and 

alternative service options arc an integral 

component of the planning process. 

The Department's Total Asset Management 

Manual continued to serve as the benchmark of 

best practice for the management of assets of 

governments throughout Australia. 

During the year updated Heritage Asset 

Management Guidelines were released on the 

long-term management of heritage a.ssets as part of 

the broader asset management policies and 

procedures of the N S W public sector. These 

guidelines enable agencies ro take a proactive 

approach in their management of heritage issues, 

and ensure they apply sound asset management 

practices to their heritage assets. 

State Projects' As,set Management Unit continued 

to help government clients plan their asset 

strategies for infrastructure, with a particular 

emphasis on local government. Staff evaluated 

how clients' service requirements are being met by 

non-a,ssct and asset solutions. 

BUILDING INDUSTRY REFORM 

Code of Practice & Code of Tendering 

The Government's Code of Practice and Code of 

Tendering for the construction industry are 

pivotal elements of the Government's reform 

program. They establish principles and standards 

of behaviour which must be observed by any 

contractor, subcontractor, consultant or supplier 

wishing to do business with the Government, or 

who may work on government projects. 

Between May and July 1995 the Construction 

Policy Steering Committee, chaired by DPWS, 

undertook a two stage consultation process with 

the Labor Council, unions, relevant employers, 

industry associations and contractors to develop a 

new Code of Practice. 

A further round of consultation with the industry 

parties was finalised in early April 1996. 

The new code will be more robust and will provide 

direaion to contraaors, subcontraaors, consultants, 

suppliers, unions, employer and industry associations 

on what the Government expects in tendering for 

government work, workplace reform, occupational 

health, safetj' and rehabilitation and industrial 

relations. Also, this new code has a wider scope & 

embraces unions, employers and industry 

associations. The code is scheduled tor release in the 

first quarter of 1996/97. 13 
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Workplace Reform 

Workplace reform initiatives, which aim to 

achieve far-reaching changes in the construction 

industry culture are being trialed on a number of 

major DPWS project managed works. 

Improving Skills 

DPWS is encouraging and facilitating the 

establishment of skills centres at the Liverpool 

and Canterbury Hospitals projects. The project-

based learning centres offer opportunities for 

project personnel to broaden their skills and 

enhance their career development. 

Encouraging Contractor Best Practice 

In August a new Contraaor Accreditation Scheme 

was launched to encourage and accelerate reform 

in rhe construction indusrry by ensuring 

contractors who were able to demonstrate the 

highest level of performance and reliability have 

increased opportunities to tender on projects. 

Contractors tendering for contracts reserved under 

the scheme and valued over $20 million must be 

able to demonstrate a record of implementation of 

best practice in workplace reform. The reforms 

will provide benefits tor clients, with accredited 

contractors committed to achieving client 

satisfaction by being client-focused and by 

providing quality products. The first contract 

under the new scheme is scheduled to be let in the 

second quarter of 1996 /97 . The new Code of 

Practice also remforccs the priority to be given to 

workplace reform, occupational health, safety and 

rehabilitation, framing and skill formation by ihc 

Government over the coming years. 

Consultant Management 

A major revision to the Consultant Management 

Manual was issued in August 1995. The 

significant upgrades included: 

• amendment for payment by electronic transfer 

• amendment to quality system procedures 

• expansion of guide notes for the preparation of 

the brief. 

A framing program on rhe Consultant 

Management Manual was developed and delivered 

ro 166 staff between April and June. A 'help desk' 

for staff enquiries on consultant matters was 

established. 

The 'two envelope' procurement sysrem is under 

development for the procurement of consultant 

services. This system splits the proposal mto two 

envelopes - one containing all price information, 

the other non-price information - thereby 

eliminating any perception of bias towards the 

cheapest price during the assessment. TTiis system 

is being trialed on a Department of Health 

project. 

Partnering 

Partnering is a formal management technique rhat 

promotes teamwork and communication between 

,)|] participants ot a contract, with an aim of early 

problem resolution, dispute avoidance and a more 

effective and efficient delivery of projects. 

The promotion and trialing of partnering 

continued to be carried out on a number of public 

sector projects with three new projects 

commenced during the year, bringing the total 

number of partnered projects to twenty-nine. 

A review of the first 10 completed departmental 

partnered projects compared to a similar number 

of non-partnered projects has highlighrcd the 

effectiveness of the partnering process, including 

reduced disputarion and reduced project cost 

growth. This review has resulted in a revised 

strategy by the Construction Policy Steering 

Committee that 40 per cent of all projects wirhin 

the N S W Government's overall capital program, 

which have a value of $5 million and above, are to 

be partnered from 1996 on. 

CONSTRUaiON INDUSTRY 
FORECASTING 

During the year, an economic forecasring model 

was established to predict future levels of activity 

in the construction industry' to assist government 

agencies and Treasury in formulating budget 

policies in respect of capital works. TTie model 

has forecast that the industry will peak at around 

S I 8 billion m I 9 9 8 / I 9 9 9 . The Department is 

developing a 'Green Paper' on opportunities and 



iliallcngcs in rhc lead up to tlic year 2 0 0 0 . TTie 

paper will be released for public discussion and 

comment in the first half o f 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 . 

NEW CONTRAaS DEVELOPED 

Century 21 Contract 

During the year, a new General Condit ions o f 

Contract for architectural and engineering 

contracts over $ 5 0 0 , 0 0 0 was being developed. 

T h e new contract ( to be known as a C 2 I 

contract) is intended to complement and reinforce 

the wider industry reform agenda, especially 

cooperative contracting. It is planned to release 

the final version o f the contract in the second 

quarter o f 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 . 

New Minor Works Contract 

A new flowchart Minor W o r k s and Services 

contract is being developed by the Department tor 

projects up to $ 5 0 0 , 0 0 0 . T h e format provides a 

simpler fonn ot contract tor contractors and is 

currently being trialed on a project. It is scheduled 

for general release in late 1996 . 

CAPITAL PROJECT PROCUREMENT 
MANUAL (CPPM) 

Revision of the Contractor Reporting Guidelines, 

as contained in the Capital Project Procurement 

M.iiUKil included the development o f a new policy 

covering exchange o f information between 

government agencies on the performance o f 

contractors and consultants on government 

projects, 

STRATEGIC VISION FOR THE 
CONSTRUaiON INDUSTRY 

The Department ot Public W o r k s and Services 

hosted a workshop in November entitled 

'Strategic V i s i o n for the Construction Industry'. 

Participating in the workshop were representatives 

from a broad cross-section o f the construction 

industry, including clients, contractors, 

consultants, subcontractors, academics and 

unions. 

The vision generated through the workshop 

focused on a construction industry which is able 

to efficiently meet a forecast increased workload. 

A major component o f the strategy was the 

encouragement o f best practice contractors who 

would develop, trial and refine improvements over 

a number o f selected projects. 

SECURITY OF PAYMENT 

T h e Department o f Public W o r k s and Services 

hosted an industry forum on behalf o f the 

Nat ional Public W o r k s Council ( N P W C ) and 

Australian Construction Industry Council o n 

security o f payment in May. T h e forum was part 

o f the N P W C initiative to develop a c o m m o n set 

o f principles and strategies for adoption by all 

Australian jurisdictions. 

A review is being undertaken to identify measures 

on security o f payment that will address the 

underlying structural causes o f problems in this 

area. It is proposed to release a 'Green Paper' for 

industry comment in the first half o f 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 . 

SUMMARY OF TENDER & CONTRACHNG PERFORMANCE ACnVFTlES 

Board o f Advice and Reference 2 0 1 .submissions received 

Consultant Proposal Review Committee 19 submissions received 

Tenders closed in Tenders Section 3 0 4 for works over $ 2 5 0 , 0 0 0 

Bui ldup Contractor Registration 4 4 for $ 0 . 5 M to $ 3 M 

2 7 for $ 3 M to $ 6 M 

19 for $ 6 M and above 

Total Consultant Registration 6 3 2 

Major Contracts Awarded 3 0 7 for works over $ 2 5 0 , 0 0 0 

Selection Committee (Selective Tenders) 9 3 selective tenders 

Consultant Selection Committee 5 6 panel selections 

Contractor/Consultant Review 18 contractors/consultants on list 
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SPECIALIST SERVICES 

DPWS' Strategic Services embrace value 

management workshops, training, research, advice 

on pohcy and practice, partnering workshops, 

strategic planning workshops and design reviews. 

Workshop services are generally tailored toward 

capital works projects at the strategic or concept 

stage of a project, but the methodology has been 

successfully adopted to policy and system 

development. 

The benefits of a facilitated workshop at the 

strategic stage of a project involving multi-

stakeholder participation are; 

• greater clariry and agreement to objectives and 

project focus 

• examination ot non-build solutions and options 

• sharpened focus for project planning 

• the considered option range. 

Workshop services were provided during the year 

for various public and private sector clients, 

including: 

• Roads and Traffic Authority 

• Sydney Water Corporation 

• Department of Land and Water Conservation 

' Department of Corrective Services 

' N S W TAPE Commission. 

DPWS carried out over 60 value management 

studies and facilitated workshops, with more than 

20 per cent of these conducted for interstate 

clients or private sector project managers. DPWS 

has been active in developing the total asset 

management (TAM) framework to help client 

agencies implement the Government's policies in 

this area. 

An interactive computer program. InierTAM, was 

developed to allow users to explore the 

philosophy of total asset management and related 

DPWS services at their own speed. ItiUrTAM can 

be readily adapted to a client's business and used 

as a training tool. DPWS has developed models 

to enable clients ro clarify the methodologv' most 

appropriate to their individual agency 

requirements. 

Through an association with the University of 

Canberra, DPWS was active in developing the 

Strategic Asset Planning course module of the 

Graduate Certificate in Strategic Asset 

Management. The Graduate Certificate provides a 

theorerical and practical underpinning for the 

TAM framework and a training opportunity for 

N S W Government staff and others in strategic 

asset management. 

PROJEQ AND PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 
ADVICE 

One of the Department's key roles is to provide 

the best available professional advice to the 

Government and agencies on all matters related to 

the strategic management of property and built 

assets. 

DPWS aims to ensure that property assets are 

managed in a low-risk and cost-effective manner, 

giving the community real value in terms of social 

and economic benefits from government property 

development and infrastructure programs. 

D P W S services the Government in a number o f 

areas, including: 

Property Development 

DPWS provides professional project management 

of high profile projects on behalf of the 

Government, managing State building and 

property projects which are significant because of 

size, complexity or political sensitivity. 

During the year, D P W S managed a range of 

propcrtv development projects including the $350 

million Walsh Bay redevelopment. Eastern Creek 

Raceway and adjoining Recn property and 

Darling Harbour Berths 9 and 10. With Walsh 

Bay to undergo a major redevelopment over rhe 

next four years, D P W S managed the process of 

calling for expressions of interest (EOI) from the 

private sector, evaluation of the EOI, evaluation 

of the three shortlisted developers and ultimately 

the selection of the preferred tenderer in February. 

Strategic Planning 

The Government currently occupies I.l million 

square metres of accommodation across the State 
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at .111 annual cost of approximately $ 2 0 0 mill ion. 

By using strategic facility planning competit ive 

strategies arc being developed and implemented to 

reduce the Government's exposure ro recurrent 

expenditure through the realignment o f 

government accommodat ion to present and future 

agency needs. 

W o r k continued on a number o f regional and 

agency strategies, which'are to be combined with 

the strategic accommodation master plan. T h i s 

plan will identify agencies and regions where 

significant occupancy costs can be saved through 

rhe amalgamation o f agencies, reduction m floor 

space per employee and enhanced work practices 

and technology improvements. 

During the year the Department was successful in 

achieving significant savings for a number o f 

clients. A four-year lease o n behalf o f a 

g o v t m m e n t agency resulted in an annual saving o f 

$ 5 0 0 , 0 0 0 for the client by applying professional 

knowledge o f market conditions, client criteria 

and negotiating skills. D P W S also negotiated a 

10-year lease in new premises for a client at the 

same cost as a four-year lease in the client's 

existing building. Other projects undertaken 

during the year included planning office 

accommodat ion for the Sydney Organising 

Committee for the Olympic Games, the 

Departments o f Industrial Relations, State and 

Regional Development , Land and Water 

Conservation and the Crown Solicitor. 

T h e Department joined an international group of 

facility management practitioners during the year 

committed to 'advancing global best practice in 

the design and management o f the workplace'. 

T h e objective o f the group, 'TTie Workplace 

Forum', is to identity the contribution o f 

workplace infrastructure to enhancing business 

performance. This is particularly relevant to 

( .jovcmment given the current trend towards 

measuring the performance o f physical resources, 

such as office accommodation, in supporting 

service delivery aims. TTie forum will exchange 

information and experiences which support 

leading-edge research. 

Infrastructure Partnerships 

In an era o f capital conservation across 

government, alternative solutions for delivering 

necessary government infrastructure is vital. 

D P W S facilitates private sector involvement in 

public infrastructure projects and services, 

including strategic assessment, appraisal, calls for 

proposals, agreement negotiation, delivery and 

concession management. 

During the year a key focus for Infrastructure 

Partnership Services was the strategic assessment 

of opportunities for agencies to achieve value 

added services from their existing assets or 

through new developments. Projects included 

Waverley development sites for the Department 

o f Communi ty Services, Rozel lc Hospi ta l Site 

Strategic Management Study for the Department 

o f Health. M i n d a / M i n a l i sites for Department o f 

Corrective Services. Sydney Tourist 

Accommodat ion Sites Study for Tourism N S W 

and the Broken Hil l Education Facility and 

Mining Museum for the Line o f Lode 

Association. 

Key projects for which appraisals were imdertakcn 

to establish the commercial viability for the 

private sector participation m the provision o f 

intrastnicturc included the N o I Fire Station in 

Castlereagh Street, Joint Authorities Facility, 

N e l s o n Bay and Bega Shire Sewerage 

Development. 

Private sector submissions were sought to develop 

the heritage Post Office Parcels Building and to 

provide for a commercial development as part o f 

Central Station redevelopment project for the 

State Rail Authority. 

The provision, including fimding, o f onshore 

commercial facilities, safe marina access by private 

developers was completed at Coffs Harbour. T h e 

developer now manages the facilities and the 

marina under a long term lease. 

T h e Infrastructure Partnerships Implementation 

Guidelines were released in March to help 

agencies implement the Government's p»olicies on 

private sector provision o f infrastructure/services. 
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The Guidelines were developed in consultation 

with Treasury, the Deparrment of State and 

Regional Development, the Audit Office and the 

Independent Commission Against Corruprion. 

TTiey provide strategic direction in issues 

associated with private sector participation in 

projects, and complement the Government's 

Guidelines for Private Sector Participation in the 

Provision of Public Infrastructure (1995), 

In response to industry inquiries, DPWS 

established the Infrastructure Partnerships 

Directory in March to provide an industry 

network to encourage and facilitate participation 

in infrastructure parrnerships projects. 

The database is a resource for contractors wishing 

to identify prospective consortium partners for 

infrastructure parrnership projects. Financial 

feasibility models have been developed for 

projects to identify income and expenditure 

streams for development projects and to provide a 

basis for benchmarking private sector submissions. 

Property Services and Disposals 

The Department provides a property disposal and 

consultancy service on behalf of government 

agencies, utilising a wide range of skills, including 

property development, valuation and plannmg. 

DPWS acts as project director for agencies, 

providing srraregic direction in activities, 

including development strategy, programming, 

appointment of subconsultants and supervision of 

a project to its successful conclusion. 

Achievements during the year included the 

disposal of the State Office Block site and 

building o n a 99-year lease. The Government 

accepted an unconditional tender for $69 million, 

which was abour 4 0 per cent more than the 

valuation. Other Sydney CBD properties in the 

year's disposal program included the Ritz-Carlton 

site, the St. James Building and Wentworth 

Chambers. 

DPWS was commissioned by Rail Estate to 

renovate and sell I I I residential units in the 

Chullora Housing Estate. To make the estate self-

handing and to promote an orderly rate of sales, 

DPWS subdivided the estate into 2 4 lots, 

comprising 15 blocks of flats, five townhouses 

and four vacant blocks of land. The sales program 

began in March 1994 and concluded in June 

1996 with a total revenue of $9.2 million realised. 

During the year proposals to occupy 65,919 

square metres of office space were approved, 

affecting 3660 employees, at an annual rent of 

$ 15,160,577. Annual savings of $2.3 million 

were achieved through more competitive rentals 

and better space utilisation. TTie average space 

utilisation rate achieved through these changes was 

18 square metres per person. 

A major study into Sydney CBD office space 

with leases expiring before 1999 identified all 

opportunities to optimise space use and to 

negotiate lower renrals. TTie next stage of the 

project will assess the costs and benefits of 

rationalising CBD office space over the next 

five years. 

Project Land Services was formed in October 

1995 to provide a comprehensive land acquisition 

service to State and local government agencies, 

particularly in relation to infrastructure projects 

such as transmission lines, dams, rail lines and 

water supply and sewerage schemes. Services 

generally involve securing sites for construction 

and acquisition of affected land after construction. 

During the year, DPWS won the tender to cany out 

compulsory acquisitions for the State Rail Authority 

(now Rail Access Corporation) for the new railway 

fi-om Central Srarion to Sydney Airport. 

RESPONSE TO NATURAL DISASTERS AND 
EMERGENCIES 

The Department lias a central role in responding 

to emergencies through rhe State Emergency 

Management Committee and implementation of 

the State Disaster Plan (DISPLAN). 

Representatives arc drawn from various areas 

within the organisation to coordinate and assist 

with engineering services, telecommunications, 

supply and media management in emergency 

situations. 

Under the Government's Natural Disaster Relief 

Program administered by DPWS. financial 



assistance totalling $1,736 million was provided 

to 54 councils and authorities for emergency and 

ongoing repairs to public assets caused by 12 

declared natural di.sasters during 1995/96 . A 

further $3.8 million is expected to be paid out m 

1996 /97 to councils in relation to these events. 

SAVING OUR HERITAGE 

Restoration of the stonework on historic public 

buildings continued during the year under the 

Minister's Program. The main projects were 

ongoing work at the Australian Museum. 

Government House and the former Museum of 

Applied Arts and Sciences (TAPE Building C) in 

Ultimo, and the completion of work on the 

former Marcus Clarke Building (TAPE Building 

W ) in Railway Square. 

Minor works included preliminary repairs to the 

main portico of the Art Gallery of NSW. to the 

facades of Newtown North Public School and to 

Ncwington House at Silverwatcr. 

A 'make-sate' program began In early 1996 to 

review the condition of stone on older 

government-owned masonry buildings. 

Research into the extraction of yellowblock 

sandstone to help sustain the program continued 

during the year, and suitable local supplies should 

become available in 1996/97 . 

TTie Stone Program budget was $3.95 million in 
1995 /96 . 

The 103-year-old Coffs Harbour Jett\', one of the 

area's most significant historical sites, is being 

restored under DPWS projea management, in 

partnership with Coffs Harbour City Council and 

the local historical society. 

The $3.8 million project involves conservation of 

the timber jetty in its 1912 configuration, using as 

much recycled timber as possible to preserve its 

heritage quality. At year end, the outer 91 metres 

of jetty had been removed and work had 

commenced on laying the new decking. 

DIRECTIONS FOR 1996/97 

TTie Department will strengthen its approach to 

total asset management by integrating the 

Government's ecologicallv sustainable 

development objectives with information 

management and telecommunications and by 

expanding asset strategic planning to include 

property management. 

In preparation for a forecast construction boom in 

the lead up to the year 2000, a more strategic 

approach to construction will be required by all 

industry participants. On behalf of the N S W 

Government, the Department will continue in its 

leadership role by setting standards for industry 

performance and will use its position to drive and 

facilitate industry reform initiatives. 

A new Code of Practice becomes operational from 

I July, 1996 and a Green Paper identitying 

opportunities and challenges is under 

development for relca.sc later in the year for public 

comment. TTiese documents provide ditection for 

the construction industry and will lead to greater 

client satisfacrion. A Best Practice Accreditation 

Scheme for contractors will be piloted and its 

performance will be monitored before broader 

application. 

Following the Government's adoption of a 

strategic approach to management of the State's 

future accommodation needs. DPWS will be 

responsible for developing a more cost effective 

accommodation plan, along with a similar model 

for the Government's facilities areas such as 

education, health and transport. 

The Department plans to build on its success and 

acceptance as a leader in total asset management, 

by expanding its range of impartial advice service 

to include other activities. TTiis will be achieved 

by establishing partnerships with key clients, as 

well as research and development organisations, to 

deliver the best service in the areas of asset and 

infrastructure management. 
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SETTING THE PACE IN INFORMATION 
MANAGEMENT AND TECHNOLOGY 

The Government is committed to seeking new 

and cost-effective ways to dehver social programs, 

innovative customer service and information. 

Better management of information management 

and technology (IM&T) across all government 

organisations is the key to this process, 

A key Government priority is to establish N S W 

as the public sector pacesetter in the use of IM&T 

resources to: 

• provide affordable, accessible and responsive 

government services 

• increase the efficiency and effectiveness of 
government processes, and 

• enhance the economic well-being of NSW. 

KEY ROLE FOR DPWS 

TTie Department of Public Works and Services is 

responsible for realising the Government's vision 

to establish a coordinated and balanced public 

sector-wide approach to planning, managing and 

using IM&T resources. 

TTie Department's Information Technology and 

Telecommunications Division is developing whole 

of government IM&T strategies, standards and 

guidelines to estabhsh N S W as the pacesetter in 

the use and application of computer and 

telecommunications technologies for the benefit 

of the community and the State. 

The Division, (which includes the former 

Telecommunicarions Unit from Commercial 

Services Group, the Information Technology 

Planning and Policy Unit from Premier's 

Department and N S W Public Works personnel), 

is in the process of being restructured to reflect its 

current role and focus. 

IM&T BLUEPRINT FOR NSW 

A major task undertaken during the year was to 

develop strategies to implement the Government's 

vision and policies for IM&T in the public sector. 

The Government announced it was developing an 

Information Management and 

Telecommunications 'Blueprint' to establish a 

managerial framework to optimise the benefits o( 

the Government's substantial investment in 

IM&T resources. T o develop the blueprint the 

Department: 

• consulted with key pubhc and private sector 

representatives 

• reviewed the Government's policy statements on 

IM&T and researched similar groups in other 

governments 

• reviewed technology trends, and 

• presented draft strategies to selected groups for 

feedback. 
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The blueprint is expected to be released 

in 1996/97 . 

IMPROVED EFFICIENCY AND COSTS 

The Government believes standard IM&T 

policies and procedures within all agencies will 

produce efficiency and cost benefits by 

consolidating information for better government 

decision-making and business and community 

access. To achieve this objective the Department 

is well progressed with an IM&T Policies and 

Procedures Manual, with its release expected in 

August 1996. 

The manual contains the following guidelines: 

• Develop the Strategy 

• Prepare the Tartical Plan 

• Conceptual Framework 

" Develop the Business Case 

• A c q u i s i t i o n ot Inform.i t ion Technology 

• Acquisition ot Corporate Application Systems 

(GSAS) 

• Contracting Out 

• Project Management 

• Management of Change 

• Risk Management 

• Security of Information Systems 

• N S W Government Internet Implementation & 
Style Guide. 

Further policies and guidelines will be circulated 

when completed. 

SPOTUGHT ON IM&T PROJEQ BUDGETS 

Under an agreement with Treasury, the 

Department screens information technology 

projects expected to cost $1 million or more 

which were included in budget sector agencies' 

1996 /97 capital program bids. fXiring the year 

40 bids from 17 agencies were reviewed, with 

project value totalling $96.3 million. 

The screening process paid particular attention to 

strategic planning, business case justifications and 

measures to ensure benefits are realised. Results of 

the screening process were sent to Treasury. 

Agencies wishing to establish, renew or extend a 

telephone or data service network at a cost greater 

than $500,000 (or in the case of a radio or 

microwave network, at a cost greater than 

$20,000), must apply to the Department's 

Information Technology and 

Telecommunications Division (Telco Authority) 

seeking the Minister's approval. 

INTERNET OPPORTUNITIES 

NSW Government Home Page and 
Directory of Agencies 

The Government is encouraging use of the 

Internet to provide the community with effective 

and efTicient service through seamless and direct 

access to government information and services. 

TTie Department is developing an Internet policy 

and guidelines to help people access and search 

government sites. 

The second step is i n construct a N S W 

Government Internet entry point and directory of 

agencies. This will provide a central structure to 

help members ot the conmiunity access 

information through the Internet. The entry point 

will provide information about each agency, with 

pointers to individual agency home pages or 

services, while each agency will provide a link back 

to the N S W Government entry point. 

Construction of this site is underway and is being 

monitored by a CEO Internet Sub-committee. 

A number ot private organisations have been 

contacted to provide technical expertise on 

Internet services to the public sector under a 

contract which began in Febniary 1996. Provision 

of services imder the contract will conform with 

the Government's Internet policy. 

Use of the Internet is initially limited to activities 

which are non-confidential. non-transactional and 

non-coinmcrcial. However, this is a rapidly 

evolving environment which will be monitored 

closely to ensure government agencies make the 

most appropriate use of this medium as a vehicle 

for electronic service dehvery. 

Stronger Links to Remote & Regional Areas 

During the year work continued with a Premier's 21 



Department regional coordinator to establish the 

Internet as a medium to deliver locally relevant 

information to people in remote and regional 

centres. As with the N S W Government home 

page, services will initially be non-transactional. 

However, the infrastructure and enrhusiasm of 

agency representatives in rhe initial area of acriviry 

make it an ideal location to test electronic service 

delivery which can be used in other locations. 

Some issues which need to be addressed in 

providing electronic services to regional 

communities are the cost of communications and 

poor capacity in some areas. The Deparrment is 

working with telecommunications carriers and 

service providers to encourage them to provide 

improved telecommunications and Internet service 

provider access in regional NSW. 

INTRA GOVERNMENT ELECTRONIC 
MESSAGING SERVICE (IGEMS) 

CEO Network 

The CEO Nerwork is an electronic mail (e-mail) 

link between the chief executive officers of major 

N S W government organisations which enables 

the central agencies to communicate more 

effectively and ensures a better flow of 

information between and at the highest level of all 

departments. 

The objectives of the project are ro provide: 

* a private, secure link 

' 24-hour, seven-days-a-week total support for 
the network 

• high level 'total' service delivery. 

The project is the first of its type for N S W and 

reflects the Government's commitment to faster, 

better service using electronic 'non-build' 

solutions. The result wJl be a growing 

commitment to electronic communication at 

senior levels of government, leading to more rapid 

cultural change across all agencies. 

In time, the CEO Network will be integrated into 

the whole of government network, the Intra 

Government Electronic Messaging Service 

(IGEMS), 
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By the end of Jime, 100 users from 85 agencies 

were linked up to the CEO Network. 

Messaging between Agencies 

Government IM&T policy is that all agencies 

should be able to communicate electronically with 

each other by March 1999. 

The electronic message system between 

government agencies will be a commercial service 

which meets the needs of government operations 

on a 'user pays' basis. Much ot its cosr will be 

covered by savings in post, courier, fax and phone. 

Known as the Intra Government Electronic 

Messaging Service (IGEMS), the nerwork will 

provide messaging between agencies, and between 

sites within an agency if it is the most cost 

effective solution. 

IGEMS will provide a ftiUy managed and reliable 

service between 'gateways' to member agencies 

where it will interface with their e-mail. Securiry 

will be important for privacy and the protection of 

agency systems. IGEMS will also support a private 

Government 'bulletin board' service where agencies 

can display information for use by other agencies. 

Ten agencies are represented on the IGEMS 

Contract Management Committee. The final 

arrangement will be a head agreement between the 

contractor and the State Contracts Control Board, 

and a contract between the contractor and each 

agency taking the services. Tenders will be issued 

m July 1996. 

PUBLIC SEaOR DATA 
COMMUNICATIONS REFORM 

The Department is finalising a plan to reform 

data communications in the N S W public sector, 

in line with the Government's vision to provide 

totally electronic 'anyone to anyone' links across 

the whole of the N S W public sector. 

The Government will achieve savings through 

open market competition between service 

providers. In high traffic areas, multiple providers 

will ensure low prices, while use of a single 

provider in remote locations will minimise 

infrastiucture costs. 



The aim is to establish standards tor use across 

the entire N S W public sector. The plan proposes 

adopting data communications standards in areas 

such as protocols, security, network management 

and mechanisms to measure and report network 

costs and performance. It also proposes that the 

Government move from a framework where 

agencies each build and operate their own 

networks to one where agencies use public 

switched computer network suppliers. It 

recommends strong liaison between government 

agencies when procuring services at all levels and 

when formulating telecommunications policy. 

Survey Identifies Information and 
Telecommunications 

An essential element of successful long-term 

strategic planning is thorough research. 

The Department conducted its annual 

Information Technology and 

rflccomrminications (IT&T) Survey in January 

to provide a comprehensive profile of the N S W 

Government's IT&T environment. Comparative 

year-to-year analysis of survey data shows shifts 

and trends in the use of IT&T goods and services 

and helps plan effectively for the future. 

1 lie survey results were published and distributed 

among government agencies and industry. 

Survey questionnaires were forwarded to 106 

agencies and 104 responses were received from 91 

of these agencies. 

• 77% of agencies reportedly have a current 

IT&T Strategic Plan. This compares to 66% in 

1995 

• 75% of these 11 &T strategic plans are less than 

two years old compared with 54% last year 

• In 49% of agencies, the CEO approves all 

significant IT&T initiatives 

• 46% of reported expenditure is for internal 

IT&T costs 

• Approximately 3000 staf^ are engaged fiill time 
in IT&T activities 

• Approximately 90,000 PCs arc in use 

' 7 1 % of PCs are networked. 

SOLUTIONS THROUGH GOVERNMENT 
RADIO NETWORK (GRN) 

The Government Radio Network (GRN) was 

developed to rationalise government expenditure 

on radio systems and to provide a solution for 

agency networks displaced by the 

Commonwealth's decision to redistribute V H P 

(very high frequency) bands. A significant reason 

for building the network was the ability to link 

radio systems in times of emergency or to provide 

communications for major events. 

7 he GRN is a wide area trunked network for 

government agencies owned by the N S W 

Government and managed by Telstra on behalf of 

DPWS under the Mobile Services Network 

Agreement. The Department manages the GRN's 

development, acting as a focal point for agencies 

on matters of radio strategy and policy and 

providing a forum for the network's users. 

The trunked radio system provides improved 

communications efficiency, greater privacy, better 

seairity and more flexibilitv than conventional 

mobile radio systems. The network has been 

progressively developed since it became 

operational in 1994, and now covers more than 

42,000 square kilometres, encompassing the 

Newcastle-Sydney-Wollongong region and the 

main arterial corridors to Orange, Queanbeyan 

and Muswellbrook. TTiis area has the highest 

density radio usage in the State and offers the 

greatest opportunity to achieve efficiencies by 

introducing a single network for multiple 

radio users. 

Comparative network statistics 

at the end of June 1996 were: 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 

Client Service Agreements 

(registered agency users) 

Operational sites 

Radios affiliated to the network 

Radios configured on the network 

2 4 

36 

6 9 1 2 

10843 

1994 /95 

18 

31 

4655 

5060 

By 30 June 1996. the network was averaging 1.7 

million calls per month. 
2 3 
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Tlie Department is further developing the 

network to expand its coverage and better meet 

user needs. The major expansion of the GRN into 

the Central West of the State is well advanced, 

which will double the area presently served by the 

system. Construction of a mobile site was nearing 

completion and this unit will shortly be available 

for use anywhere in the State, 

CARRIER CONTRAaS 

Agreements Provide Choice of Long 
Distance Service 

A tariff plan was introduced as one of many 

pricmg plans under the Strategic Relationship 

Agreement with Telstra. Additionally, a 

Government Service Agreement was negoriated 

with Optus from December 1995 to initially 

provide long distance telephone services. Agencies 

are free to choose between Optus Long Distance 

or Telstra for this service. 

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS 

Justice Agencies Data Exchange (JADE) 
Project 

TThe Justice Agencies Data Exchange (JADE) 

project is an initiative of several agencies to ensure 

complementary systems and appropriate data 

exchange interactions are developed. The 

Department is working with the justice agencies 

to assess the project as a model for developing 

whole of government informarion exchange 

srraregies. 

DPWS and the Department of Corrective 
Services (DOCS) 

A partnership between D P W S and rhe 

Department of Corrective Services (DOCS) in the 

area of information management and technology 

(IM&T), together with private sector 

involvement, has produced significant 

achievements and played a pioneering role in the 

best practice use of IM&T in the public sector. 

The achievements include: 

ELECTRONIC DATA LINK 

An electronic data link between D P W S and 
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DOCS computer networks was commissioned in 

April 1995. The link improves the service to 

DPWS from the Corrective Services Client 

Service Team and was endorsed by both D P W S 

and DOCS management. 

The data link was initially between D P W S and 

DOCS Capital Works Branch, using the 

electronic mail system. The link has now been 

expanded to include DOCS Executive and 

Regional Commanders, DOCS Policy and 

Planning Branch, and DPWS Western Prisons 

Sire Office. 

The use of existing components, where possible, 

has resulted in a low-cost, effective link between 

the two organisarions. It is proposed to expand 

the link by providing a shared directory 

contaming D O C S / D P W S database material, 

including graphic presentations and financial 

spreadsheets. 

DOCS and DPWS teams are working together 

closely to develop and utilise leading edge 

information management and technology. This 

prorotype for intra-govemment cooperation 

utilises the complementary skills and experrise 

available in each Department and in the private 

sector, to provide cost-effective solutions, and 

develop appropriate uses for new technology to 

help achieve DOCS' core business targets. 

T H E METROPOLITAN R E M A N D A N D 

RECEPTION CENTRE 

The Government's commitment to added value, 
better management and economies through best 

practice IM&T is demonstrated in joint 

L")OCS/DPWS activity at the new Metropolitan 

Remand and Reception Centre (MRRC) at 

Silverwater. 

The development and planning process for the 

new centre has benefited firom use of leading edge 

technology including: 

• Implementation of'brief and build' management 

software 

' 3D modelling of the MRRC project, integrated 

with video technology, and 

• Simulation software. 



These packages are not only front-end planning 

tools, but will also play a part in the recruitment 

and training ot otticers and future management of 

the centre. 

Integrated with development ot the new centre is 

a range of new technologies, which will boost 

operational efficiency and reduce recurrent costs. 

These include: 

SMARTCARDS 

Smartcards differ from previous plastic cards 

because they contain digital information about the 

user. At MRRC and other correctional centres, 

they will contain information about the mmates' 

security status, health, education, programs and 

money available for telephone calls and shop 

purchases (known as 'buy-ups') as well as 

permitted phone numbers. 

Smartcards are being used for security control in 

officer and prison management within and 

between centres. They are used for both security 

systems and corrective services information 

systems. Smartcards for inmate telephone access 

have been trialed successfiilly at Parramatta 

Correctional Centre. 

SECURITY TECHNOLOGY 

Different technologies such as microwave, 

acoustic detection, video motion detector systems 

and closed circuit television cameras arc now 

being used in combination to provide reliability 

and backup, especially in perimeter security. 

Other recent innovations such as touch screen 

technology make it easy for the operator to 

control and manage modern detection systems. 

They also provide detailed information on time, 

location and type of incidents. 

Inmates will also be able to use touch screen 

technology in 'information kiosks' which provide 

information on *buy-ups', availability ot programs, 

etc. 

Bail video links between a correctional centre and 

courts is now working very successfiilly at Long 

Bay Correctional Centre. Specially designed 

facilities will be included in the MRRC to allow 

an expansion of this program, which also has the 

advantage of reducing inmate movements outside 

the correctional centre. 

DPWS and the NSW TAPE Commision 

An e-mail link between N S W TAPE and DPWS 

was established as a low cost effective means of 

communication between the two organisations. 

DPWS is investigating issues regarding software 

compatibility. 

DPWS was connected to N S W TAFE's Capital 

Projea Management System to allow DPWS 

development managers to update projea data on-line. 

DPWS is developing electronic links and sharing 

information on capital and maintenance programs 

with the Department of School Education (DSE) 

to enhance ser\icc provision to a major client. 

DPWS is a!.so working to integrate internal 

reporting and management systems across 

divisions to reduce duplication and enable a single 

database of project/program information. 

INTERNAL INITIATIVES 

Landscape Design Group 

The Landscape Design Group continued to 

integrate and apply new software (such as 

Pagemaker, Project and Photoshop), and to 

improve conventional word processing skills. As a 

result the group is better able to communicate 

design ideas and proposals to clients. It has 

adopted 'hot desking' and general sharing of 

electronic resources. 

Government Information Service 
Introduces Barcoding 

The Government Information Service has 

introduced product barcoding with point of sales 

scanners in the City and Parramatta bookshops to 

improve service delivery to customers. The 

electronic transfer ot data has significantly 

enhanced the accuracy of inventory and sales 

information. 

Government Printing Service Goes Digital 

The major IM&T project this year for the 

Government Printing Service has been 

installation of a digital storage system using 25 
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optical modules. This has allowed GPS to digitise 

more than 1000 aged Acts of Parliament ready 

for print on demand' requests. This relieves the 

GPS of having ro hold inventory of these items in 

case they are needed, and reduces its exposure to 

obsolete stock. 

Model Contracts from Information 
Technology Service 

Informarion Technology Service has been a leader 

in maximising benefits to the Government 

through the superior purchasing power of its 

contracts. Independent research has shown that 

N S W departments, agencies and other regisrered 

contract users are gaining major savings on 

wholesale and trade prices through ITS contracts, 

such as: 

• the establishment of a highly speciali-sed 

Geographic Information System (GIS) 

software/services contract 

• new contracts for the procurement of Inrerner 

services for N S W Government and Deparrment 

of School Education needs 

• video-telephone products and services ranging 

from desk video-telephones to video­

conferencing services. 

DIREaiONS FOR 1996/97 

Building on successes during the year, the 

Department will continue to assist government 

agencies to provide cost-effective, responsive and 

accessible government services and intormation to 

communities across NSW, 

In tlie coming year a number of new .ind exciting 

Government initiatives in information 

management and telecommunications will emerge, 

includmg the fonnation of an executive body to 

ensure a coordinated, whole of government 

approach to the planning and management of the 

Government's IM&T resources. 

The Government's IM&T Blueprint, under 

development by DPWS following extensive 

consultation with government and industry 

organisations will further maximise the 

Government's invesrments and will creare more 

accessible and efficient services for the people of 

NSW. 

In order to produce greater efficiencies and cost 

benefits across industrial agencies, an IM&T 

Policies and Procedures Manual is well 

progressed, with its release planned in the first 

quarter of 1996/97 . 

Improved access to government services and 

information will result from the Government's 

decision to make greater use of rhe Internet. 

Policy and guidelines are being developed by 

DPWS to help people access and search 

Government sites. A N S W Government home 

page is under development to link to all 

government agencies on the Internet. 

Following the success of the electronic mail link 

berwcen chief executive officers of major 

government agencies, work will commence on an 

integrated whole of govemmenr network, to 

achieve the Government's objective of having aU 

agencies capable of communicating electronically 

with each other by early 1999. 

The Government Radio Network will continue to 

be developed to expand its coverage and to better 

meet user requirements. Its present coverage will 

double in the coming year, with new sites 

becoming operational in the central west of the 

State and a mobile site to be commissioned for 

use anywhere in the State. A number of new GRN 

client service agreemenrs are expected to be signed 

following recognition of improved 

communication features offered by the service. 



Objective 3 

Maximise henejits using the 

Government's 
purchasing power. 

AN a major cl iem o f the private sector, the 

Department ot Pubhc W o r k s and Services leads 

the way in introducing innovative approaches to 

procurement through goods and services contracts 

and capital investment delivery methods. 

A consisrcnt approach across government 

continues to reduce costs and to improve 

efficiencies tor government agencies in procuring 

goods and services, constnict ion. property' and 

tntormation management. 

WHOLE OF GOVERNMENT 
PROCUREMENT POUCY 

W i t h llie N S W Ciovernmenr spending more than 

$ 1 0 billion a year on procurement, ot which $ 4 

b i l l i o n IS o n purchasing goods and services, 

procurement and purchasing policy retomi i> one 

ot the Ciovemment's major goals. 

D P W S has the charter for whole o f government 

procurement policy, so maximising benefits using 

the Government's purchasing power is a key 

objective in the Department's five-year strategic 

plan. Vision 2001. 

In partnership with the Council o n the Cost o f 

Government and other government agencies, 

D P W S is developing a comprehensive 

proairement policy framework to apply to all 

N S W government agencies. 

A management team was established during the 

year to lead the development ot the policy 

framework. 

T h e strategy is to develop and implement the 

policy under the auspices o f the State Contracts 

Control Board, which comprises representatives 

from major government purchasing and policy 

agencies. 

The Board ha.s six working parties which advise 

on management framework, standards o f 

behaviour, economic development, best practice, 

environment and information technology. 

T h e team will join with these working parties and, 

as a group, develop the general policy framework. 

T h e y will also coordinate the working parties and 

liaise closely with the Counci l t o oversee the 

development of best practice and future strategic 

directions. 

Key tasks in 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 include: 

• development o f a policy statement and code o f 

practice for government procurement 

• development o f guidelines for agency 

management 

• idenrification and classification o f goods and 

services expenditure as a basis for analysing 

purchasing trends and identifying future 

opportunities 

• re-engineering o f procurement processes by 

agencies to increase efficiency. 

M o s t o f the development should be completed by 

the end o f 1 9 9 6 and the guidelines available in 

the form ot a government procurement manual by 

m i d - 1 9 9 7 . T h e policy will then be implemented 27 



after a process ot consukation and 

communication on the Government's 

procurement reforms. 

NSW SUPPLY SERVICE 

The Department's N S W Supply Service 

negotiates and manages common use goods and 

services contracts on behalf of government 

agencies and other approved customers, such as 

local government and charities. 

Acknowledged experts in contracts and supply, 

N S W Supply Service provides substantial cost 

savings, access to a wide range of products, 

contract expertise and professional advice on 

purchasing. At year end there were over 300 

period contracts in place covering in excess of 

155,000 line items and the year's expenditure by 

customers was of the order of $1.3 billion. 

Business Opportunities 

A major event organised by rhe Department was 

'Meet the Buyers - Newcastle', an example of 

State, Commonwealth and local government 

agencies uniting to support industry. 'Meet the 

Buyers is a reverse trade fair where exhibirors are 

buyers from government agencies and visitors are 

suppliers of products and services who would like 

to supply the government marketplace. 

N S W Supply Service and the Information 

Technology Service coordinated the involvement 

of N S W government agencies in the event, held in 

Newcasrle in October with some 35 exhibirors 

and more than 1,300 industry visitors attending, 

'Doing Business wirh Government' seminars were 

hfid in Lismorc, Pciiridi and Dubbo dunng the 

year ro inform local businesses of purchasing 

procedures by the three levels of government. 

New Contracts Offer Savings 

New distribution contracts finalised during the 

year led to significant price and supply advantages 

for N S W government agencies. Major contracts 

for a full range of products in the categories of 

general hardware, plumbing, electrical and safety 

and protective clothing were negotiated. 
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Major wholesalers were selected who could offer a 

nerwork of outlets throughout the State, allowing 

clients in rural areas ro source products quickly in 

their local area and still enjoy the advantages of 

using a government contract where issues such as 

probity had already been addressed through the 

tendering process. 

The new Air Travel and Related Services contract 

for travel agency services saved agencies $2.8 

million for the year through rebares and best fare 

of the day. 

Under a performance agreement with the N S W 

Health Peak Purchasing Council 21 health-

specific contracts were managed with sales 

exceeding $100 million for the year. Seven food 

conrracts primarily used by the public health 

sector also attracted sales of $46 million. 

Period contracts for large items of electromedical 

equipment purchased for hospitals saved about $2 

million during the year. There were 52 separate 

orders for electromedical equipment, with a value 

of $16.5 million. 

STATEFLEET SERVICES 

StateFleet Services provides a range of services to 

government organisations, including a fleet 

management service to the Treasury's $272 

million vehicle lease facility represented by 11,300 

vehicles at year end. This represented a 74 per 

cent increase in vehicles managed and a 95 per 

cent increase in the capital value of the fleet over 

1994 /95 . 

During the year, m conjunction with Treasury, rhe 

passenger vehicle facility was expanded to include 

commercial vehicles. The sale and leaseback 

operarion, which occurred in June, allowed 

$102.9 million in capital to be re-allocated in the 

State Government budget. 

Under the contract for disposal of used 

government vehicles by auction, 12,577 vehicles 

were sold during the year compared to 10,742 in 

1 9 9 4 / 9 5 , an increase of 17.1 per cent. The 

contract for petroleum products continued to 

grow, exceeding 210 million litres, an increase of 

2 per cent over rhe previous year. 



O n e - o f f contracts for unique or specialised 

requirements were negotiated for 2 5 different 

clients during the year, involving 4 8 contracts 

worth about $ 1 2 5 million. 

Other notable contracts included: 

• Training courses for D T E C ( $ 3 0 mill ion p.a.) 

' Hire o f aircraft for Bush Fire Services ( $ 2 

mil l ion) 

• Discover 2 0 0 0 project ( $ 4 0 mil l ion). 

GOVERNMENT ADVERTISING AGENCY 

T h e t'i»>vernmenr Advert is ing Agency v^tiAA) 

coordinates the placement, billing and monitoring 

of all N S W government advertising undertaken 

by departments and authorities. T h e agency 

negotiates volume discount rates with all media to 

achieve overall public sector-wide savings, as well 

as providing overall consistency in advertising 

policy and procedures. 

The C i A A A I S O published the Public Service 

N o t i c e s o n behalf o f the Public Employment 

Office, a weekly publication which details 

positions vacant within government departments, 

as well as appointments made to positions. 

During the year G A A directly booked or 

coordinated the placement of about 22.000 
display, positions vacant, and classified 

advertisements in the press, as well as $ 1 . 3 mil l ion 

in radio advertisements. In addition, more than 

9 . 0 0 0 advertisements were directly booked by 

clients, with suburban, regional and interstate 

newspapers, and specialist publications. 

Media savings o f more than $ 1 0 mill ion were 

achieved during the year through the operation o f 

the Master Media arrangement. Government 

advertising expenditure was $ 6 8 . 5 million. 

Procedures for placing vacancy advertisements in 

the 'Government Posit ions Vacant' sections o f the 

Sydney Morning HtraU and I^ily Telegraph Mirror were 

reviewed and amended, resulting in time and cost 

savings for clients, and allowing the G A A to 

reduce staffing requirements. 

Contracts were tendered during the year for 

printing the Public Service Not ices , maintaining a 

computerised subscription database, and labelling 

and packaging the Public Service Not ices . 

Arrangements were made with the contracted 

typesetter to transmit advertisements to Fairfax 

and N e w s Limited publications electronically, 

resulting in time and cost savings to client 

government agencies. 

T h e Department closely monitored and reported 

to the Premier's Department on the targeted 2 5 

per cent reduction in government advertising and 

expenditure by budget sector agencies. T h e 2 5 per 

cent reduction for the year was achieved. 

T h e Department also liaised clo,seIy with the 

Premier s Office to develop a policy and 

firamework to implement the Government's 

requirement to allocate 7.5 per cent o f campaign 

press expenditure to the etfinic media. 

T w o 'Introduction to Advertising' seminars were 

arranged for 4 0 clients. T h e seminars, which 

focused on press advertising, provided 

information and advice ro improve the 

effectiveness o f advertising. 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICE 

T h e Information T e c h n o l o g y Service continued 

to improve its comprehensive and professional 

information technology ( I T ) contract 

management service, further enhancing whole o f 

government performance through more efficient 

acquisition ot cost-effective information 

technology. 

I T S is responsible for a wide range ot I T 

'conmion-usc period' and specialised 'one-of f 

purchases for government agencies, as well as local 

government and non-profit organisations. Overall, 

purchases by these organisations exceeded $ 1 9 8 

million during the year, a rise o f about $ 1 0 

mil l ion on the previous year. 

kn increasing range o f specialist I T products and 

services were covered by contracts to ensure 

purchasers had the widest choice. Products and 

services cover computer equipment, .software, 

mobile telephones, radio and satellite equipment, 

fax machines, specialised geographical information 

systems, printers, paging systems, video-telephone 29 
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systems, calculators and extensive IT maintenance 

services. 

Work continued on the development of 

Government Selection Apphcation Systems 

(GSAS) conrracts, and new contracts which have 

the potential to be used extensively throughout 

government agencies were arranged for financial 

management systems and records management 

systems. 

Benefits include: 

• reduced cost and implementation times 

• once-only customisation costs 

• shared implementation and operation experience 

• common-use panel contracts 

• more efficient exchange and transfer of 

information throughour the public sector 

• a standard data format across any future state­

wide network, and 

• common systems applications. 

Q STORES 

Q Stores supplies consumable products to 

government departments, government-funded 

organisations, charitable and not-for-profit 

organisations, providing significanr savings in 

both the direcr cost of product and indirect costs 

associated with procurement and inventory 

mamtenance. Ghent service was improved during 

the year with the introduction of account 

managets to better service the needs of customers. 

Education sales fell from 6 6 . 6 per cent of total 

sales to 62.9 per cent although overall expenditure 

from the client increased. Business wirh the Roads 

and Traffic Authority increased from $300,000 

to $1.6 million over the year with the closure of 

the RTA warehouse. The overall customer base 

expanded by 12.8 per cent. 

A Quick Order System (a catalogue ordering 

system on di-sk) was introduced to more than 20 

per cent of the customer base. 

Q Stores provides a free-into-store delivery service 

within NSW. The Facilities Manager contractor 

is required to deliver 90 per cent of metropolitan 

orders received by 12 noon by 5,00 p.m. on the 

next working day and 100 per cent the following 

day. The target order fill rate of 92 per cent was 

surpassed with an actual achievement of 99 per 

cent during the year. Sales increased fi^om $38.6 

million in 1 9 9 3 / 9 4 to $51.08 million in 

1995 /96 . 

PACKAGED CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
REDUCE COSTS 

DPWS is undertaking a trial consultant scheme 

fof N S W TAPE Commission, with similar 

projects packaged together to increase efficiency 

and economy achieved through lower consultant 

fees and reduced requirement for consultant 

briefings. Building and construction projects at 

Ourimbah. Nirimba and WoUongong TAFE 

colleges are involved. A fiill evaluation of this 

type of packaging will take place on completion 

of the last set of documents, scheduled for 

February 1997. 

SCHOOL MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 

Advances in the building and construction 

industry have provided an opportuniry for DPWS 

in conjunction with the Department of School 

Education to develop a berrer mainrenance 

strategy for schools. 

During the year work progressed on developing 

school facilities maintenance contracts that 

will replace current cyclic maintenance programs 

m 1997. 

The new arrangements will see the State divided 

into large districts, with contractors appointed to 

service schools in their district for six years. 

Contractors will provide a range of services 

including urgent repairs, condition assessments, 

movement of demountable and minor capital 

works. 

It is anricipated the first contractors will be 

appointed in March 1997. 

STATE CONTRACTS CONTROL BOARD 

The role of the Board is set out in the Public 

Sector Management (Goods and Services) 

Regulation 1995 in terms of inviting tenders and 

quorarions and accepting tenders. TTie Board is 
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made up o f senior representatives from major 

purchasing departments and authorities and 

provides a formal structure for user participation 

in the contracting system. Tlie Board provides 

independent scrutiny and quality o f major public 

service procurement decisions. 

The Board held 2 1 fortnightly meetings in 

1 9 9 5 / 9 6 . Its Senior Executive Service level 

membership is drawn from major departmental 

and statutory authority users o f the period 

contracts, as well as from the Department o f State 

and Regional Development . T h e Boatd is chaired 

by the Director, Policy Divis ion, Department o f 

Public W o r k s and Services and is serviced by 

officers o f the Department's N S W Supply Unit . 

T h e members at 3 0 June were: 

M r A Grif lm (Chair). Director, Pol icy Divis ion, 

Department o f Public W o r k s and Services 

M r A Butler, Director. Finance & Administration, 

Sydney Water 

D r P Paterson. Director, Development Services. 

Department of State and Regional Deve lopment 

Mr K Barker, Genera! Manager. Finance and 

Assets Management, N S W Health Department 

M r T Rogers, Deputy Director-General. 

Department of Local Government 

Mr K Dixon . Director o f Finance 

(Administration), Department o f School 

Education 

M r B Campbell . General Manager, N S W Supply, 

Department o f Public W o r k s and Services 

Mr K Quince, Executive Director, Cor^iorate 

Services, N S W Police Service 

Mr G Johnson. Manager, Commercial Services, 

Dclat Electricity 

M r G Waters, Director, Corporate Services, 

Premier's Department 

Mr E Schmatt, Chief Executive, Judicial 

Commiss ion o f N S W 

M r G Schipp, Assistant Director-General. 

Corporate Services, N S W T A F E Commiss ion 

M r R Bushrod, Director, Industrial Networks and 

Best Practice, Department o f Training and 

Education Co-ordination. 

During 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 a number o f significant 

contracts were let by the Board which resulted in 

innovative solutions being provided to 

government clients, as well as significant benefits 

accruing to industry. These contracts included: 

' Acquisition and Processing o f Airborne 

Geophysical Data Under Discover}' 2 0 0 0 - A 

N S W Government Minetals and Petroleum 

Exploration Initiative 

• Air Travel and Related Ser\'ices to the N S W 

Government 

• Bullet Resistant Tactical Ves t s for the N S W 

Police Service 

• G S A S - Electronic Mail Systems - Supply o f 

Packaged Software for Electronic Mail Systems 

• G S A S - Records Management Systems - Supply 

o f Packaged Software for Records Management 

Systems 

• Manufacture and Supply o f Categor)' I Bush 

Fire Tankers - Bush Fire Services 

• Manufacture and Supply o f Class I / \mbulance 

Bodies tor the Ambulance Service o f N S W 

• Provision o f Internet Services and Products 

• School Banking Services for the Department o f 

School Education 

• Supply o f Control led T e l e p h o n e Services ( C T S ) 

tor Inmates in N S W Correaional Centres for 

the Department o f Corrective Services 

" Supply, Installation and Maintenance o f a 

R e m o t e Access Communicat ions System for the 

Register o f Encimibered Vehicles ( R E V S ) 

• Wholesale Distribution Contract for General 

Stationer}- and Paper Products (Level I ) 

• Wholesale Distribution Contract for General 

Stationer}' and Paper Products (Level I ) 

• Wholesale Distribution Contract for timber 

(Level I ) 

• Workstat ion Systems. 

T h e Board operates an accreditation system, 

requiring tenderers for cleaning contracts to be 

accredited. Procedures were developed during the 31 
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year whereby non-performing contractors have 

their accreditation withdrawn and are disallowed 

from tendering for any N S W Government 

cleaning contract for a period of rwo years. 

The State Contracts Control Board also shifted its 

focus from operational issues to that of a strategic 

responsibility for procurement policy for the 

public sector. Additionally, a number of inter­

agency working parties were established to inform 

the Board on key procurement policy areas. 

DIREaiONS FOR 1996/97 

The coming year will see a continuing and 

consistent approach across government to 

improve efficiencies and to lower costs in capital 

investment delivery methods and in rhe 

procurement of goods and services contracts. 

The Department is developing a whole of 

government procurement policy framework to 

maximise the Government's purchasing power. 

The policy will be implemented under the 

auspices of the State Contracts Control Board, 

which will coordinate a number of working 

parties in the development of best practice and 

future strategic directions. 

The Government Selected Applications Systems 

programs will be extended to two more products, 

and further opportunities will be identified to 

extend procurement arrangements lor 'broad-

based' goods and services in order to optimise 

benefits for Government and clients. 

The Department will again be involved in the 

coordination ot a 'Meet the Buyers' Trade Fair. 

The State/Commonwealth 'reverse' trade show 

will be held in Sydney in mid 1997. Suppliers and 

manufacturers of producrs and services who wish 

to supply the government marketplace can meet 

with buyers from government agencies. 

An improved maintenance arrangement for the 

State's schools will be introduced in 1 9 9 7 , 

replacing the current cyclic maintenance program, 

A number of contractors will be appointed to 

service groupings of schools, providing a range of 

services including urgent repairs, condition 

assessments and minor works. 

The Department recognises it must identify and 

implement service systems which complement the 

changing role of government. It will continue to 

hold regular meetings with stakeholders to 

identify trends, industry capabilities and evolvini. 

client requirements. T o assist in developing a 

vision for government procurement in the fijturc, 

the Department will establish links with leading 

procurement organisations nationally and 

internationally. 

Total government expenditure on goods and 

services, construction and maintenance, 

information technology, telecommimications and 

rental will be identified to prioritise fiiturc 

opportunities to consoHdate purchasing. 
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Estahlish the 
NSW Government 

as Australia's pacesetter 
in environmental design^ energy efficiency 

(sf ecologically sustainahle development 

The N S W Government has nominated the 

Department of Public Works and Services as a 

lead agency in introducing environmental best 

practice across government. 

This will be achieved through a coordinated 
approach in environmental management to 
infrastructure, development of projects and the 
delivery of goods and services across the whole of 
government. 

The Department is committed to adopting 

re,<;ponsible environmental policies and procedures 

which en.sure all government activities achieve 

innovative environmental solutions, earned out in 

line with ecologically sustainable development. 

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY PROGRAM 

Dunng the year the Department's Environment 

Design Unit developed a framework of 

environmental policies, the most comprehensive 

of any government agency in Australia, in 

consultation with key authorities in government, 

industry', suppliers and the community. 

l l i e Department developed five new 

environmental policies which, together with the 

two previously adopted policies for timber and 

ecologically sustainable development, reflect our 

formal commitment towards the protection and 

enhancement ot the environment. 

The policies deal with the following 

environmental issues: 

Energy Efficiency 

The draft policy and guidelines promote energy 

conservation and management in new and existing 

projects. The policy incorporates matters such as 

energy options in design, integration of solar 

design principles and technology, and energy 

management guidelines for existing buildings. 

Water Conservation and Recycling 

In Its provision of services to water users (owners 

ot facilities and buildings) and managers (water 

supply authorities and councils). DPWS 

encourages water conservation and recycling 

strategies and incorporates .such strategies into the 

projects it manages. This initiative helps clients 

meet the Government's environmental objectives 

.md shows that their environmental requirements 

are being met or even surpassed by the 

Department. 33 
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In the provision o f services to water users, the 

draft poHcy promotes the fol lowing 

strategies/tasks: 

• Instalhng water usage m o n i t o n n g and reportmg, 

and undertaking water audits and leakage 

detection programs 

• Installing water-conserving plumbing devices 

and signage 

• Us ing products that require little or no water 

• Des igning low water landscapes 

" Considering reuse o f reclaimed water, grey water 

or rainwater. 

In the provision o f services to water managers, the 

fol lowing strategies/tasks will be promoted: 

• Installing river f low monitoring, water usage 

monitoring and reporting 

• Undertaking a water audit o f major users and 

leakage detection program o f the supply 

distribution system 

• Preparing drought management plans, demand 

mLmagement strategies, and reuse opt ion studies 

• T h o r o u g h assessment o f environmental and 

social impacts and values and inclusion o f these, 

as well as economic costs and benefits, in 

decision analysis 

• Adherence to E S D principles in decision 

analysis. 3 

Protection of the Natural Environment 

A draft pol icy has been prepared to improve 

environmental assessment in the selection and 

planning o f sites, as well as rhe protection and 

enhancement o f the biological diversity o f sites 

and their surrounds. 

Avoidance of Sensitive Materials 

T h e Department is assessing building materials 

and associated products to identify those with 

unacceptable environmental impacts and to find 

acceptable altemanves. T h i s exercise also looks ar 

the identification and management of toxic 

materials in construction, and the development o f 

practices to minimise on-site pollution o f water, 

soil and air. 

34 

Healthy Working Environments 

W o r k began on policies and guidelines to 

improve indoor air quality and reduce the risk o f 

Legionella outbreaks. 

Leaders in Environmental Purchasing 

N e w South Wales has become the first State to 

set environmental performance as a key factor in 

the purchase o f products and services by the 

public sector. 

In April, the Minister for Public W o r k s and 

Services, Carl Scully, announced a range o f 

environmental considerations ro be progressively 

introduced on all government purchases tendered 

through the State Contracts Control Board. T h e 

purchases total thousands of items, including 

building products and materials, offrce equipment 

and consumable items used in hospitals, schools 

and colleges. 

T h e new purchasing criteria, to be introduced 

progressively, will give the Government a leadinj.' 

role in encouraging industry to strive for better 

environmenral practice. 

Comp.inies seeking to supply goods and services 

to Government will be asked to provide details o n 

the environmental impact o f the manufacture, 

packaging, distribution, use and disposal o f their 

products. 

Areas covered by the new considerations will 

include: 

• amount o f raw materials used and their source 

• energy used 

• nature and amount o f emissions to air and 

water, and solid waste to landfill, and 

• recommended method of disposing o f product 

after use, and rhe capacity to recycle or reuse. 

WHOLE OF GOVERNMENT ENERGY 
MANAGEMENT 

W'ith the support o f Treasury and the Minister, 

D P W S IS preparing a whole o f governmenr 

Energ}' Management Act ion Plan, which aims to 

achieve significant energy savings (abour $ 1 3 

mil l ion per year) and greenhouse gas reductions 

(about 2 0 0 , 0 0 0 tonnes per year) across the public 
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sector. Representatives from the Sustainable 

Encrgj' Deve lopment Authority and the 

Department of Energy are al.so members o f the 

working party. 

D P W S is committed to achieving energj' 

efficiency in government agencies including its 

own operations. T h e Department has appointed 

an energy manager and an energy management 

plan is being prepared. It will ensure that energy 

use is optimised in all offices including the 

Department's McKell Building. 

In conjunction with the Department o f School 

Education, D P W S introduced the Energy 

Efficiency in Education program during the year 

aiming to achieve energy savings o f $ 3 mill ion 

across N S W schools over three years. T h e 

monitoring phase o f this project is complete, with 

2 7 per cent savings reported. 

Teaching resources were prepared and distributed 

to schools in the Riverina area as a trial. T h e 

resources focus o n h o w energy efficiency can be 

achieved in schools and at home. 

In other areas, in cooperation with the 

Department o f Energy and other agencies, the 

energy management plan is achieving the 

fol lowing reductions in energy consumption: 

Correctional Centres 

TAFE Campuses 

Police Stations 

N S W Art Gallery 

2 6 per cent 

10 per cent 

31 per cent 

1 5 per cent 

BUILDING AN ENVIRONMENTAL PROFILE 

During the year D P W S researched and developed 

information on the environmental profile o f 

products, materials and systems used in the 

building and construction industry. 

T h e aim is to assess the environmental burdens 

different building materials a n d / o r systems place 

on the environment. T h i s involves assessing the 

environmental costs associated with the use o f 

non-renewable resources, the level o f encrgv 

consumed in the production o f materials and the 

measurement o f associated waste by-products, 

both liquid and solid. 

Information is being compiled in an 

internationally recognisable Life Cycle Analysis 

database, which will identify 'world's best practice' 

on environmental performance and produce a 

'green card' report for individual 

materials /products that will provide scientific 

data for continual environmental improvements. 

T h e major benefits to clients will be identification 

o f low environmental cost solutions, which 

provide significant environmental returns, and 

assistance in improving their environmental 

accountability. 

TRAINING 

As part of its lead role in energy management, the 

Department held a series o f energy manager 

training seminars for clients, including N S W 

Police Service, N S W T A F E , the Department o f 

Agriculture and the Department o f Corrective 

Services, to promote the benefits o f effective 

energy management o f facilities and operations. 

T h e Department arranged for a number o f guest 

speakers to address the energy managers o n topics 

ranging from energy audits, energy management 

planning, monitoring and control systems, 

through to financial reporting, 

T h e D P W S training seminars encourage a 

conservation ethic amongst clients and an 

awareness o f the economic and environmental 

benefits of reducing energy use. 

RESEARCH 

A major research project is underway to examine 

the feasibility o f introducing electric and other 

alternatively powered vehicles into the government 

fleet. 

If the research shows electric vehicles are 

technically and commercially viable, a number o f 

vehicles will be purchased and trialed to moni tor 

and assess their road and environmental 

performance. If test results are favourable, a 

government-wide period contract will be 

considered. 

In line with the Department's ecologically 

sustainable development ( B S D ) policy, it is 

proposed the Department purchase a number o f 3 5 
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Ecosport' orbital engine vehides for trial and 

assessment. If approved, these vehicles will be 

allocated to the DPWS fleet and closely monitored 

to assess their claimed improved energy efficiency, 

reduced tail pipe emissions and running costs. 

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS 

The Department is committed to forging strong 

partnerships with other agencies and organisations 

to achieve the Government's vision for 

envirormiental design, energy efficiency and 

ecologically sustainable development: 

• In partnership with the Department of School 

Education, DPWS has developed a range of 

standard design solutions that respond to a 

broad range of environmental issues including 

energy, water and materials. 

• D P W S conducted an energy efficiency 

workshop for N S W TAFE officers. Speakers 

included lecturers from the University of N S W 

and a range of topics mcluding recycling of 

warer and solar energy were discussed. The 

outcome of this workshop is that recommended 

energy efficiency initiatives have been included 

in subsequent client project briefs tor N S W 

TAFE and DSE. 

• Water management studies were undertaken for 

a number of N S W TAFE projects and 

recommendations were included in subsequent 

client project briefs. The anticipated outcomes 

are enhanced environmental responsibility and a 

reducrion in operating costs. A fijll evaluation 

will be conducted following implementation of 

these strategies. 

• DPWS continued to help local councils develop 

water conservation and reuse strategies. Effluent 

reuse proposals were developed for numerous 

sewerage schemes. This included extensive 

studies to define the requirements for a major 

regional effluenr management and reuse scheme 

in the Shoalhavcn area, 

• A major program conrinued to help councils 

reduce the level of nutrients discharged from 

.sewage trearmenr works. Development 

continued on the biological nutrient removal 

process developed by DPWS for intermittent 

extended aeration sewage treatment works. The 

first fijll size units were commissioned at 

Bathurst during the year. Demonstration 

projects to trial innovative nutrient removal 

systems for older sryle trickling filter treatment 

plants are being undertaken at Cowra in 

partnership wirh DLWC and Cowra Council. 

Significant capital savings may tesult if these 

trials are successfiil. 

• DPWS provided technical input to a 'leading 

edge' project to develop direct water recycling 

from sewage using membrane systems, which 

should reduce water recycling costs. The project 

is being conducted through the Cooperarive 

Research Centre for Waste Management and 

Pollution Control. A demonstration treatment 

plant is opening at South Windsor shortly. 

• In collaboration with the Department of Land 

and Water Conservation, DPWS introduced 

environmental flow regimes for new water 

supply systems. The environmental flows 

system, consultation and community 

involvement in water conservation, won the 

project the 1995 Royal Australian Planning 

Institute Award tor Excellence in Planning. 

• In the Hastings District, DPWS developed 

water pumping arrangements txom the Hastings 

River tailored to the requirements of aquatic 

fauna. This resulted in better operation of the 

water supply, faster filling of storages at the end 

of summer, cost savings and better flow 

conditions for fish and aquatic fauna in the 

spring breeding season. 

A lead remediation program at Broken Hill has 

recorded a substantial decrease in blood lead 

levels. DPWS and the Broken Hill Environmental 

Lead Centre completed the remediation of 108 

homes at Broken Hill at a total cost of $1.4 

million. D P W S will continue the project over the 

next five years, witii approximate expenditure of 

$500,000 per year, 

SPECIAL SERVICES IMPROVE OUTCOMES 

DPWS conducted several value management 

studies during the year aimed at improving 

environmental outcomes. 
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H A W K E S B U R Y - N E P E A N R I V E R S Y S T E M 

The Government is concerned about the 

environmental condit ion o f the Hawkesbury-

Nepean River system, D P W S worked with 

Sydney Water Corporation to develop an 

environmental impact statement on establishing 

envirormiental flows in the rivers dammed for 

water supply purposes by the Corporation. T h e 

Hawkesbury-Nepean Catchment Management 

Trust aims to improve water quality in the 

catchment and promote the use o f constructed 

wetlands lor treatment o f urban run-off and sewage, 

D P W S conducted a value management study on 

proposed guidelines for the use o f constructed 

wetlands in the catchment. T h e studies were a key 

factor in establishing a whole ot government 

approach to improving the environment outcomes 

in the catchment through participation of all 

agencies involved in the process. 

HUNTER ESTUARY PROJECT 

T h e Kooragang Wet land Rehabilitation Project 

has been established under the auspices o f the 

Hunter Catchment Management Trust t o 

rehabilitate degraded wetlands in the Hunter 

Estuary which are a key habitat ot fish and birds. 

D P W S conducted a value management study to 

review and improve the project and provide rhe 

rigour needed tor allocation of government 

funding to rhe project. 

SPECIAL PROJEQS HELP PROTEa OUR 
ENVIRONMENT 

1 he Department was involved during the year in 

numerous special projects aimed at encouraging 

environmentally friendly design and saving energy. 

Examples included: 

• Energy audits undertaken in correctional centres 

at Cooma, Lithgow, Bathurst, Parklea and 

G o u l b u m . W o r k began to implement the report 

at Cooma to make savings a reality. Energy 

savings will also reduce annual demand o n 

power generation and greenhouse gas emission. 

• Phasing out o f chloro-fluoro carbon ( C F C ) 

gases. C F C gases are largely responsible for the 

depletion ot the earth's ozone layer, C F C gases 

in the refrigeration system at G o u l b u m 

Correctional Centre were replaced with 

envifonmentally friendly gases. Similar C F C 

gases m kitchen refrigeration systems at N S W 

Parliament H o u s e were also replaced. 

' Water consimiption. Surveys were carried out at 

all Department o f Corrective Services ( D O C S ) 

properties to identify high water usage and 

possible wastage. In most areas, rates are assessed 

on the basis of water used, and every litre saved 

equates to savings in operating costs. W o r k at 

G o u l b u m Correctional Centre has resulted in a 

saving o f some $ 2 4 , 0 0 0 per year. 

• Contamination o f groundwater. All 

imderground oi l storage tanks including supply 

and vent lines belonging to D O C S were tested 

for leakage. Any undetected leakage into 

underground water can cause long-term 

environmental damage and also a t traa heavy 

itnes and legal challenges from neighbouring 

properties. Remedial work is being undertaken 

at six locations and advice has been offered o n 

deconuniss ioning tanks n o longer required. 

• D P W S helped develop a master plan for 

Lidcombe T A F E College which incorporates 

biological control o f stormwater before it flows 

into the drainage system. T h e plan enhances 

the landscape by incorjiorating water features 

and flora. 

• As members o f a joint private and government 

group, D P W S provided mechanical and 

electrical design expertise for a new wastewater 

treatment plant at Taronga Z o o . T h e new plant 

will minimise pollution ot Sydney Harbour and 

utilise recycled effluent at the 2 0 0 . 

ENVIRONMENTAL EFFORTS RECOGNISED 

The Department was involved in the fol lowing 

projects which received awards for excellence 

during the year. 

• T idy T o w n s Award. D P W S received a Keep 

Australia Beautiful Counci l 1 9 9 5 T i d y T o w n s 

Award in the Government Authority category 

for its involvement in the Coffs Creek 

Improvement project. 
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* Joint winner of the 1995 Royal Australian 

Planning Institute Award in the Planning 

Category for the Hastings District Warer 

Supply Scheme. 

• DPWS provided advice on numerous projects 

and proposals during the year on environmental 

design, energy efficiency and ecological 

sustainability, culminaring in the Royal 

Australian Institute of Architects Environmental 

Design Award for Nemingha Public School. 

The Affordable Housing Project for City West 

Housing Pty Ltd received a commendation for 

its contribution to the environment. DPWS 

demonstrated commitment to ESD principles 

through: 

I adaptive reuse of old wharves to create a 

foreshore boardwalk at Pyrmont Point 

I concrete recycling 

» reuse of old timber recovered from disused 

wharves, 

RECYCUNG AND WASTE MINIMISATION 

The deskside sysrem for recycling of paper and 

the separation of glass and aluminium cans 

continued at the Department's offices in the 

McKell Building and at Francis Street. 

A water audit was conducted on the McKell 

Building in April 1995. As a result, water 

consumprion reduction strategies were 

implemenred within the building during 1995 /96 . 

One strategy was the reduction of toilet flushing 

levels from I 3 litres to 10 litres per flush. 

Automatic light switching devices were installed 

in individual offices, tea rooms, conference rooms 

and toilets in the McKell Building, resulting in 

reduced power consumption. 

DIRECTIONS FOR 1996/97 

Recently adopted environmental policies as 

detailed in the body of this report will be 

implemented to ensure all DPWS projects reflect 

the Government's commitment towards the 

prorecrion and enhancement of the environment. 

The Department is well positioned within 

government to encourage the privarc sector to 

adopt better environmental practices in order to 

minimise adverse environmental impacts. TTie 

Government has announced it will set 

environmental performance as a key factor in the 

fliture purchase of products and services. These 

considerarions will be progressively introduced, 

and during 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 the Department will liaise 

closely wirh the private and public sectors to raise 

awareness of the benefits of this initiative. 

In conjimcrion with the Department of Energy, an 

energy management plan will be developed to 

assist key government agencies reduce energy costs 

and greenhouse emissions. 

The Department will continue to work with its 

clients to ensure other resources are managed in 

the most efficient manner, using the principles of 

demand management and reuse and recycling of 

resources. T o achieve best practice in water 

conservation and waste minimisation D P W S will 

develop and promote innovative methods for 

conserving water and whole of life use of our 

assets. 

T o assist in this strategy water usage will be 

benchmarked for three clients during the year and 

a number of pilot projects will be introduced for 

assessment. Following the success of a waste 

minimisation trial, a further five demonstration 

projects will commence in 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 and the 

Department will continue benchmarking with 

industry on waste minimisation practices, widely 

publicising the findings. 

The Department will increase environmental 

awareness within the organisation and define the 

detail ot DPWS' responsibilities in its role of 

establishing the N S W Government as Australia's 

pacesetter in environmental design, energy-

efficiency and ecologically sustainable 

development. This will involve senior managers 

attending regular presentations on key 

environmental issues and briefings to staff on how 

environmental issues relate to their business. The 

Department will also progressively implement 

environmental management plans into all new 

government construction projects. 



Competitive 
husiness services 

that satisfy client needs. 

T h e Department is working to attain a posit ion 

where it becomes a valued partner and service 

provider o f choice for all its clients, helping to 

develop solutions early in the strategic phases o f 

their non-core business functions. T o achieve this 

goal it must place itself at the leading edge of 

modern practices and techniques to ensure clients' 

evolving needs are best served. 

As the Government's manager o f contracting risk 

for capital works over $5a\000, D P W S 

contributes to the Government's strategy o f 

achieving a consistent whole o f government 

approach to planning, coordinating and managing 

the public sector capital works program. T h e 

Department al.so provides selected commercial 

and professional services, using both internal and 

external resources to meet clients' requirements. 

STRATEGIC AUIANCES 

Educarion 

1 he Department has traditionally designed and 

built education facilities for the Department o f 

School Education ( D S E ) and the N S W T A F E 

Commiss ion , and to a lesser extent for other 

educational institutions. Cyclic and emergency 

maintenance services are also provided. 

A Heads o f Agreement between D S E and D P W S 

was signed during the year. This initial agreement 

primarily focuses on delivery o f the capital works 

program and leads the way to an 'umbrella' 

agreement under which specific service agreements 

covering the breadth o f D P W S services will be 

captured. 

T h e electronic data link being trialed with D S E 

was further improved to ensure wider access to the 

data within D S E , and monitoring continued to 

ensure this important communicat ion link 

maximises benefits to the client. 

Education Facilities 

This year's $110 mil l ion capital works program 

consisted o f 37 major projects, including one new 

high school and seven replacement new primary 

schools. T h e remainder o f the projects were major 

upgrades and additions. All construction projects 

exceeded set performance targets, with 100 per 

cent of projects delivered on budget (target 96 per 

cent) and 9 7 per cent delivered on time (target 96 

per cent). 

In consultation with D S E , development o f a new 

schools facilities maintenance contract was 

progressed during the year. Advances in the 

building and construction industry have provided 

an opportunity' to implement a better maintenance 

strategy for schools by letting bulk service 

contracts (or various areas o f the State. It is 

planned to introduce the new contracts in 

1996/97 afi:er fiirther consultation with industry 

and school commimities . TTie new contract 

arrangements aim to improve the building 

environment and lead to an increased level o f 

client satisfaction. All schools across the State will 

enjoy a consistent standard o f school maintenance. 39 



DPWS continued to work with DSE to achieve 

energy efficiency in existing and new school 

projects. Under the E3 Program (Energy 

Efficiency in Educarion) energy efficiency was 

trialed in 10 high schools, achieving electricity 

cosr savings of up to 27 per cenr. The E3 

Program was taken a step fijrther with the 

creation of the DPWS EcoSmart Program which 

saw the incorporation of energy management 

practices into environmental curriculum m 

schools. 

The Department also contmued to provide a 

number of support services to the educarion 

sector, including those of State Mail Service 

(SMS), Q Stores and N S W Supply. The SMS 

dehvered examination papers for the Higher 

School Certificate, the School Certificate and the 

Basic Skills Test around the State efficiently and 

on schedule, under appropriate security 

conditions. The needs of the State's schools were 

w e l l catered for by Q Stores, using normal 

ordering methods and the electronic system, 

Schooline, which is available to the State's 2200 

public schools as well as to non-government 

schools. In 1995 /96 , schools business accoimted 

for nearly 63 per cent of Q Stores' trade. 

NSW TAFE Commission 

During 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 the Department managed a 

capital works program of approximately $50 

million and 11 major projects were completed. 

At the request of the client, a DPWS 

representative Travel led w i t h a N S W TAFE 

Commission officer to the OECD Program on 

Educational Building Steering Committee 

Meeting in France, Thev also h e l d discussions 

w i t h education authorities in the UK and 

Germany in relation to vocational trends in 

Europe a n d their apphcation t o l o c a l practices. 

In line with strengthening relarionships w i t h 

clients, an electronic link was established between 

DPWS and the N S W TAFE Commission to 

provide immediate access to N S W TAFE's 

Capital Works Management System, a database of 

major a n d minor works projects. 
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SPECIALISED SERVICES 

The Deparrment's comprehensive and 

complementary framework of specialised services 

continued to ensure the vast array of agency and 

intra-govemmental activities were effectively and 

efficiently managed, with emphasis on client 

service. 

STATE PROJECTS BUILDINGS integrares 

architecture, engineering and quantity surveying to 

provide comprehensive and quahty-based design 

and consultancy services for natural and built 

assets. Project teams were selected to suit each 

client's specific needs to ensure the outcome 

provided value for money on a whole-of-life basis. 

During the year a range of services were provided 

by specialist unirs: 

The Health and High Technology Unit was 

involved in hospital and healthcare facilities, 

including electromedical and sterilising 

equipment, in hot and warm water systems and 

scald protection. Work was completed during the 

year on the State's most technically advanced 

hospital, the new Children's Hospital at 

Wcstmead, The Deparrment won a commission 

to carry out a review of various Queensland 

hospital master plans, providing an opportunity to 

develop and build on a working relationship with 

inrersrate organisations. 

The Education Unit was involved in new school 

designs incorporating low energy ideas and 

environmenral management principles, as a result 

o f initiatives jointly developed with the 

Department of School Education, Designs 

incorporated adaptabihty to technological 

developments if facilities have to change to meet 

future needs. Lifecycle studies were also carried 

out t o provide the best balance between initial and 

in-use costs. Current principles of environmental 

design were incorporated in the design of schools 

to maximise energy savings. 

The Special Projects Unit completed work on 

designs for the $3.5 million Gorilla Exhibit at 

Taronga Zoo and was involved in refurbishment 

plans for St, Marys Cathedral and the 

redevelopment of Central Railway, 



The Interior Design Group worked on a range of 

clients' buildings and office areas, incorporating 

the latest technology and ergonomic requirements. 

A major project was earned out at Parramatta's 

Heritage Resource Centre. 

The Engineering Services Group continued to 

provide mechanical, electrical and structural 

services as part of teams or decrete specialist 

services covering: 

• heating, air conditioning and ventilation, 

including unrtued gas heaters 

• electricity supply and emergency power, medium 
and high voltage reticulation 

• building control and management systems, fire 

protection, specialist lighting 

• hazardous substances including CFCs, attificial 

fibres and PCBs 

" access and movement of people and materials. 

The Quantity Surveying Section continued its 

role of capital budgeting and cost planning in the 

design of educational, civic and health buildings. 

Life cycle plans were prepared for high schools, a 

laboratory, police stations and workshops. 

Other asset management services, including asset 

valuations and condition audits, maintenance 

budgets and development of cost models were 

prepared for traditional State Government 

agencies, as well as for local government and 

various semi-govemmeni and private sector 

clients. 

The Landscape Design Group provided master 

planning, urban design, landscape architecture and 

heritage conservation to state and local 

government clients through NSW. The gtoup 

worked closely in a team-based approach on 

projects ranging from a streetscape management 

plan for Warringah Council to assisting the 

Olympic Coordination Authority with master 

plan and design work at the 2000 Olympics site 

at Homebush Bay. Relationships were 

strengthened with the National Parks and 

Wildlife Service, particularly with landscape 

projects in the Sydney Harbour National Park 

and on the harbour's islands. 

STATE PROJECTS INFRASTRUCTURE 

provides consultancy services for community 

infrastructure with special expertise in water and 

wastewater systems, dams and river management 

covering: 

• environmental site investigation 

• project investigation 

• feasibility studies 

• concept studies for engineering projects 

• design and documentation 

• specifications 

• project management 

• asset strategies. 

The Dams and Civil Section was re-organised 

during the year to provide a single investigation 

and design office and other specialised services to 

the water industry. Three specialist groups joined 

the Section: 

• Water Technology - handling water quality 

issues and the design of water treatment plants 

• Water Design - responsible for the detail design 

of water supply infirastructure 

• Geotechnical - providing geotechnical 

investigation services for both building and 

infrastructure projects, with a special interest in 

the investigation of contaminated sites. 

Dam engineering continued to provide the major 

work, increasingly directed to dam safety issues. 

Other services covered river management, urban 

flood protection and urban drainage projects. 

Significant projects undertaken dunng the year 

included: 

' final design of the Babagon Dam in Malaysia 

• design of remedial works for Hume Dam 

• water treatment projects at Adclong and Flat 

Rock and a new design membrane filtration 

plant at Collarenebri 

• water quality reports completed for 20 country 
towns 

• feasibility studies for effluent recycling for 

irrigation at Goulbum, Nowra and Picton, 
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The Hydraulics and Water Saving Section 

provided a full range of hydraulic engineering, 

investigative and advisory services to State, 

Commonwealrh and local governments. Water 

audits undertaken at various educational facilities, 

an abattoir and a correcrional centre during the 

year will lead to improved water management 

techniques and will help the cUents reduce 

operational costs. 

In order for clients to better interpret two-

dimensional plans and drawings, the Department's 

Technology Unit produces three-dimensional 

computer models in Rill colour. As well as 

visualising the finished product in a fly-through 

effect, adjustments can be made to plans before 

large costs are incurred. A number of clients 

requested this technique be incorporated into the 

planning phase of their projects, the most notable 

being the Metropolitan Remand and Reception 

Centre, the Gorilla Exhibit at Taronga Zoo and a 

range of schools. 

The former Survey and Land Information Services 

was renamed Geometries Section during the year 

to more accurately reflect the comprehensive range 

of services the Department provides in surveying, 

sewerage reticulation design, computer aided 

drafting and design, geographic information 

systems and the capture, presentation and 

management of spatial information. 

In 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 Geometries supported a wide range 

of projects, including country town water and 

sewerage schemes, coast and estuary management, 

flood and dambreak studies, land subdivision and 

total asset management. 

Stage 3 of the Department of School Education's 

major data capture project conrinued during 

1995 /96 . This project comprises the capture of 

land and building asset information for 800 

primary, infant and special purpose schools which 

will be incorporated into an asset management 

system. 

Other works completed during the year covered 

reticulation designs for six towns, five water 

supply surveys, five hydrographic surveys, 

numerous building surveys and the Orange to 

Cadia Mine effluent transfer system to provide for 

the reuse of treated wastewater from the city of 

Orange, 

The Materials Testing and Chemical Services 

Laboratory expanded its client base during the 

year with increased demand for the laboratory's 

expertise in wastewater and trade waste analysis. 

The laboratory provided regular analytical service 

to 20 local government clients, and eight private 

companies used its services rhrough the year. The 

laboratory also secured an overseas commission 

for a projecr in Papua-New Guinea. 

Manly Hydraulics Laboratory (MHL) provides 

specialist consulting services in rhe fields of water, 

coastal and environmental solutions. The 

laboratory has expertise in numerical modelling, 

physical modelling and field data collection. 

MHL has a client base extending throughout 

Australia and overseas, particularly South-East 

Asia, the Pacific Rim and the Middle East, 

providing its services to consulting engineers, 

government and local government authorities. 

The laboratory's turnover in 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 was $7.1 

million with more than 2 4 0 projects completed 

for clients. These ranged from comprehensive 

investigations of complex issues such as water 

quality modelling of effluent disposal through to 

data collection exercises associated with specific 

projects. 

MHL produced a range of annual data summaries 

lor the waves, winds, tides cind river w a t e r levels 

systems operated on behalf of its chents. During 

rhe year, MHL also published its sixth annual .set 

of tide prediction charts for New South Wales. 

Fourteen new water quality sites were established 

throughout N S W during the year, with a further 

three planned. Electromagnetic wave measuring 

systems were esrablished in the ports of Fremantle 

and Brisbane, and successful project management 

of rhe protection of Aboriginal burial sites at Lake 

Victoria continued. 

N S W Government Information Service (GIS) is 

the Government's only retail outlet for the sale of 

authorised legislation. The GIS also distribures 
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various public sector and commercial publications 

on behalf ol clients and is the central contact 

point tor public inquiries on government 

initiatives and services. Improved inventory 

control and monitoring ensured a high level of 

customer service in the two bookshops and 

through the mail order and subscription services. 

The service published the 1995 N S W 

Government Directory, administered various 

subscription and standing order services and 

coordinated the involvement of government 

agencies in the Government Pavilion at the 

Sydney Royal Easter Show. 

The telephone information service assisted more 

than 125,000 public inquiries during the year, an 

average of 520 per day. 

State Mail Service (SMS) is responsible for the 

daily collection and delivery ot mail for the public 

sector within the Sydney metropolitan area and to 

65 N S W country locations. 

Tlie business operates 24 hours a day, seven days 

a week, including a special service for the N S W 

Police Service, that saves clients time, expense and 

effon. 

SMS offers clients a door-to-door service in the 

Sydney metropolitan area and distribution centres 

in Gostord, Dubbo, Lismore, Bathurst, Orange 

.ind Wollongong. 

SMS was the first government organisation in 

Australia to receive a grant under the Australian 

Best Practice Demonstration Program. This 

recognises the achievement of a corporate culture 

which empowers employees to take responsibility 

for providing superior quality service to customers 

and for commitment to continuous improvement. 

During the year SMS was visited by many groups 

to learn from its succe,sses, and a number of 

presentations were delivered at conferences and 

services to broader audiences by SMS staff. 

The four major clients serviced dunng the year 

were the Department of School Education. N S W 

Police Service, Attorney-General's Department 

.ind Local Courts Administration. SMS prepared 

a profile of N S W TAFE Commission's mail 

operations, including mail flows, costs, size, 

distribution and services used. As a result, N S W 

TAFE asked SMS to undertake an institute-based 

review to market-test the service and identity 

potential savings and efficiencies. 

Through the Government Printing Service 

(GPS), the Department carries out a wide range 

of printing and publishing services for the 

Government and its agencies. 

There were 54 Special Government Gazettes 

during the year, including one late on Christmas 

Eve and one on New Year's Eve, All were 

produced on time. 

The Service provided in-hou,se training to clients' 

staff in the use o f publishing systems, saving 

clients time and expense by selecting the most 

appropriate approach to meet their publishing 

needs. The warehouse manages all forms used by 

37 government agencies and departments. Each 

agency has a specific contract stipulating service 

levels and individual requirements. Tlie warehouse 

procures, .stores and di.srributes to the client's 

offices across the State. 

An electronic data interchange trading system is 

available and all customers receive monthly 

inventory, usage and re-order reports. Electronic 

trading is available to any government agency on 

the system. More than 1100 schools in N S W 

now use the facility via Schooline. 

During the year the Conttacts/Sales section 

issued 2420 quotations varying from $1000 to 

$1.4 million. Ot these. 1822 became jobs 

produced, a success rate of 75.3 per cent for 

the year. 

COUNTERPART REUTIONSHPS 

I he International Business Unit draws on the 

support of all divisions of the Department and 

coordinates the Department's overall business 

effort which is primarily involved in building 

relationships, benchmarking with counterpart 

organisations and the private sector, and 

identifying project work. 

A mutually beneficial working relationship 

between the Department and the National 4 3 



objective 5 

Department of Public Works South Africa was 

formalised in Sydney in March during a visit by 

the South African Director-General and his 

management team. The visit focused on 

understanding the operations of DPWS as a 

commercial counterpart organisation, and 

included the signing of a Declaration of the 

Estabhshment of a Closer Relarionship between 

the two organisations, A number of specialist 

DPWS staff subsequently visited South Africa to 

provide advice on institurional strengthening and 

capacity building. 

The Department also provided specialist advice to 

the Public Works Department, Thailand and to 

the Seoul Metropolitan Government, Republic of 

Korea o n environmental solutions, water supply 

and sewage treatment. Numerous overseas 

delegations visired DPWS offices and projects to 

exchange informarion and ro study our 

methodologies and technologies. 

OVERSEAS BUSINESS 

The Department continued to expand into 

intemational markets, enhancing our overall 

capability and skills of staff, and ensuring our 

commercial competitiveness with the private 

sector. 

Significant overseas projects included: 

• designing a dam in Malaysia 

• investigating a sewage treatment process in 

Korea 

• an energy and water management project in 

Bahrain 

" a coastal zone investigation in Thailand 

• a heritage study in Indonesia 

• training Papua-New Guinea Bureau of Water 

Resources staff in hydrologic, hydraulic and 

water quality monitoring, 

DIRECTIONS FOR 1996/97 

The Department will continue to form strategic 

relationships with clients, such as exist with the 

Department of School Education and Corrective 

Services, to help in developing solutions early in 

clienrs' planning phases. 

To ensure our services are aligned with 

Government expectations o f the Department and 

that they meet clients' requirements all services 

will continue to be reviewed through the course of 

the year and new services will be offered where the 

Department considers ir can provide a marketing 

edge and an identified benefit for clients. 

Cost analysis o f DPWS products and services will 

be completed as part o f the rationalisarion of 

services and a benchmarking process will be 

established to improve services and to provide 

feedback. Further work will be undertaken to 

research and document the benefits of using 

DPWS risk management expertise, contracts, 

specialist services and systems. Overall, the 

Department will become more pro-acrive in 

developing markering straregies to increase marker 

share by strengthening present client relationships 

and building new ones. 

Streamlined processes will be introduced wirhin 

the organisation to ensure clients receive the 

highest level o f service. The roles and services 

available in each Division will be critically 

assessed, with a view of ensuring that solutions for 

clients utilise the expertise within the organisation 

on a cross-divisional basis. 

The Department will continue to seek 

opportunities to market the organisation 

nationally and internationally, recognising that 

these business development efforts generate 

project work and play a significant role in 

determining the market niche the Department will 

have in the future. Relationships with counterpart 

organisations overseas will be encouraged, with a 

number ot established strategic alliances likely to 

result in project opportunities during the year. 

4 4 



Recognition as the hest performing 
puhlic sector organisation 

in New South Wales. 

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 

The year saw a continuing emphasis on focusing 

staff on our major role of adding value to the 

services we offer clients. To achieve this objective, 

the Department implemented measures to 

improve business performance and to develop 

skills across the organisation to meet the 

Government's commitment to increased efficiency 

and lower costs across the whole of government. 

Strategics were implemented to improve the 

capability of the organisation to deliver 

appropriate services that meet our clients' 

emerging and future needs. 

Senior management and staff investigated 

opportunities for continuous improvement in the 

way services arc provided both externally and 

internally. A number of staff development 

programs were directed at the key result areas 0 6 

• Client Service 

• Quality Management, and 

• Business Practices 

in order to equip staff with the necessary skills to 

deliver the best service to the community of New 

South Wales. 

Following a major review of Client Service 

Division's quality systems, a program was 

developed to better align existing quality system 

procedures with key business processes. Work 

began to: 

• standardise and simplify the existing quality 

system and its certification to release staff to 

achieve efficiencies in resources and operations 

• minimise duplication between divisions and 

business units 

• shift the quality system focus from process 
control to service improvement. 

Last year, the State Mail Service received the first 

award presented to a government business 

operation in Australia under the Small and 

Medium Enterprise Round of the Australian Best 

Practice Dcmon-stration Program. Building on 

that achievement, SMS conducted training this 

year related to the award for 100 of its staff TTie 

Program's review panel undertook two on-site 

evaluations of the Service's business, and 

following endorsement of i t s current practices 

approved further progress payments under the 

award guidelines. 

Two of the Department's business units, N S W 

Supply Service and Information Technology 

Service, developed an intensive training program 

for their staff involved in the core business of 

competitive tendering and contracting for goods 

.md services. The aim was to increase staff skills 

and knowledge to improve the Department's 

ability to deliver new and innovative contractual 

.solutions to clients. Staff furthered their career 

goals and developed technical and general 

competencies in areas such as negotiation and 

communication. The program was a joint project 

with N S W TAFE and had the added benefit of 

being articulated to other N S W TAFE courses. 4 5 



Object ive 6 

4 6 

thereby encouraging staff to undertake further 

personal development. 

Through its association with the University of 

Canberra, the Department conducted a number o f 

education and training courses in value 

management and facilitation skills to equip its 

staff with the necessary expertise to provide the 

best service to client agencies. 

SPECIAL EMPLOYMENT PROGRAMS 

Each year a number of high achieving final year 

graduates are chosen by the Department from 

over 100 applicants to participate in a two-year 

Graduare Development Scheme that prepares 

them for a career in Development Management. 

Participants are assigned to mentors who provide 

leadership in developing business skills and 

guidance in strategic thinking, building client 

relationships and career planning. This year four 

young graduates were selected for placement 

within DPWS. bringing the total to 12 

participants currently placed across the 

organisation. 

Employment opporrunities were provided for 

three trainees under the DPWS Traineeship 

Program, which offers young people part-time on-

the-job training and part-time sUidy at a TAFE 

college over a 12 months' period. Four people 

were also placed for six months imder the New 

Work Opportunities Scheme to help train .ind 

give experience in workplace practices to long-

term unemployed persons. 

SHAPING OUR FUTURE 

Two major initiatives were launched in April at 

the Director-General's second address to Sydney 

central business district staff - the 'Vision 2001' 

Strategic Plan and the Best Practice Program. 

Vision 2001 sets out the Dcpartmcnr's vision, 

mission and values and outlines the six key 

objectives that must be met within the five-year 

plan ro achieve our vision. In this Annual Report 

the Department's activities and performance are 

reported against these six objectives. Vision 2001 

was developed in consultation with over 300 staff 

and provides all staff wirh a focus for the future. 

Following the launch a comprehensive 

communicarions program ensured all staflf across 

the State were thoroughly briefed by senior 

managemenr on the implications of the straregic 

plan and how it would be linked to their busmess 

plans. 

The corporate Best Practice Program provides the 

framework to align the whole organisation with 

Vision 2001. The focus of the program is on 

improving the organisation's core processes and. 

as a result, reducing bureaucracy and hierarchy in 

the organisarion, improving communication and 

achieving a measurable difference in client service, 

employee satisfaction and financial performance. 

The Best Practice Program will be driven in the 

coming year by a Best Practice group drawn from 

across the orgamsanon. 

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

A number of organisational development activities 

were undertaken or initiated during 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 to 

improve current performance and develop 

capabihtics for the future, 

• Recognising the critical role of SES officers in 

the Department's performance, a survey was 

conducted in August on issues which included: 

organisational structure, srraregy. planning, 

communications, teamwork and client service. 

Major issues have been addressed through more 

inclusive planning processes and staff briefings 

by the Director-General. The SES Performance 

Planning and Review System was also improved 

to provide a clearer tocus on performance. 

• An orientation program tor staff was introduced 

to build a stronger understanding of the 

diversity of the Department and its role. The 

program included presentations by the Director-

General and divisional Directors. During the 

year 70 staff from a cross-section of business 

units and grades participated in the program. 

• A staff training and development checklist was 

introduced to help staff and managers analy,se 

development needs and identify options to 

address them. 

• .\ review of the Staff Performance Management 



objective 6 

System was substantially completed by a 

working group with union representatives in line 

with the Department's Enterprise Agreement. 

TTie new system will be simpler and will 

emphasise staff development and role clarity 

more than previous systems. 

• An approach to providing 360-degree appraisal 

processes through staff and peer questionnaires 

is being prepared for trial. This is designed to 

improve communication and align our corporate 

culture with our values. 

• A review of staff training requirements was 

conducted with business units and a 

specification developed to find a suitable 

provider of training services for the Department. 

The last three initiatives will be fully implemented 

in 1996/97. 

WIDE PARTICIPATION IN ENTERPRISE 
BARGAINING 

Enterprise bargaining continued to be the major 

indu.strial relations issue during the year, with 

emphasis on the continued participation of staff 

and their unions. 

The Department ot Public Works and Services 

Enterprise Agreement was registered during the 

year. This covers all salaried staff ot the 

Department, with the exception of those in the 

Government Printins; Service and the State Mail 

Ser\'ice. Simplified salary scales and more flexible 

hours of work were major features of the 

agreement. 

T he State Mail Service continues to be covered by 

a separate agreement, as do the wages staff of the 

Department. These agreements have both reached 

the end of their norma! term and negotiations 

continued on replacement agreements. 

N o time was lost during the year as a result of 

local industrial action. 

INTERNAL COMMUNICATION 

Improving communication at all levels and 

between levels of staff was identified early in the 

year for priority attention. 

During the year the Direaor-General held two 

major addresses to staff in the Sydnev central 

business district and he visited the majority of 

metropolitan and country centres to meet and 

addrc-ss staff The Minister for Public Works and 

Services, the Hon Car! Scully also visited many 

city and metropolitan offices and several country 

centres where he addressed staff. Divisional 

Directors and Branch Managers held regular 

meetings with staff to discuss issues and to hear 

the views of staff. 

A new staff-focused newsletter 'Horizons' 

commenced in October and was produced 

monthly, providing a conduit to keep staff 

regularly informed ot the latest developments and 

progress in the organi,sation. 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

A major review ot the hl£0 Management Plan 

was undertaken to focus on four key points: 

• recruitment and selection 

• development and career planning 

• quality of working life 

• communication. 

An oversight committee, including the Director-

General and the Director of Equal Opportunity in 

Public Employment, was established to guide 

activities in these areas. 

The Department actively supported EEO through 

policies, programs and promotions during the 

year. Achievements included; 

• improved flexible work practices, including an 

extension of flexible hours through the 

Enterprise Agreement and the introduction of a 

working-from-home (telecommuting) policy 

• improved recruitment and selection processes, 

with training (including coverage of EEO) a 

requirement for all staff who sit on selection 

panels 

• the DPWS Women's Network was re-aligned 

with the Spokeswomen's Program, and elections 

were held to revitalise membership 
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• an International Women's Day limcfi was held for staff, hosted by and with a major presentation from 

the Director-General. 

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH, SAFETY AND REHABILITATION (OHS&R) 

The Occupational Health and Safety Manual was revised and reissued, further promoting the integration 

of OHS&R into all aspects of the Department's activities. 

The OHS&R committees continued to perform a valuable role with their skills and experience in 

information dissemination, problem identification, provision of reconmiendations and promotion of 

general safety, which is continually improving. 

Only 0.21 per cent of available working hours were lost due to workplace injury, compared to 0.273 per 

cent in 1994 /95 . 

PEOPLE 

Staff numbers reduced by 8 per cent from 2632 to 2423 during the year. This reduction was achieved 

through natural attrition and a targeted voluntary redundancy program, A total of 19 staff accepted 

voluntary redundancy (16 salaried and five wages staff). 

The Department moved to an enterprise agreement structure during the year. Consequently, statistics 

comparing the distribution of staff from previous years on an award basis has not been made. 

Staff as at 30 June 1996 

Category 3 0 Irnie 1996 30 June 1995 

Public Sector Management Act/SES 

Wages Staff 

Other 

TOTALS 

2 0 0 9 

406 

8 

2 4 2 3 

2 I 7 I 

427 

34 

2632 

Distribution of Staff 

Category 30 June 1996 

Chief & Senior Executive Service 

Staff 

Professional 

Technical 

Projea 

W a g e s Staff Enterprise Agreement 

State Mail Service Enterprise Agreement 

TOTAL 

4 3 

I I 5 8 

4 4 5 

93 

119 

406 

159 

2 4 2 3 

4 8 

Notr The abeve cattgorits an baseJ on three enterprisi agreements operating in DPWS and the SES 

* 'Staff represent a broad administraUve and clerical grouping 

* 'Project' mainly includes construction supervisors 

* The Government Printing Service has been included under 'Staff 
* As the Department has moved to an enterprise agreement, comparison to previous years' award classification groupings is not relevant. 



Object ive 6 

Chief Executive and Senior Executive Service 

Number of positions 

CES/SES Bands Former SES Levels 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 1994 /95 

4 Upper 8 

4 Lower 7 I 2 

3 Upper 6 I I 

3 Lower 5 4 5 

2 Upper 4 4 9 

2 Lower 3 19 14 

I Upper 2 I I 17 

1 Lower I 14 31 

TOTAL 5 4 79 

SES Women 3 4 

Note: 
• ThestJigurei represfot iht approv til cslahlishment and indude vaiaul positions 
• Tlx numher of SES positions wert reductd hy onMhird during / 99 5 /96 in accordance with G>vemment policy 
• A new SES hand strwlvrt was introduced on I October 1995 rrpianng she former eight levels (column 2) 

Representation of EEO Target Groups Witfiin Salary Levels 

Total Staff 

1995/96 1994/95 

Women 

1995/96 1994/95 

NESB 

1995/96 1994/95 

< $ 2 I 8 5 9 39 23 21 II 2 2 

53.8% 47% 5.1% 8.7% 

$ 2 I 8 6 0 - $ 2 8 7 I I 308 386 119 145 8 91 

38.6% 37.5% 2.6% 23.5% 

$ 2 8 7 I 2 - $ 3 2 0 9 6 205 265 113 150 2 0 59 

55 .1% 56.6% 9.8% 22.2% 

$ 3 2 0 9 7 - $ 4 0 6 I 7 373 436 115 143 4 7 92 

30.8% 32.7% 12.6% 21.1% 

$ 4 0 6 1 8 - 5 5 2 5 2 4 636 723 98 122 106 165 

15.4% 16.8% 16.7% 22.8% 

$ 5 2 5 2 5 - $ 6 5 6 5 5 4 0 3 267 3 0 28 53 71 

7.4% 10.4% 13.2% 26.5% 

> S 6 5 6 5 5 53 108 4 6 N d I I 

7.5% 5.5% 10.1% 

TOTAL 2017 2208 500 605 2 3 6 491 

Note: 
* Figures exclude wc^s stajf 
• NESB represents non English-speaking background 

' The figures provided for the NESB category were obtained from annual survey questionnaires. The comparative figures can fluctuate as they 
are based on the number of queslionnaires received In 1993/96 58% of staff replied to the questionnaires. 49 



PLANNING FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Progress was made during the year in developing an awareness of disability issues by reviewing the 

disability plans of the previous agencies which combmed to form DPWS. 

Physical access is now considered as part of any premises review conducted by D P W S architects, and 

architectural design services recognise the needs of people with a disability in all projects designed for 

our clients. 

In addition, the Department modified its recruitment policy and featured issues of'reasonable 

adjustment' in its recruiting and selection training. 

The EEO survey conducted during the year provided the opportuniry for staff with disabilities to 

identifj' themselves and any adjustments needed in their workplaces. This database will enable 

communications and a network to be established with these sraff in the fliture. 

Representation and Recruitment of Aboriginal Employees 
and Employees with a Physical Disability 

Total Staff 

1 9 9 5 / 9 6 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 

Aboriginal Staff 

1 9 9 5 / 9 6 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 

PWPD 

1 9 9 5 / 9 6 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 

Total Employees 2 0 1 7 2208 4 17 93 121 

0.2% 0.7% 4.6% 5.4% 

Recruited in Year 145 212 I 3 Na 5 

NoU: 
• figuTii excludi •jiiages staff 
" PHTD standi for ptopU with physical disabilities 
• The figuns provided for Aboriginal staff and people with physical disability were obtained from annual survey questionnaires. The 

comparative figures can fluctuate as they are based on the number of questionnaires received. In 199'}/9b 58% of staff replied to the 
(juestionnaires. 

REVIEW AND IMPROVEMENT 

Risk Management and Insurance 

DPWS has full workers' compensation, motor vehicle accident, property, liability and miscellaneous 

cover provided rhrough the N S W Treasury Managed Fund (TMF). The Department is committed to 

using risk management principles to minimise both risk exposures and premium costs. Initiatives taken 

include risk transfer relating to engagement of contract staff, pre-employment medical assessment and 

transfer of risk to service providers. 
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Object ive 6 

Workers' Compensation 

PREMIUM COSTS 

Final premium projertions for 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 indicate 

that workers' compensation costs have 

significantly reduced as a result of the 

Depanment's restructuring, which reduced risk 

exposures and improvements in the areas of 

rehabilitation and claims management. 

The significant increase in this year's deposit 

premium is the result of the TMF changing to the 

use of benchmarks for premium calculations. 

Projections indicate that the Department should 

receive a substantial refijnd as the premium paid 

far exceeds estimated claim costs. 

WORKIiRS' COMPENSATJON PRIiMIUM COSTS 

0.8-

-0.2-

- U -
9 1 / 9 2 9 2 / 9 3 9 3 / 9 4 9 4 / 9 5 9 5 / 9 6 

I I Dfpoji l Premium | | | P̂ t̂ 
B.irbucs/.\cldi[ianal 

. iLuns 

COST PER EMPLOYEE 

TTie premium cost per employee reduced to $779 

in 1995/96 , a decrease of 10 per cent from 

1994 /95 . These figures are based on actual and 

estimated final premium costs. 

WORRIERS' COMPENSATION COST PER EMPLOYEE 

$1000 
900 
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300 
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J 

9 1 / 9 2 9 2 / 9 3 9 3 / 9 4 9 4 / 9 5 9 5 / 9 6 

1̂ Cosr Pit Rmpliiicf 

HEARING LOSS CLAIMS 

A significant reduction in hearing loss claims has 

occurred, resulting from scaled down high risk 

activities. This trend reflects the industry practice, 

which peaked in 1993 /94 . of lodging claims for 

high noise exposures which occurred over the past 

10 to 30 years. 

20.0% 

10.0% 

5.0% 

0.0% 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION - HEARING LOSS 

I • 
9 1 / 9 2 9 2 / 9 3 9 3 / 9 4 9 4 / 9 5 9 5 / 9 6 

Hearing Last, as a PcrCfnlagf o f Total Q u m Numbrrs 
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Object ive 6 

NUMBER OF WORKERS" COMPENSATION CLAIMS 

500^ 

400-

300-

200-

100. 

0 
9 1 / 9 2 9 2 / 9 3 9 3 / 9 4 9 4 / 9 5 9 5 / 9 6 

m NumlHT of Cliutis 

Reduced Workers' Compensation Claims 

NUMBER OF CLAIMS 

This year's result of 141 claims is a 17.5 per cent 

improvement on 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 results. 

FREQUENCY OF WORKERS' COMPENSATION CLAIMS 

14-| 

12-

10-

8-

6-

4-

2-

0 
9 1 / 9 2 9 2 / 9 3 9 3 / 9 4 9 4 / 9 5 9 5 / 9 6 

^1 Qanns per 100 Employees 

CLAIMS FREQUENCY 

This year's result of 5.97 claims per 100 

employees is a substantial improvement on the 

1 9 9 4 / 9 5 claims frequency of 6.41 claims. 

0.8 

07 

0.6 
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0 
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-0.2-
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MOTOR VEHICLE FLEET PREMIUM COSTS 

9 1 / 9 2 9 2 / 9 3 9 3 / 9 4 9 4 / 9 5 9 5 / 9 6 

I I Deposit Preimii Rebares/ Addi uorul 
PremTUms FinJ] Prcinium Cosi 

Motor Vehicle Fleet 

PREMIUM COSTS 

Premiums levied by the TMF in 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 

increased due to the introducrion of benchmarks 

to set base premium charges. A hindsight 

adjustment will be calculated by the TMF at the 

end of December 1996 which could result in a 

small rebate. 
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Objective 6 

Cost Per Vehicle 

TTie premium cost per vehicle rose by 45 per cent 

over 1994 /95 . This increase was mainly due to 

increased costs passed on by smash repairers. This 

is evidenced by rises in the average cost of claims. 

MOTOR VKHICIJ-; l-LHET PREMIUM COST 

9 1 / 9 2 9 2 / 9 3 9 3 / 9 4 94 /95 9 5 / 9 6 

Cos! Per Vfhitic 

Number of Claims 

The total number ot claims lodged was 160, 

which was 3.6 per cent lower than 1994 /95 . 

M O T O R VEHICLE FLEET - NUMBER OE ACCIDENT CLAIMS 

9 1 / 9 2 9 2 / 9 3 93/> 9 4 / 9 5 9 5 / 9 6 

I I Cliuns Taigrt Atnul Qauns 

Clauns Frequency 

The frequency of claims in 1995/96, compared to 

overall fleet size was 24.5 claims per 100 vehicles. 

This was marginally above the target of 24. 

MOTOR VLHK:LE ACCIDENT CLAIMS FREQUENCY 
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Property Exposures 

Success with strategies adopted to reduce 

exposures and claims resulted in the Department 

receiving a rehate of $109,269 on the 1 9 9 3 / 9 4 

deposit premium paid to the TMF. 

Liability Exposures 

Current trends indicate that this category of claim 

has the potential to become a major cost due to an 

increased awareness ot litigation processes. 

A rebate of $21,753 was received from the TMF 

for the 1 9 9 1 / 9 2 premium year. 

INTERNAL AUDIT BRANCH 

The Department's internal control and audit 

processes were assessed against Treasury's 

Statement of Best Practice. 

The Internal Audit Branch undertook 75 planned 

and special audits during the year. The special 

audits included invesngations into possible 

fraud/corruption/probity issues, system 

performance evaluations, assessment of 

contractors claims, fringe benefits tax, supply fees 

and the winding up o f a major computer firm. 

In total, the branch made 462 recommendarions 

in audit reports and memos to improve internal 

controls, procedures, efficiency and effectiveness 

o f the organisation, and 95 per cent o f these 

recommendations were accepted. 

To broaden staff experience and knowledge, an 

assignment was contracted out to a major 

accountmg firm. This enabled the branch to gain 

an understanding of the skills, experrise, approach 

and benchmarking information available in the 

private sector. 

The work of the Internal Audit Branch generated 

substantial benefiLs for the Department during the 

year, including: 

• successfiil completion of most ot the branch's 

audit program 

• identification of uncollected supply fee revenue 

from a number of contract suppliers 

' review from probity perspective of the adequacy 

of procedures and controls over calling 

expressions of interest and tenders on several 

projects 

• review of the electronic fiinds transfer (EFT) 

system to improve its efficiency and 

effectiveness 

• joint audit with the Department of Urban 

Affairs and Planning of the construction 

management of the City West project 

• improving the administrative procedures of the 

National Centre of Value Management, a 

partnership between DPWS and the University 

of Canberra 

• review of rhe policies, systems and procedures in 

assessing tenderers to ensure that assessments are 

effective, timely, and minimise risks to clients 

• practical educational seminar for staff to 

minimise opportunities for corruption and to 

improve integrity through organisational and 

attitudinal change 

• continuing to implement the Department's fraud 
and corruption control strategy. 

EXTERNAL AWARDS 

The Department won a number ot prestigious 

Royal Australian Institute of Architects' (RAJA) 

Awards. 

The Government Architect, Chris Johnson 

received the President's Award for 'consistent 

dedication to the promotion of architecture'. 

Other RAIA Awards were: 

New Childrens Hospital, Westmead 

Merit Award for Civic Design 

Coffs Harbour Education Campus 

Blacker Award 

Railway Institute Building 

Conservation Commendation 

Paul Bradley 

1996 Architects' Board Student's Prize 
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Other awards included: 

Hastings District Water Supply 

1995 Royal Australian Planning Institute 

Planning and Development category 

loy Singh 

1996 International Specialised Skills 

Traming Fellowship (Venice Smdy Tour) 

DIRECTIONS FOR 1995/96 

A tocus during the coming year will be on 

improving service outcomes and ensuring the 

Deparnnent's resources arc directed towards 

clients' emerging and future needs. 

In order to equip staff with the necessary skills, 

staff development will be directed at achieving 

increased flexibility and new skills by introducing 

ongoing development programs in key areas ot 

client service, information management and 

technologies, environmental awareness, strategic 

planning, business management and continuous 

quality improvement. A range of programs will be 

developed and training of staff will be prioritised. 

The Department's inaugural Corporate Plan will 

be implemented through the year. Tl ie Plan aims 

to better align the Department's services, systems 

and culnire with the fiiture needs ot clients. 

Actions and targets outlined in the Plan will be 

progressed by task force groups drawn from 

across the organisation, and will be regularly 

monitored and adjusted if required during the 

implementation period. 

A corporate Best Practice Program, launched in 

April 1996, will operate on a five-year basis to 

coincide with the Department's strategic plan. 

Vision 2001. During the year a program manager 

will be appointed to lead a corporate best practice 

group. It will be the role of the group to develop 

best practice plans, to form up a number of 

process review teams and to redesign selected key 

processes at all levels of the organisarion. 

Management and leadership training will be 

critical to achieving best practice and if is planned 

to introduce a 360-degree staff appraisal process 

to improve commimicarion and to align the 

Department's corporate culture with its values. 

A new business practice model will be developed 

during the year to create a more integrated 

business climate and a review will be undertaken 

to rationalise existing systems to eliminate 

duplication. 

Improving communications at all levels and 

between levels of staff will continue to have a high 

priority. Regular staff surveys will be conducted 

and an overall corj.̂ orate communications strategy 

will be implemented. 
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( I ) (Est) (Est) (Est) 
9 4 / 9 5 9 5 / 9 6 9 6 / 9 7 9 7 / 9 8 9 8 / 9 9 
Actual Actual Target Target Target 

EFFICIENCY 

Employment 2632 2 4 2 3 N A N A NA 
Total Expenditure ($M) 309.8 300.9 306.7 307.4 308.7 
Revenue per employee (S'OOO) I3I .9 136.2 133.3 135.4 137.5 

Hrs lost to Industnal Disputes 

- per employee 0 0 0 0 0 
- total ('000) 0 0 0 0 0 

Average days sick leave/employee: 
- Salary staff 5.6 6.0 5.5 5.0 4.5 
- Wages staff 6.5 6.6 6.1 5.6 5.1 
- Total staff 5.7 6.1 5.6 5.1 4.6 

Employee Safety Measure (2) 0.273 0.213 N A N A N A 

SERVICE 

Number ot construction contracts let >$0 .25M 399 3 0 7 350 390 430 
Total number ot construction contracts let 1857 1093 1050 1000 1000 

Building Projects: (3) 

- Completed On Time (%) 96.0 97 96 97 97 
- Completed On Budget (%) 100.0 100 97 97 97 
- Completed On T i m e and On Budget (%) 98.0 97 96 97 97 

Engineering Projects: (4) 
- Completed On Time (%) 98.7 98.35 98.5 98.5 98.5 
- Completed On Budget (%) 100.0 98.95 99.0 99.0 99.0 
- Completed On Time and On Budget (%) 98.7 97.35 98.0 98.0 98.0 

Minor Works & Maintenance Projects: (4) 
- Completed On Time (%) 99.0 98 .02 98.0 98.0 98.0 
- Completed On Budget (%) 99.0 98.73 99.0 99.0 99.0 
- Completed On Time and On Budget (%) 99.0 97.41 98.0 98.0 98.0 

Value ot purchases through goods & 

services period contracts f$M) 
1275 1275 1301 1327 1350 

Nimiber of goods & services conrracts 590 300 N A N A NA 
Number of goods & services contract hne items 126500 1 5 5 0 0 0 NA NA NA 
Number of vehicles leased by State Fleet 10938 1 2 0 0 4 12300 13000 13530 
Capital assets under management ($M) 384 3 8 4 400 480 500 
Commercial space under 
management (square metres) 313065 3 1 6 6 0 3 338000 338000 338000 
Number ot commercial properties/building 
under management 125 125 167 162 160 
Crown property sales ($M) 0.8 87 46.5 18 2 
Communications carrier rebates to 
N S W Government ($M) (5) 27 26 18 19 19 
Coirmiunications earner discounts to 

N S W Government ($M) (5) 31 3 0 26 27 28 
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0) (Est) (Est) (Est) 

9 4 / 9 5 9 5 / 9 6 9 6 / 9 7 9 7 / 9 8 9 8 / 9 9 
Actual Actual Target Target Target 

FINANCIAL 

Government Funded Services ($M) (6) 29.3 32.1 30.3 30.3 30.3 

Asset sales ($M) (7) 7.9 137.9 6.1 6.1 3.7 

Operating Result ($M) (8) 33.5 20.7 8.2 12.3 16.2 

Return on Shareholders Funds (%) 11.7 I I .6 4.4 6.5 8.3 

Dividend/Tax Pa)Tnents to Government ($M) (9) 27.8 153.5 5.7 8.6 11.3 

F O O T N O T E S 

NA Not available 

1. All dollar amounts are reported in 1996 prices. 

2. Total time lost from work-related injuries in hours divided by total time worked, expressed 

as a percentage. 

,V RcJatcs to .ill D P W S " projects over $ 5 0 0 , 0 0 0 . 

4. Relates to all DPWS' projects over $100,000. 

5. Subject to agencies maintaining current arrangements. 

6. Services and activities performed for Government which are not funded through fees from clients. 

7. The results for 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 includes a sale ot the Department's motor vehicle fleet. 

8. Operating result before income tax, Government Capital Grants, Abnormal Items and Dividends. 

9. The 1995 /96 result includes a special dividend of $I38.9M from the sale and lease back of vehicles 

(102.9M) and a capital restructure (36M). 

10. The 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 expenditure includes the written down value of motor vehicles ($I27 .3M) from the 
sale and Iea.seback of StateFleet vehicles to the Macquarie Bank. 
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HIGHLIGHTS 
• An operating surplus of $20.7M before income tax, capital grants, .ibnornial items and dividends. 

• Total distribution w Treasury under rhe Government's Fin.inki.il I distribution Policy of $I53.5M. 

This included a Depamnent capital rcstiiicture ($36M) and a dividend of $I02 .9M from the sale and 

leaseback of the Department's vehicles to the Macquarie Bank. 

' Achievement of the financial targets set in the 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 Statement of Financial Performance. 

BUDGET COMPARISONS 
1 9 9 5 / 9 6 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 

Budget Actual Budget 

$'000 $'000 $'000 

Income 

Fees 184.355 175,157 175.471 

Sales and Services 133,203 127,232 122,300 

Interest Received 7,816 10,739 9,000 

Proceeds from Asset Disposals 4,963 137,985 5,909 

Management Fees 256 5 5 0 -
Other Income - 2,576 8 4 4 

Treasury Funding 2.060 2,060 1.833 

332 ,653 4 5 6 , 2 9 9 315 ,357 

Expenditure 

Salaries/Wages and Related Expenses 156,183 147,224 144,973 

Cost of Sales - Goods and Services 88,002 85,279 88,970 

Plant Expenses 3,300 3,292 3,101 

Occupancy 17,851 2X&22 18,614 

Travel 1,577 1,373 1,592 

Otiiet 47,164 35.941 45,407 

W n \ ' o t A s s e t s Disposed 3 , 5 6 4 137,988 4.096 

Provisions 332 610 -

317 ,973 435 .529 306 ,753 

Operating Surplus 14,680 20,770 8.604 

Capital Grants 1.227 5,982 4,582 

Abnormal Superannuation Adjustment - 22.881 -
Income Tax F.quivalent (5.285) (7,477) (2.953) 

Dividend (4,991) (7,062) (2,789) 

Net Sin^Ius 5,631 35,094 7,444 

Capital Restructure Dividend - 138,984 -

6 0 
Nott: The Proaciis from Asset Dtspcsah and Written Down Value of Assets Llisposri! nuhides a change in accounting treatmtnt to rrfl/et the 
sale of StateFieet vehicles to the Macquarie Bank. See the notes to the financial statementsforfurther information. 
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INCOME FOR 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 
Tlic main variations between budget and actual income are: 

• Restructure of major client departments and the Government's budgetary constraints during the year 

had a significant impact on Fee Revenue and Sales and Services. 

• hitcrcst received exceeded budger as investments with the Treasury Corporation realised better than 

budgeted returns. 

• Proceeds fi-om asset disposal are in excess of budget resulting firom the disposal and leaseback of the 

Department's moror vehicle fleet. 

EXPENDITURE FOR 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 
rhe m.ijor variations between budget and actual expenditure are: 

• Salaries/Wages and related expendinire is under budget resulting fi^om a reduction in the EFT 

equivalent stall numbers during the year. 

• rhe Department has leased office space surj.ilus to its requirements. In accordance with Accounting 

Standards the cost of fiiturc lease payments from which no economic benefit will derive has been 

expensed. This has resulted in an increase in occupancy costs of $8M. 

• Other expenditure is under budget as a result of savings on all overhead expense items. 

• I lie written down value of assets disposed is above budget due Co the disposal and lea.icback ai the 

Department's motor vehicle fleet. 

1 9 9 6 / 9 7 BUDGET 
I he [^)9b/^)7 budget h.is been liamed to take into account the Ciovcrnmeni s budgerarj' constraints, a 

reduced revenue stream from the rationalisation o f client agencies together with the further cost o f 

surplus lease accommodation from the amalgamation of the Department. The budget also reflects the 

commitment to the implementation of the Department's Information Technology Strategic Plan. 

The 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 Statement of Financial Performance has been negotiated with Treasury which will result 

in a distribution to the Government in taxation equivalents and dividend pavmcnts o f $5.7M. 
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BOX 12 GPO 
SYDNEY NSW 2001 

I N D E P E N D E N T A U D I T R E P O R T 

D E P A R T M E N T O F P U B L I C W O R K S A N D S E R V I C E S 

To Members of the New South Wales Parliament and Director-General 

Scope 

I have audited the accounts of the Depanmeni of Public Works and Services for the year ended 30 June 1996. The 
preparaiion and preseniation of the financial statements consisting of ihe accompanying balance sheei. income and 
expenditure statement and stalemenl of cash flows, together with Ihe notes thereto and the information eontamed 
therein is the responsibility of the Director-General, My responsibility is to express an opinion on these stalemenls lo 
Members of the New Souih Wales Parliament and ihe Director-Genera I based on my audil as required by sections 34 
and 45F( I) of the Puhik Finanve ami Audil An I9S.I 

My audil has been conducted in accordance wiih the provisions of the Acl and Australian Auditing Standards to 
provide reasonable assurance as lo whether the financial Riaiemenl.s arc free of material mi.sstatcmem. My 
procedures included examination, on a lest basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and olhcr disclosures in the 
financial statemenls, and ihe evaluation of accounling policies and significant accounting eslimates. These 
procedures have been undertaken lo form an opinion a.s to whether, in all material respects, the financial stalemenls 
are presented fairly in accordance with the requirements of the Puhiii Finance and Audi! Avi IVH3. Accounling 
Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements (Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views) so as lo 
present a view which is consistent with my understanding of the Department's financial position, the results of its 
operations and its cash flows. 

The audil opinion expressed in this report ha-s been fonned on the above basis. 

Audit Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements of the Department of Public Works and Services comply wiih section 45E 
and 4IB of Ihe Acl and present fairly in accordance wiih applicable Accounting Siandard.s and other mandatory 
professional reporting requirements the financial position of ihe Department as at 30 June 1996 and ihe results of its 
operations and if; cash flows for the year then ended. 

Inherent Uncertainty Regarding Superannuatinn 

Without qualification lo Ihe opinion expressed above, atlentinn is drawn to Ihe following malter. As indicated in 
Note 2 to the financial statements, it is disclosed ihai uncertainty currently exists concerning certain taxation 
allocations thai may impacl virtually all of the individual employer reserve balances of the Slate Authorities 
.Superannualinn Board - Pooled Fund. Until resolution of thi.s uncertainly, the quantum of the financial effect on the 
individual employer reserves is unclear The same situation existed al 30 June IQQ̂ . 

P, CARR. FCPA 
DIRECTOR OF AUDIT 

(duly authorised by the Auditor-General of New South Wales 
under section 45F(1 A) of the Acl) 

SYDNEY 
21 October 1996 
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SERVICES 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 1996 
CERTIFICATE UNDER SEaiON 41C (IB) & (1C) OF THE 
PUBLIC FINANCE AND AUDIT A O , 1983 

In my opinion the financial statements, consisting of the Income and Bxpenditure Statement, Balance 

Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes attached thereto for the financial year ended 30 June 1996 

exhibit a true and fair view of the financial position and transactions of rhe Department of Public 

Works and Services. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of 

the Public Finance and Audit Act, 1983. the Public Finance and Audit (General) Regviiarion, 1995, the 

Trca.surer's Directions as they relate to the preparation of those Accounts and with other mandatory 

professional reporting requirements (Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views). 

1 am not aware ar this time of any circumstances which would render any particulars in the financial 

statements to be misleading or inaccurate. 

Dick Persson 

Dirccror-Gencral 

Department of Public Works and Services 
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SERVICES 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 1996 

1995 1996 

$'000 Notes $'000 

INCOME 

190,926 Fees 1(h) 175,157 

126,083 Sales and services 3 127,232 

8,918 Inrerest 4 10,739 

7.850 Proceeds from disposal of non current assets 137.985 

2.312 Management fees 5 550 

8,433 Other i n c o m e 6. 1(g) (h) 2.576 

2,796 Treasurj' funding "+ 
/ 2,060 

347 ,318 4 5 6 , 2 9 9 

EXPENDITURE 

126.106 Salaries and wages 8 122,762 

7,114 Recreation leave 27 7,931 

3.537 Long service leave m 3,985 

11.503 Superannuation 2 12.546 

82,233 Cost ot sales - goods and services 10 85,279 

3,392 Plant expen,scs 3.292 

1.011 Management fees 11 -
15.631 Occupancy 12 23.822 

1,577 Travel 13 1,373 

54,210 Other 14 35.941 

5,059 Written down value ol non current assets sold 137,988 

2,436 Provisions - other 27 610 

313 .809 4 3 5 , 5 2 9 

OPERATING SURPLUS before Income Tax, Government 
33 .509 Capital Grants, Abnormal Items and Dividends 20 .770 

8,773 Government Capital Grants 15 5.982 

(16,205';. Abnormal Irems 16 22,881 

26 .077 OPERATING SURPLUS before Income Tax and Dividends 4 9 . 6 3 3 

12,391 Income Tax Equivalent 27 7.477 

13,686 OPERATING SURPLUS after Income Tax 42 ,156 

277,738 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS I July 1995 282,223 

4,032 Transfers from reserves 29 -

295 .456 T O T A L AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 324 ,379 

13,233 Dividend payable to State Government 1(0.27 146,046 

282 ,223 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 3 0 JUNE 1996 178,333 

64 The abovf Income and Expetidilure Statement is to he read in conjunction with the attached notes. 



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SERVICES 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 30 JUNE 1996 

1995 1996 
$'000 Note S'OOO S'OOO 

CURRENT ASSETS 

157,316 Cash at hank and in hand 17 65,160 
52.254 Receivables - trade 18 57,419 
67,636 Sundry debtors and prepayments 19 83,390 
76,497 Investments 4 106,758 
11.822 Investment propcnics 20 3,304 
7.498 Inventories I(j).2I 9.528 

373.023 325.559 

N O N - C U R R E N T ASSETS 

163.858 Property plant and equipment 22 66.355 
262 Leasehold improvements 23 81 

36,394 Other 2 4 40,129 

200,514 106.565 

573 ,537 TOTAL ASSETS 4 3 2 , 1 2 4 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

37.455 Trade creditors 25.746 
105,685 Sundry creditors and accruals 25 94,650 
36.871 Work in progress 26 43.563 
54,408 Provisions 27 30.002 

234,419 193.961 

N O N - C U R R E N T LIABILITIES 
18.176 Provisions 27 17.362 
36.380 Other 28 40,129 

54,556 57,491 

288.975 TOTAL LIABILITIES 251 ,452 

284 ,562 N E T ASSETS 180,672 

RETAINED EARNINGS 
282,223 Accumulated Funds 178.333 

2,339 Reserves 29 2.339 

284,562 180,672 

ITif ahcvr Baltimt Shtet is to he read in conjmetion with the attached notes^ 
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SERVICES 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 1996 

1995 

Inflows 

(Outflows) 

$'000 Notes 

1996 
Inflows 

(Outflows) 

$'000 

943,147 

(932,084) 

7.192 

(4,336) 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

Receipts from Operations 

Payments to Suppliers and Employees 

Interest Received 

Income Tax Equivalent Payments 

1(h) 

1(h) 

27(d) 

1,296,267 

(1,310,376) 

14,590 

(13,380) 

13,919 Net Cash from / (used in) Operating Activities (a) 38(b) (12,899) 

(78,265) 

(172) 

58,304 

Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Purcimse of Investment Properties 

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 

(48.782) 

137,985 

(20,133) Net Cash from / (used in) Investing Activities (b) 89.203 

8,773 

2,796 

7,334 

(8,390) 

Cash Flows from Government 

Other Receipts - Government Capital Grants 

- Treasury Funding (Surplus Staff^ 

- Provision of Services to Government 

Dividend paid to State Government 27(e) 

5,982 

2,060 

5,976 

(152.217) 

10.513 Net Cash trotn/(providcd to) Government [^c) (138,199) 

4 ,299 Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash, ie, (a)+(b)+(c) (61,895) 

229,514 Openmg Cash Balance 233,813 

233 ,813 CLOSING CASH BALANCE 38, .1) 1 7 L 9 I 8 
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SERVICES 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 1996. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The l\-p.inincnt orPiiblic Works and Scr\iccs , DPWS) provides a range of services ro Govemmcni, 

including advice on informarion technology and telecommunications, total asset management, 

procurement and supply of a wide range of goods and services, environmentally sensitive design and the 

strategic management of government property assets, 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Ihe pnncipal accounting policies adopted in preparing the accounts of DPWS are stated to assist in a 

general understanding of these accounts. These policies have been consistendy applied throughout DPWS. 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report prepared in accordance with applicable 

Australian Accounting Standards, Treasurer's Directions, the requirements of the Public Finance and 

Audit Act 1983 and Regulations and other mandatory professional reporting requirements (Urgent 

Lssues Group Consensus Views), 

(a) Basis of Accounting 

TTiese financial sratcmcnts have been prepared in contormilj- with the financial reporting for Statutory 
Bodies as set out in Division 3 of Part 3 of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983. 

The accounts have been prepared on the basis of historical costs except for certain non-current assets 
which are at valuation. 

The Balance Sheet and Income and Expenditure Statement have been prepared on an accrual basis. 

1 he Sratcment of Cash Flows has been prepared on a cash basis using the direct method, and includes all 

receipts and payments made during the year [see Note 1(h) Recognition of Revenue], In 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 there 

has been a change in the basis of presentation of "Receipts from Operations" and "PajTnents to 

Suppliers ", In 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 these items were presented net of tran.sacrions with the Department's former 

"Water Services Policy" unit. For 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 these arc shown on a gross basis. Similarly State Fleet 

iransactions with Macquarie Bank which were previously reported on a net basis have been grossed 

up m 1995/96 . 

With the exception of certain note disclosures, amounts are expressed in Australian Dollars rounded to 

the nearest one thousand Dollars. 

(b ) Non-current assets 

Non-current assets are revalued in accordance with Treasury Circular G I 9 9 I / 2 0 "Accounting Policies 
for Revaluation of Non-Current Assets". 

Only non-current assets with a cost greater than $0.002M are capitalised. Non-airrent assets are 
depreciated using rhe rates shown in Note 1(c). 

rhe earning amount of all non-current assets has been reviewed as a whole to determine whether or not 

they are in excess of recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of non-current assets exceeds the 

recoverable amount, the assets are written down to the lower value. In assessing recoverable amounts, the 

relevant cash flows have not been discounted to present value. 

There has been a change in the reporting of the disposal of motor vehicles belonging to StateFleet 

Services. In prior years, when motor vehicles were sold, there was neither proflr nor loss as any 

over/undcrrccovery was either passed on to or recovered from the lessee agency. In 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 the bulk 6 7 
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sale of motor vehicles to Macquarie Bank gave rise ro a loss on disposal. Consequently, in accordance 

with AAS 15 "Disclosure of Operating Revenue" the proceeds on disposal and corresponding costs in 

relation to StateFleet Services motor vehicle sales have been disclosed separately. 

(c) Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on a straight Imc b.i.sis for all depreciable non-current assets to allocate their 

cost over their estimated usefiil lives. 

The following depreciation rates are used: 

• Buildings 2.5% 

• Motor Vehicles (with the exception of StateFleet Services) 20.0% 

• Mainframe computers 20.0% 

" Personal computers 33,3% 

• Photocopiers 33.3% 

• Other office equipment 20.0% 

• Furniture and fittings 10.0% 

Because of the Treasury policy requiring pas.scnger vehicles to be sold after two years or 40,000km atid 

commercial vehicles to be sold after two years or 65,000km, the depreciable amoimt tor motor vehicles 

owned and leased bv StateFleet Services under .'\AS4 "Deprcci.ition ot non-current assets" is assessed as 

nil. Depending on the care taken by the lessee agency during the period of the lease, any profit or loss on 

disposal is reimbursed to or recovered from the lessee. 

(d) Provision for major periodic maintenance 

In order to maintain the scr\'icc potential of buildings owned and occupied by DPWS, a 10 year 

program of long term building maintenance fias been developed (refer Notes 22 and 27). 

(e) Leasehold Improvements 

Leasehold Improvements are amonised over the rcmainiiii; pcnod ot ihe Ic.isc. 

(f) Employee Entitlements 

L o n g Service Leave 

The cost of employee entitlements for long service leave is met by the payment of an oncost on salaries 

to the N S W Treasury. The payment of the oncost extinguishes DPWS' liability which results in the 

Ii.ibili[\- hcMi-i assumed hv the Crown. 

In accordance with AAS30 "Accounting for Employee Entitlements" long service leave entitlements 

owing to employees at balance date have been recognised as current and non-current liabilities with the 

corresponding amounts reimbursable from Treasury shown as current and non-current assets. 

Annual Leave 

The full liabilit\' for annual leave owing to employees has been accounted for and shown under Current 

Liabilities in the Balance Sheer. 

Sik'k leave 

Sick leave is non vesting and is expensed .is n i c u i T c d . It is expected th;u sick leave taken in future periods 

will not exceed the entitlements in those periods. 



(g) Acceptance by the State of employee liabiUties 

For officers of the N S W Supply branch of the deparrment, the cost of entitlements for long service leave 

and superannuation are assumed bv the State resulting in non-monetarj' revenue. TTiis revenue 

($0.398M in 1995 /96 $Nil m 1994 /95) is included within "Other Income". 

(h) Recognition of Revenue 

Revenue is recognised as follows: 

Fees represent: 

• The recognition of revenue through the sale of resources to clients. The main resources are employees 

who charge hours worked against activiries on projects. Revenue is recogni.sed when hours are charged 

to client projects within work in progress. 

• Agency Fees tor property sold as agents for New South Wales Government Departments and 

Statutory Bodies. The agency fee from the sale of property is brought to account when all conditions 

precedent have been satisfied. 
Ni)(f; Payments from clienH for work completed on contracts which DPH'S has managed on their hehalf together with corresponding 
payments lo contractors are omitted from the Income and Expenditure Sialemtnl as they are not considered departmental income and 
expenditure These receipts and payments have however been included in the Slalement of Cash Flows as they are accounted for m Balance 
Sheet as Work in Progress 

• "Sales and Services" income is derived from New South Wales Government agencies (refer Note 3). 

Transactions with the Macquarie Bank do not impact departmental income and expenditure. The 

transacrions have, however, been included in the Statement of Cashflows as they do impact Sundry 

Debtors and Sundry Creditors. 

" Other income includes commission earned under a Strategic Partnership Agreement between the State 

Government and Telstra/Optus for the administration of expenditures by agencies on 

telecommunications. Revenue is recognised each month on a predetennined basis. Details ot "Other 

income" are provided in Note 6. 

(i) Operating Leases 

All lease arrangements entered into by DPWS are operating leases. Operating lease payments are 

expensed in the period in which the benefit is received and lease income is recogmscd as earned. 

At 30 June 1996, the Department had leased office space surplus to its requirements. In accordance with 

Abstract I ot the Urgent Lssues Group "Lessee accounting for surplus leased space under a non-

cancellable operating tease", an estimate has been made of the cost of fliture surplus leased space from 

which no economic benefit will be derived, A provision has been set up to reflect this amount and all 

future rental payments in relation to surplus leased space will be set off against this provision. 

DPWS rhrough StateFleet Services leases pas,senger and corrunercial vehicles to Government agencies. 

In ]iuK 1996 the Treasury extended the financing arrangements with Macquarie Bank for the sale of 

StateFleet Services vehicles. StateFleet Services acts as a manager in respecr of the new financier, 

collecting the lease fees and acquiring and disposing of vehicles on their behalf in return for a monthly 

management tec. 

(j) Inventories 

Inventories are valued ar the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs have been assigned to inventory 

quantities on hand at balance d.ite using the average cost price. 

( k ) Taxation 

Under the New South Wales' Government's tax equivalent regime for Government trading enterprises, 

agreement has been reached that the s^countinj^rof i t ^ o ^ l should be used by DPWS in the 69 



calculation of income tax equivalent. This model applies the current rate of company tax and does not 

require tax effect accounting. Accordingly the requirements of AAS3 " Accounting for Income Tax" 

have not been applied in these financial statements, 

(1) Dividend 

Dividends payable to the State Government h.HT been calculated in accordance with the Government's 

Financial Distribution Policy. 

(m) Comparatives 

Where necessary previous year figures have been reclassified to facilitate comparison. 

2. Superannuation 

The Superannuation Schemes relating to employees of DPWS are: 

• the State Superannuation Fund (SSF); 

" the State Authorities Superannuation Scheme (SASS); 

• the State Authorities Non Contributors Scheme (SANCS); 

• rhe First State Super Scheme (FSS); 

• the Public Sector Executives Superannuation Scheme (PSESS). 

For FSS and PSESS there is no outstanding employer liability as the confribtitions are fully fimded and 

vested to individual officers. 

The assessed Hability for the Department at 30 June 1996 and funds held in rhe reserve accounts at the 

Superannuation Administration Authority (including accrued interest) are: 

Reserve Balance Assessed Liability (Over)/Undcr Provided 

1996 1995 1996 1995 1996 1995 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

SANCS 16,813 15,011 12,341 11,556 (4.472) (3,455) 

SASS 39.840 31,543 32,353 28,274 (7.487) (3,269) 

SSF 376,280 338,566 332,284 312,216 (43.996) (26,350) 

432.933 385,120 376,978 352.046 (55,955) (33,074) 

(see Note 19) 

Arising from the Tnonni^il Acrtiarial Review as at 3 0 Iiini: 1 9 9 4 of rhe State Authorities Superannuation 

Board - Pooled Fund, it has been identified that uncertainty exists in respect of virtually all of the 

individual employer reserve balances within rhe Pooled Fund. Until resolution of this uncertainty, which 

relates to taxation allocations at the employer level, the quantum of rhe finantMal effect on individual 

employer reserves is unclear. This uncertainty has not arisen from inaccuracies in the maintenance of the 

accounting records of DPWS. 

The date of the last triennial review was 30 June 1994. A review was undertaken of the key economic 

assumptions used at the last triennial review prior to calculating the gross superannuation liability of the 

various defined benefit schemes as at 30 June 1996. The economic assumptions used are as follows: 

1 9 9 5 / 9 6 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 Thereafter 
% pa % pa % pa 

Investment return 9.0 9.0 8.0 

Salary grovrth rate 5.0 3.0 6,0 

70 Consumer Price Index 3.5 4.0 4.5 



Financials 

The Superannuation Expense for the year has been determined as follows: 

1996 1995 
$'000 $'000 

Contributions to fimds 12,546 11,503 

Movement in prepaid superannuation (22.881) (4.040) 

(10,335) 7.463 

Because of the abnormal value ot ihe adjustment to prepaid SLiperannuaiion, this amount has been 

disclosed as an abnonnal item in the Income and E; (penditure Statement. The contriburion to the funds 

has been shown as Superannuation Expense, 

3 . Sales and Services 
1996 1995 

$'000 $'000 

Q Stores sale of stock 51,032 43,683 
Mail services 23,504 24.379 
Adverrising billings 21.952 22,352 
Printing sales 14,610 17.301 
Motor vehicle lease & commission income 11,952 15.227 
Sale of legislation & publications 4,182 3.141 

127.232 126,083 

4 . Investments and Interest Earned 

DPWS has mvestment powers defined in Part 1 of Schedule 4 ot the Public Authorities (Financial 

Arrangements) Act 1987. A maximum of 80% of departmental funds, excluding client funds, may be 

withdrawn from rhe Treasury' banking system. As in the previous year these funds have been deposited 

with N S W Treasury Corporation in short term cash deposits and rlic market value of these deposits is 

equal to their book value. 

Interest has been calculated on the minimum daily cash balance, excluding any client fiinds, at the 

"Treasury Interest Rate" which is equivalent to the weighted average 11 am Treasury Corporation 
unotfici.il cash rate less 1%. 

5. Management Fees 

Management fees relate to work performed on behalf of the Department of Land and Water 

Conservation and the Olympic Co-ordination Agency. 

6. Other Income 

This comprised rhe following: 

1996 
$'000 

1995 

$'000 

Insurance rebates _ 1,623 
Strategic Partnership Agreement Commission [ 'see Note I (h)] 1,071 2,980 
Acceptance by the State of employee liabilities [see Note I (g)] 398 -
Other 1.107 3,830 

2.576 8.433 71 



7. Treasury Funding 

A number of staff positions were idencif led within rhe fomier N S W PiLbiie Works as being additional 

to the requirements ot core business. Treasury agreed ro fund rhe additional staff costs and an amount of 

$2.060M was received in respect of the 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 financial year ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 $2.796M). 

8. Salaries ond Wages 

Salaries and Wages comprised: 
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1996 1995 
$'000 $'000 

Salaries and Wages 109,619 115,471 
Payroll Tax 9.637 8.612 
Workers' Compensation Insurance 3,506 2,023 

122,762 126.106 

9. Voluntary Redundancies 

During 1995 /96 . 19 salaried and wages employees (^1994/95 88 ; iccepte d voluntary' red jndancy. The 

total cost was $0.736M ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 $3.992M^ which was tlmded by Treas iiry. As both the Treasury 

flinding and the redundancy paymeiu i n \ oi\ ,L1 equal items ot income .ind <. xpense netting to zero, these 

amounts have been excluded from the Income and Expcndiiuii' Sraremenr. 

10. Cost of Sales - Goods and Services 

1996 1995 
$'000 $'000 

Q Stores purchases 34,805 30.836 
Advertising 19,401 20.386 

Mail services 15,983 16,630 
Printing sub-contractors 6,431 7.468 
Fees Q Stores facility manager 6,519 5,580 
Printing materials 2,140 1,333 

85,279 82.233 

11. Management Fees 

Management fees were payable by Estarc Management Division tot corporate services before the 

adrmnistrative restructure. 

12. Occupancy 

Occupancy costs during the year comprised: 

1996 1995 
$'000 $'000 

Rent 13.574 14,335 
Surplus Leased Premises (refer Note l( i)) 8,044 -
Building Maintenance 1,207 209 
Cleaning 244 279 
Electricil\- & Gas 569 639 
Seciintv 184 169 

2}.S22 15,631 



13. Travel 

Travel comprised: 

1996 1995 

$'000 $'000 

Moror Vehicle Costs 275 457 

Travel and Removal 1.098 1,120 

1.373 1.577 

14. Other Expenses 

Included in the "Other" caicgory arc the following: 

1996 1995 

$'000 $'000 

Advertising .Publicity & Marketing 648 1.265 

Audit Fees 370 389 

Bad and Doubtful Debts 853 400 

Bank Cliarges 159 231 

Computer Costs 3,276 3,348 

Consultants 560 1.621 

Depreciation and amortisation not directly charged 6,190 10,455 

Insurance 3,202 5.408 

Land Tax Equivalcnr - 90 

Leasehold Improvements written off - 1,663 

Legal Costs 139 2.948 

Maintenance 1,081 2,149 

Non-Current Assets Written Off 583 292 

Postage St Telephone 2,143 3,083 

Printing & Stationery 2,048 2,720 

Sales Tax Equivalent 1,002 2,201 

Stamp Duty 92 43 

Training & Development 1,087 1.368 

Other Miscellaneous 12.508 14.536 

35,941 54.210 

Noir Deprraamn and amoriuaUon exptttsf for ihe year totalled $9. (1994/95 $1 L952) and has htm apporlionrd amongst a 
numher of operational arlivitirs. Thf amount showtt iihovc represents the balance of unapportioned depredation. 

15. Government Capital Grants 

Capital funding of $5.982M was applied to the Governor Macquarie Tower PABX ($I .295M) 
progress work on the Government Radio Network ($4.66M) and mi,scellancous business systems 
upgr.ules($0.027M), 
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16. Abnormal Items 

Abnormal items consist of: 

1 9 9 6 

$ ' 0 0 0 

1 9 9 5 

Provision for redundancies - Govt . Cleaning Service [refer N o t e 2 7 ( c ) ] - 2 0 , 2 4 5 

Prepaid Superannuation Adjustment (sec N o t e 2 ) (22.881 ( 4 , 0 4 0 ) 

( 2 2 , 8 8 1 ) 1 6 . 2 0 5 

17. Cash at Bank 

T h e Cash at Bank balance is made up: 

1 9 9 6 

S'OOO 

1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 

Cash in hand 

Operatmg Accounts 

4 3 

6 5 , 1 1 7 

6 5 , 1 6 0 

3 8 

1 5 7 , 2 7 8 

1 5 7 , 3 1 6 

I ]H- Cash at Bank includes amounts received from clients for contractor commitments , as well as 

funding for employee entitlements and working capital requirements. 

18. Receivables - Trade 

1 9 9 6 

$ ' 0 0 0 

1 9 9 5 

S'OOO 

1 rade Debtors 

Less: Provision for Doubtful D e b t s 

5 8 , 6 6 5 

( 1 . 2 4 6 ) 

5 7 . 4 1 9 

5 2 , 8 6 4 

( 6 1 0 ) 

5 2 , 2 5 4 

During t!ie year an amount o f $ 0 . 6 4 6 M ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 $ 0 . 3 0 4 M ) was provided for doubtfiil debts and 

$ 0 . 2 I 7 M ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 $ 0 . I 9 7 M } was written off as uncolloct.ible. T h e Income and Kxponditure charge 

included in "Other" expense comprised: 

1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 $ '000 ' 

Provision for doubtfiil debts 

Bad debts written o f f 

6 4 6 

2 0 7 

8 5 3 

3 0 4 

9 6 

$ 0 . 0 1 0 M ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 $ 0 . 1 0 1 M ) was written o f f as uncollectable direct to the Provision for 

Doubtful Debts . 
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19. Sundry Debtors & Prepayments 

Sundry Debtors & Prepayments includes the following: 

1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

$•000 $'000 

Prepaid Superannuation (see N o r e 2 ) 5 5 , 9 5 5 3 3 . 0 7 4 

Accrued Interest 1,661 4 . 2 9 5 

Reimbursement oi motor vehicles purchased on hch alf 

of Macquarie Bank [see N o t e I ( i ) ] I L 8 6 9 1 4 . 9 1 7 

Long Service Leave reimbursable by Treasury 1 ,650 1 .650 

Other Debrors and Prepayments 1 2 , 2 5 5 1 3 . 7 0 0 

8 3 . 3 9 0 6 7 , 6 3 6 

20. Investment Properties 

Investment Properties are Land & Buildings surplus to requirements awaiting disposal. These arc carried 

at valuation. 

2 1 . Inventories 

1996 1995 

$'000 $'000 

Printing materials 7 6 6 5 4 1 

Legislation stock 7 5 9 8 6 5 

Q Stores stock 8 . 0 0 3 6 , 0 4 2 

Fuel & oil 4 3 3 8 

Stores 7 9 55 

9 , 6 5 0 7,541 

Less; Provision tor obsolescence 1 2 2 4 3 

9 , 5 2 8 7 . 4 9 8 
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22. Non-Current Assets 

Land Buildings Plant & Motor Office Fur Computers TOTAL 

Ei^uip't Vehicles & Equip't 

Computers 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

At valuation 

Baiajice I;7:1995 13,646 9,681 - - - - 23.327 

Reclassifications ' 38 (38) - - - - -

Disposals/write offs i500) ^375^ (875) 

Balance 30:6:1996 13,184 9,268 - - - - 22,452 

Depreciation 

Balance 1:7:1995 - (356) - - - - (356) 

Qiarge - (236) - - - (236) 

Disposals - 13 - - - 13 

Balance 30:6:i9'-)6 - (579) - - - - (579) 

Less 

Prov.for Periodic M.iint. - ,477i - - - (477) 

13,184 8,212 - - - - 21,396 

Less; 

Surplus Land & Bldgs incl. 

within Current Assets 2,976 328 - - - - 3.304 

Net Book Value 30:6:1996 10,208 7.664 - - - - 18,092 

hktBwIt Value 30:6:1995 9,96/ 7,793 - - - - 17,754 

At cost 

Balance 1:7:1995 - 2,528 28,233 121,228 7,726 16,029 175,744 

Additions - 144 2,837 42,0{vS 497 3,239 48.782 

Reclassifications * - (2,267) 1,670 - - 597 -

Disposals/write offs - - ^2,428^1 039,667^ (594) (745) (143.434) 

Balance 30:6:96 - 405 30.312 23.626 7 6 2 9 19,120 81,092 

Depreciation 

Balance 1:7:1995 - (67) (12,892) (2,311) (2,975) (11,395) (29.640) 

Charge - 2 (3,264) (1,933) (988) (2,803) (8,986) 

Reclassifications ' - (15) 468 - - (453) -
Disposals/write-offs - - 1.596 2.992 326 883 5,797 

Balance 30:6:1996 - (80) (14,092; : 1,252J ;3,637) (13,768) (32,829) 

Net Book Value 30:6:1996 - 325 16.220 22,374 3,992 5,352 48,263 

Net Book Value W:6:1995 2,46} 15.341 1IS.917 4,75/ 4.634 146,104 

Total 30:6:96 10,208 8,209 16,220 22,374 3.992 5,352 66,355 

Total 30:6:95 UU5-f 15,341 118,917 4,751 4.0 H lf>3,S5S 

' Rectassijicatms between categories of assetfcllowing the administrative restructure 
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i n a n c i i 

Valuat ions 

l^.md .md Buildings have been valued by the Valuer-General. T h e inajoriry were valued in 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 . 

Market Va lue at 3 0 June 1 9 9 6 

W i t h the exception ot motor vehicles, the Ner Book Value o f Non-Current Assets is considered as 

approximating market value. The market value o f motor vehicles has been assessed at $ 2 2 . 7 1 0 M 

( 1 9 9 5 $ 1 2 2 . 1 6 8 M ) . 

Provis ion for periodical maintenance 

1 9 9 6 

$ ' 0 0 0 

1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 

Balance at beginning ot year 

Maintenance expenditure during year 

Provision written back 

C h a ^ e for 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 (see N o t e 2 7 ) 

6 8 5 

( 2 6 8 ) 

( 8 8 ) 

1 4 8 6 8 5 

Balance at end o f year 4 7 7 6 8 5 

23. Leasehold Improvements 

Cost 

1 9 9 6 

$ ' 0 0 0 

1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 

Balance I July 1 9 9 5 

Addit ions 

D i s p o s a l / W r i t e - o f f s 

7 7 6 

13 

( 1 5 2 1 

3 , 0 1 2 

2 2 7 

( 2 . 4 6 3 ) 

Balance 3 0 June 1 9 9 6 (>3" 7 7 6 

Provis ion for amortisat ion 

1 9 9 6 

$ ' 0 0 0 

1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 

Balance 1 July 1 9 9 5 

Charge for year 

Write-offs 

( 5 1 4 ) 

( 1 2 2 ) 

8 0 

( 8 9 4 ) 

( 3 4 8 ) 

7 2 8 

Balance 3 0 June 1 9 9 6 C556) ( 5 1 4 ) 

8 1 2 6 2 

24. Other Non-Current Assets 
1 9 9 6 

$ ' 0 0 0 

1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 

Long Service Leave Reimburscable by Treasury [refer N o t e 1(f)] 

Other 

4 0 , 1 2 9 3 6 . 3 8 0 

14 

4 0 , 1 2 9 3 6 , 3 9 4 
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Financials 

25. Sundry Creditors and Accruals 

Sundry Creditors includes the following: 

1 9 9 6 1995 
$ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

A m o u n t s due to Contractors for W o r k in Progress 5 8 . 1 9 9 8 3 . 6 0 0 

Long service leave liabihty 1 .650 1 ,650 

A m o u n t s owing under Strategic Partnership Agreement 7 . 2 0 6 6 , 5 7 1 

Other Sundrj- Creditors and Accruals 2 7 . 5 9 5 1 3 , 8 6 4 

9 4 . 6 5 0 1 0 5 . 6 8 5 

26. Work In Progress 

D P W S acts as principal in the contract for construction works undertaken for clients. T h e principal's 

role includes the payment o f contractors on the clients b e h . d f 

W o r k in progress represents the cost oi ail works in progress less progress billings received from clients 

and is net o f a Provision for Uncollectable W o r k in Progress o f $ I 0 . 2 3 M ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 $ I 3 . 1 5 M ) . At 3 0 

June 1 9 9 6 . work in the ground was valued at $ 5 8 . 1 9 9 M ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 $ 8 3 . 6 M ) and this accrual is 

reflected in Simdry Creditors and Accruals (see N o t e 2 5 ) . 

Under the General Condi t ions o f Contract A S 2 1 2 4 , thete are specific condit ions relating to the 

payment o f contractor claims for work completed. Penalties for failure to adhere to these condit ions 

include payment o f interest. T o ensure contractual payment obligations are met, agreements have been 

made for major clients to pay according to a monthly cashflow determined o n rhe basis o f client fijnds 

being lodged in the D P W S bank account to facilitate the payment o f contractors claims. 

Where cashflow payments from clients exceed costs to date, A A S l I "Accounting for Construction 

Contracts" requires t h e net balance to be disclosed as a liability. T h e Standard also requires disclosure o f 

"the gross amount of consti i ic i ion w o r k in progress and, as a deduction therefrom, the related aggregate 

billings". N e t W o r k in Progress has accordingly been shown in the Balance Sheet as a current liability. 

Gross work in progress and billings to date arc: 

1 9 9 6 
$ ' 0 0 0 

Gross work in progress as at 3 0 : 6 : 1 9 9 6 5 , 0 0 2 , 2 5 1 

Billings to date 5 . 0 3 5 . 5 8 9 

N e t w o r k in p r o g r e s s . 3 3 , 3 3 8 ) 

Less: Provision for imcoUectable W I P ; 1 0 , 2 2 5 ) 

N e t credit work m progress per Balance Sheet ( 4 3 . 5 6 3 ) 
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27. Provisions 

Non current 
Provision for Major Reworks ( b ) 

1 9 9 6 
$ ' 0 0 0 

1 7 , 3 6 2 

1 9 9 5 
$ ' 0 0 0 

Current 
Provision for Recreation Leave (a) 

Provision tor Redundancies ( c ) 

Provision for Surplus Leased Premises [.see N o t e I ( i ) ] 

Provision for Income Tax Equivalents ( d ) 

Provision for Div idends ( e ) 

9 , 6 6 5 

8 , 0 4 4 

5 , 2 3 1 

7 . 0 6 2 

9 , 7 9 6 

2 0 , 2 4 5 

1 1 , 1 3 4 

1 3 , 2 3 3 

3 0 , 0 0 2 5 4 , 4 0 8 

1 8 , 1 7 6 



The movements in provisions for the year were: 

(a) Provision for Recreation Leave 
1996 

$'000 
1995 

$'000 

Balance begimiing of year 
Provided during the year 
Payments made during the year 

B.il;mce end of rhe vear 

9,796 
7,931 

(8.062) 

9,665 

9.802 
7,114 

(7,120) 

9,796 

(b) Provision for Major Reworks 
1996 

$'000 
1995 

$'000 

Balance beginning of the year 
Claims during the year 

Balance end of the year 

18.176 

(814) 

17,362 

18,880 

18,176 

When DPWS is required to undertake urgent or unforeseen remedial work on major projects to ensure 

their optimum value to the community, this provision eliminates inappropriate charges against current 

working budgets and thus does not affect established programs. The level of this provision has been 

reviewed by mdependcnt experts and found to be in line with indusrn' benchmarks. 

1996 1995 
(c) Provision for Redundancies $'000 $'000 

Balance at beginning of year 
Provided dimng the year 
Paid during the year 

Balance end of vear 

20,245 

(20,245) 
20,245 

20,245 

Following the sale of the Government Cleaning Service, the N S W Arbitration Commission determined 

that the staff of the cleaning service had been made redundant as a result of their termination by the 

Crown at the time of the sale. The Government appealed the decision. However, on 24 May 1995. a 

Full Bench of the Commission found that the award should srand and the appeal was dismissed. 

A provision was made of $20.245M being the full amoimt of the funds held on behalf of Treasury. 

During the year payments of $21.I51M were made. The shortfall of S0.906M has been included widiin 

other Debtors and Prepayments, and will be recovered from Treasury in 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 by offset against 

dividends payable. 

1996 1995 
(d) Provision for Income Tax Equivalent $'000 $'000 

Balance at beginning of year 
Provided during the ycat 
Paid during the year 

Balance ,n end of \'ear 

11.134 
7,477 

(13,380) 

3,079 
12,391 

(4.336) 

11,134 

(e) Provision for Dividends 
1996 

$'000 
1995 

$'000 

Balance at beginning of year 
Provided during the year 
Paid during the year 

Bal.mce .il end of vear 

13.233 
146,046 

(152,217) 

7,062 

8.390 
13.233 

(8.390) 

13.233 7 9 



During 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 the Department paid two special dividends to Tiv . isuty. 

T h e first, paid m September 1 9 9 5 . amounted ro $M?M and resulted from a review o f the Department's 

capital needs. 

T h e second resulted from rhe complet ion on 2 7 June 1 9 9 6 o f the sale to the Macquarie Bank o f the 

balance o f the StateFleet passenger vehicles and those belonging to the Department o f Public W o r k s and 

Services. T l i e sale realised $ I 0 2 . 9 M which was paid to Treasury. 

N o special dividends were paid during 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 . 

I n c o m e and Expenditure S ta tement Charge 

T h e amount charged for provisions, other rh.in recreaiion le.ive, is comprised of: 

1 9 9 6 1995 
$ • 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

Provision for Uncollectable W I P (refer N o t e 2 6 ) 4 6 2 1 ,850 

Provision for Periodic Building Maintenance (refer N o t e 2 2 ) 1 4 8 6 8 5 

W a g e s annual leave adjustment - ( 9 9 ) 

6 1 0 2 , 4 3 6 

28. Other Non>Current Liabilities 
1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

Long Service Leave Liability [see N o t e 1(1) j 4 0 . 1 2 9 3 6 , 3 8 0 

29. Reserves 
1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

Asset Revaluat ion Reserve $ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

Balance at beginning o f year 2 , 3 3 9 1 .799 

Revaluations - 1 ,242 

Devahiations - ( 7 0 2 ) 

Balance ar end of year 2 . 3 3 9 2 . 3 3 9 

1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

Reserve for Bui ld ing Maintenance $ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

Balance at beginning o f year - 1,987 

Transfer ro Income and Fxpcndirure - ( 1 , 9 8 7 ) 

1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

Reserve for Maintenance and Fi tout - M c K e l l Bldg $ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

Balance at begimiing of ye<u- - 2 , 0 4 5 

Transfer to Income and Expenditure - ( 2 . 0 4 5 ) 

30. Contingent Liabilities 

Claims made against D P W S in respect o f compensat ion and litigation arising from its operations are 

80 fullv covered by D P W S ' insurance cover. 



31 . Capital Expenditure Commitments 

1996 
$ ' 0 0 0 

1995 
$ ' 0 0 0 

N o t later than one year 5 , 9 0 4 7 ,211 

Later than I year and not larer than 2 years 5 . 2 0 0 5 . 5 1 8 

Later than 2 years and not later than 3 years 9 2 5 1 .275 

[o(.il 1 2 . 0 2 9 1 4 , 0 0 4 

32. Consultants 

T h e total amount paid to consultants was $ 0 . 5 6 0 M ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 $ I . 6 2 I M ) . 

33. Commitments 

Lease C o m m i t m e n t s - Operat ing 

D P W S has lea-sc commitments payable as follows: 

1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

Properties M o t o r Vehic l e s 

Payable no later than 1 year 1 2 , 0 7 4 1 3 . 1 0 4 8 6 5 

Payable later than I year but n o later than 2 years 1 0 , 1 7 0 1 2 . 9 5 0 5 8 7 1 5 0 

Payable later than 2 years but n o later than 5 years 2 5 . 9 8 4 3 1 , 8 2 4 1 2 2 -
Payable later than 5 years 3 3 . 9 7 1 5 0 , 7 6 1 - -

8 2 . 1 9 9 1 0 8 , 6 3 9 1.574 1 5 3 

34. Audit Fees 

1 he fee for auditing the D P W S accounts for the year ended 3 0 June 1 9 9 6 is $ 0 . 3 5 0 M ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 

$ 0 . 3 8 2 M ) payable to the Audit Office o f N e w South Wales . T h e auditor received no other benefit. 

35. Directors Remuneration (Management Advisory Board) 

Government Printing Service, Government Advertismg Agency and Government Information Service 

have a Management Advisory Board, Included in Other Expenses is an amount o f $ 0 . 0 2 M ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 

$ 0 . 0 2 M ) which represents amounts payable to non-executive members o f the board. 

36. Material Assistance Provided at No or Nominal Cost 

During the year no assistance w:is received from other N e w South Wales Goveniment agencies at no or 

nominal cost. 

37. Statement of Operations by Segment 

(a) T h e Depar tment o f Public W o r k s and Services provides a variety o f services to N S W 

Government agencies. T h e s e include: 

( i ) Project Management -

T h e Department manages the interface with the building and construction industries on behalf 

o f government clients. 
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( i i ) Warehous ing Service o f c o m m o n use iicms -

Q Stores sources, warehouses and supplies hulk discount common-use items to government 

agencies. 

( i i i) Mai l Services -

State Mai l is responsible for col lection and delivery ot mail for State Government organisations. 

( iv) Advertising -

Government Advertising Agency provides advertising services and produces Public Service 

N o t i c e s for the N S W Government managing a master media agreement with Departments and 

Authorities to bulk purchase advertising space. 

(v) Printing Services -

Government Printing Service provides printing, publishing and forms management services to 

the N S W Government. It creates artwork, typesetting and documents , and publishes the N S W 

Government Ciazctte. 

(vi) M o t o r Vehic le Leasing -

StateFleet Services provides motor vehicle leasing and fleet management services ro N S W 

Departments and Authorities. It monitors the Government's motor vehicle purchase and 

replacement programme, arranges disposal of vehicles and arranges contracts through the State 

Contracts Control Board. 

(vi i) Other Fees and Services -

Other services include a government information .service, supply and te lecommunicat ions 

services and the management o f government-owned buildings. 

( b ) T h e Department o f Public W o r k s and Services operates primarily in the State o f N e w South Wales . 

( c ) Industry segment informat ion is set ou t in the fo l lowing table: 

Industry Segment Income Expendi ture S e g m e n t Resu l t s S egmentAsse t s 

1 9 % 1995 1996 1995 1996 1995 1996 1995 

S'OOO $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 S'OOO S'OOO $'000 

Project Management 166,274 167,764 163.121 158,895 3.153 8,869 300,263 381,104 

Warehousing 51,032 43.683 45,164 40.518 5,868 3,165 34,282 34411 

Mail Service 23.504 24.379 22,395 24,050 Li 09 329 8,369 S,I99 

Advertising 21,951 22.352 21.472 22.253 479 99 6,997 7,157 

Printing 14.610 17,301 14,207 17,849 403 (548) 10,765 10,147 

Motor Vehicle Leasing 139.033 15.227 131,347 2.721 7 6 8 6 12,506 57.482 129.767 

Other Fei~s ^ Services 39,895 56,612 37,823 47,523 2,072 9,089 13,966 2,752 

456,299 347.318 435,529 313,809 20,770 33,509 432.124 573.537 
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Financials 

38. Note to the Statement of Cosh Flows 

(a) Reconciliation of Gtsh 

For rhe purpose of the .statement of cash flows, the cash balance is considered to include cash in 

hand, cash at bank and cash deposits at N S W Treasury Corpioration, 

1996 1995 

$'000 $'000 

Cash at Bank 65,117 157.278 

Cash m Hand 43 38 

Cash deposits at T.Corp 106,758 76,497 

171,918 233 ,813 

(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash firom Operating Activities to Operating Result. 

1996 1995 

$'000 $'000 

OPERATING SURPLUS after Income Tax 42,156 13.686 

Depreciarion and amortisation 9,344 11.952 

Provision for Redundancies - 20.245 
Movement in Income Tax Provision (5.903) 12,391 
(Incrcase)/Decrease in Prepayments (15,754) (16.070) 
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (5,165) (22,205) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (2.030) 296 
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables (11,709) 6.058 

Increase/(Decrease) in Sundr)' Creditors and Accruals (11,035) 15.071 

Incrcasc/(Decrease) in Work in Progress 13.775" (6.414) 
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (13,146) (1.060) 

Government Capital Grants (5.982) (8,773) 
Treasury Financing (8.036) (10.130) 
Net Loss (Gain) on Sale of non current assets 3 (2,791) 

Non current assets written off 583 1,663 

N E T CASH FROM (L'SED IN) OPERATING ACTI\7T1ES (12.899) 13.919 

• Includes expenditure on the Cevemmrnt Radio Network 

END OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SERVICES 

SUMMARY OF LAND OWNED AND OCCUPIED - 30 JUNE 1996 

Area and Detail Valuation 

$ 
Date of 

Valuation 

Alexandria Q Stores - 47-49 Bourke Street 4.315,000 27.03.96 Valuer-General ot NSW 

St Peters Number I Yard 1,900,000 30,05.96 Local as.sessmcnt 

Doonsidc Richmond Road 1,200,000 01.07.94 Valuer-General of NSW 

Coffs Harbour 259 High Street 325.000 22.11.93 Valuer-General of NSW 

Bathurst Residence - 38 Pellion Placf 15,000 30.06.95 Marker sale 

Government Pnnting Service - L^8 William Street 70,000 11.06.95 Valuer-General of NSW 

Dubbo White Street 26,000 0710.94 G Stapleton - valuer 

Hay Residence - Church Srreet 15,000 25.01.95 L ] Hooker - valuer 

Karion î Pacific Highway 80,000 01.07.94 Valuer-General of NSW 

Lismore Dalley Street 201,000 18.11.93 V.iiuer-General of NSW 

Manly Manly Hydraulics Laboratory - 1 lOA King Srreer 1,260,000 23.05.94 V'aluer-General of NSW 

Newcasric Hall Srreer 150,000 08.06.94 Valuer-General of NSW 

Porr Kembia Home Street 400,000 31.01.94 Valuer-General of NSW 

Wagga Wagga Coleman Srreet 250,500 2.V06.95 Valuer-General of NSW 

Total 10,207,500 
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BOX I2GPO 
SYDNEY NSW 2001 

I N D E P E N D E N T A U D I T R E P O R T 

OFFICE OF THE MINISTER FOR PUBLIC WORKS AND SERVICES 
T o Members of the New South Wales Parliament and Director-General of the Department of 
Public Works and Services 

Scope 

I have audited the accounts of the Office of the Minister for Public Works and Services for the year 
ended 30 June 1996. The preparation and presentation of the financial statements, consisting of the 
accompanying statement oirmanciai position, operating statement and statement of cash flows, 
together with the notes ihereto, and the information contained therein is the responsibility of tfie 
Director-General. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements to Members of the 
New South Wales Parliament and the Director-General based on my audit as required by sections 34 
and 45 (1) of the Public Finance and Aidir Act 1983. 

My audit has been conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Act and AusUalian Auditing 
Standards lo provide reasonable as.surance as lo whether the tlnancial statements are free of material 
misstatement. My procedures included examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the 
amounts and other disclosures in Ihe financial statements, and the evaluation of accounting policies 
and significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion as lo 
whether, in all material respects, tfie financial statements are presented fairly in accordance with the 
requirements of the Public Finance and Aiulii .4ct 1983. accounting standards and other mandator^' 
professional reporting requirements (Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views) so as (o present a view 
which is consistent with my understanding of the Office's financial posiuon, the results of its 
operations and iLs ca.sh tlows. 

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis. 

Audit Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements of the Office of the Minister for Public Works and Services 
comply with section 45E of the Act and present fairly in accordance with applicable Accounting 
Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements the tlnancial pttsition of the Office 
as at .10 June 19% and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

SYDNEY 
27 September 1996 

P. CARR. FCPA 
DIRECTOR OF AUDIT 

{duly aulhori.sed by the Auditor-General of New South Wales 
under section 45(2) of the Act) 
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OFFICE OF THE MINISTER FOR PUBLIC WORKS & SERVICES 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 1996 
STATEMENT BY AGENCY HEAD 

Pursuant to Section 4 5 F ofthe Public Finance and Audit Act 1 9 8 3 , I state that:-

a) T l ie accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions o f the 

Public Finance and Audit Art, 1 9 8 3 , the Public Finance and Audit (General) Regulation. 1 9 9 5 , the 

Treasurer's Direct ions and the Financial Report ing C o d e under Accrual Account ing for Inner Budget 

Sector Entities. 

b ) T h e financial statements exhibit a true and fair view of the financial pos i t ion and transactions o f die 

Office o f the Minister for Public W o r k s and Services. 

c) There are not any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the financial 

statements to be misleading or inaccurate. 

D i c k Persson 

Director-General 

Department o f Public W o r k s and Services 

I August 1 9 9 6 
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OFFICE OF THE MINISTER FOR PUBLIC WORKS & SERVICES 

OPERATING STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 1996 

Note Actual Budget Actual 

1996 1996 1995 

$ '000 $•000 $ '000 

EXPENSES 

Operating Expenses -

Employee Related 4(a) 705 722 1,338 

Other Operating Expenses 4(b) 412 473 745 

Depreciation 4(c) 4 3 10 27 

Grants & Subsidies 4(d) 16,121 25,572 44,279 

Other Services 4(e) 32,094 30,156 30,625 

TOTAL EXPENSES 49,375 56,933 77,014 

REVENUES 

Orlier 5 600 180 769 

TOTAL REVENUES 600 180 769 

Net Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - - 9 

N E T COST OF SERVICES 3 48,775 56,753 76,236 

G O V E R N M E N T CONTRIBUTIONS 

Consolidated Fund Recurrent Appropriation 49,327 56,549 75,622 

Consolidated Fund Capital Appropriation - - 68 

Return to the State on Sale of Assets - - (7) 

Acceptance by the Sute of Office's Liabilities 2(a) 29 55 208 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 581 (149) (345) 

Accumulated Surplus at the Beginning of the Year 10 24,042 24,160 24,505 

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS AT THE E N D OF THE YEAR 24,623 24,011 24 ,160 

The mompanying notes Jorm pan of these statements. 
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OFFICE OF THE MINISTER FOR PUBLIC WORKS & SERVICES 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 1996 

N o t e Actual Budget Actual 

1 9 9 6 1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 $ • 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

C U R R E N T A S S E T S 

Cash 6 4 . 2 7 9 4 , 4 9 9 4 , 1 0 2 

W o r k m Progress 7 1 9 , 3 1 9 1 8 , 8 1 8 1 8 , 8 1 8 

Receivables 15 5 8 2 9 4 8 2 2 

Prepaid Lease 8 1 2 . 8 1 2 1 5 , 0 0 1 -

T O T A L C U R R E N T A S S E T S 3 6 , 9 9 2 3 8 , 4 1 2 2 3 , 7 4 2 

N O N - C U R R E N T A S S E T S 

Prepaid Lease 8 - - 2 5 , 0 0 1 

Property. Plant and Equipment 9 4 5 2 6 0 4 5 6 3 

T O T A L N O N - C U R R E N T A S S E T S 4 5 2 6 0 4 2 5 , 5 6 4 

T O T A L A S S E T S 3 7 , 4 4 4 3 9 , 0 1 6 4 9 . 3 0 6 

C U R R E N T LIABILITIES 

Sundry Creditors 16 9 4 1 4 5 

Loan 8 1 2 , 8 1 2 1 5 , 0 0 1 -

T O T A L C U R R E N T LIABILITIES 1 2 , 8 2 1 1 5 , 0 0 5 1 4 5 

N O N - C U R R E N T LIABILITIES 

Loan 8 - - 2 5 , 0 0 1 

T O T A L N O N - C U R R E N T LIABILITIES - - 2 5 , 0 0 1 

T O T A L LIABILITIES 1 2 , 8 2 1 1 5 . 0 0 5 2 5 , 1 4 6 

N E T A S S E T S 2 4 , 6 2 3 2 4 . 0 1 1 2 4 , 1 6 0 

E Q u m -

Accumulated Surplus 10 2 4 , 6 2 3 2 4 , 0 1 1 2 4 . 1 6 0 

T O T A L E Q U I T Y 2 4 , 6 2 3 2 4 , 0 1 1 2 4 , 1 6 0 
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OFFICE OF THE MINISTER FOR PUBLIC WORKS & SERVICES 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 1996 

N o t e Actual 

1 9 9 6 

$ ' 0 0 0 

Budget 

1 9 9 6 

$ ' 0 0 0 

Actual 

1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 

Cash Flow from Operat ing Activit ies 

Payments 

Employee Related 

Maintenance and Work ing 

Cjrants and Subsidies 

Other 

( 6 7 5 ) 

( 4 0 6 ) 

( 1 6 , 1 2 1 ) 

( 3 2 , 5 0 6 ) 

( 7 2 2 ) 

( 4 1 8 ) 

( 2 5 , 5 7 2 ) 

( 3 0 , 2 9 7 ) 

( U I 4 ) 

( 7 4 5 ) 

( 4 2 . 8 6 0 ) 

( 3 0 , 5 4 1 ) 

( 4 9 . 7 0 8 ) ( 5 7 , 0 0 9 ) ( 7 5 , 3 6 0 ) 

Receipts 

Interest 5 0 2 3 0 5 3 3 7 

Other 6 0 7 6 0 3 I 

1 ,109 9 0 8 3 3 8 

Total N e t Cash Out t low on Operaring Activities 14 (b) ( 4 8 , 5 9 9 ) ( 5 6 . 1 0 1 ) ( 7 5 , 0 2 2 ) 

Cash F low from Invest ing Activit ies 

Proceeds from Sale o f Property, Plant and Equipment 

Payment for Property, Plant and Equipment 

Payment for W o r k in Progress 

( 5 1 ) 

( 5 0 0 ) 

( 5 1 ) 

9 

( 1 9 ) 

( 1 . 5 1 9 ) 

Tota l N e t Cash Out f low on Investing Activities ( 5 5 1 ) ( 5 1 ) ( 1 . 5 2 9 ) 

N e t Cash Outf low from Operating and Investmg Activities ( 4 9 , 1 5 0 ) ( 5 6 , 1 5 2 ) ( 7 6 , 5 5 1 ) 

Government F imding Activit ies 

Riii irn to the State on Sale o f Assets - - (7) 
Consol idated Fund Recurrent Appropriation 

Consol idated Fund Capital Appropriation 

4 9 , 3 2 7 5 6 , 5 4 9 7 5 , 6 2 2 

6 8 

Tota l N e t Cash provided by Government 4 9 , 3 2 7 5 6 , 5 4 9 7 5 , 6 8 3 

N e t I n c r e a s e / ( D e c r e a s e ) in Cash 1 7 7 3 9 7 ( 8 6 8 ) 

Opening Balance 4 . 1 0 2 4 , 1 0 2 4 . 9 7 0 

C L O S I N G C A S H B A L A N C E 1 4 ( a ) 4 . 2 7 9 4 . 4 9 9 4 . 1 0 2 

Tk acfompanying notes form pari of these statements. 89 
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OFFICE OF THE MINISTER FOR PUBLIC WORKS & SERVICES 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. The Departmental Reporting Entity 

T h e Office o t the Minister tor Pubhc W o r k s and Services lias been prescribed as a Statutory' Body under 

Section 3 o f the Pubhc Finance and Audit ^^General) Regulation 1 9 9 5 for the purposes o f Div is ion 4 

Part 3 o f t h e Public Finance and Audit Act 1 9 8 3 , relating to audit ot tiinds and accounts. 

T h e Office o f the Minister for Public W o r k s and Services comprises the operating activities o f the 

Minister's Office and the appropriation o f Consol idated Fund allocations tor Risk Management and 

Policy Deve lopment for Government. 

Due to changes m Ministerial responsibilities on 15 December 1 9 9 5 the appropriation for the Darl ing 

Fiarbour Authority was transferred to the Minister for Roads and Minister tor the Olympics during the 

financial year. N o expense or revenue relating to these activities tor 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 has been included in the 

financial statements. 

Operating expenses o f the office o f the pic\ioiis Minister tor Public W o r k s and Services for the period 

1 July 1 9 9 5 to 3 1 December 1 9 9 5 were also ininslencd to ilie Office o f the Minister for Roads and 

Minister for the Olympics . Operating expenses shown in these financial statements are the fiiU financial 

year expenses for the office o f t h e incumbent Minister tor Public W o r k s and Services. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

T h e Office's financial report is a general purpose financial report and has been prepared in accordance 

with Statements o f Accounting Concepts , applicable Austr.ili;in Accounting Standards including Urgent 

Issues Group Consensus Views , the requirements o f the Pubhc Finance and Audit Act and Regulations, 

the Financial Report ing Directives published in the Financial Report ing Code for Inner Budget Sector 

Entities and the Treasurer's Directions. 

T h e Operating Statement and Statement ot t-inanci.d Posit ion are prepared o n an accrual basis. T h e 

Cash F low Statement has been prepared on a cash basis using the "direct" method. 

T h e financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention. All amounts are 

rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars and are expressed m Australian currency. 

(a ) E m p l o y e e related expenses 

T h e cost o f employee entirlemenrs ro annual leave and superannuation are included in employee related 

expenses. However , as the Office's liability for superannuation is assumed by the State, the Off ice 

accounts tor the liability as having been extinguished resulting in non-monetary revenue described as 

"Acceptance by the State ot Office's liabilities". T h e Office's liability tor annual leave is extinguished by 

the raising o f an oncost on salaries payable to the Department ot Public W o r k s and Services. N o 

employees were eligible tor long service leave as at 3 0 j ime 1 9 9 6 . 



(b) Government allocation 

Monetary and non-monetary resources which are allocated to the OfFice by the Government and which 

are controlled by the Office are recognised as revenues of the financial period in which they are received. 

(c) Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on a straight line basis against all depreciable assets so as to write off the 

depreciable amount of each depreciable asset as it is consumed over its useful life. Only assets with a 

purchase price of $2,000 are capitalised. The depreciation rate on fiimiture and fittings is 10% per 

.mniini, office equipment is 20% per annum and computer equipment is 33.3% per annum. The cost of 

leasehold improvements will be amortised over the 12 year term of the lease which commenced on 

26 June 1995. 

(d) Grants and Subsidies 

Grants and subsidies are recognised as expenses in the period m which they are paid by the Office. 

3 . Budget Review - Net Cost of Service 

The actual Net Cost of Services was lower than budget by $7.978M. Details of the variance 

are as tollows: 

Under expenditure 

Redundancies 

Government Cleaning Service Sick Leave Liability 

CofFs Harbour Jetty Restoration 

Government Radio Network 

Minister's Office Expenses 

Infonnation Services 

Period Contract Administration 

1996 

$'000 

6,304 

2,178 

1,565 

700 

45 

74 

7 

Add: Interest revenue above budget 

10,873 

420 

11.293 

Less: Supplementary allocation -

Governor Macquarie Tower PABX 

BT Australasia Case Cosrs 

Reinstatement of funding by Treasury 

(1.296) 

(769) 

( U 5 0 ) 

7,978 

91 



LjM'^iU,tta;^''ii 

Financials 

4. Expenses 
1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

a ) E m p l o y e e related expenses comprise the fo l lowing specific i tems: 

Salaries and wages 624*- 1 ,084 

Superannuation entitlements 2 9 6 6 

Payroll tax and firinge benefits tax 4 3 7 9 

Long service leave - 5 8 

Workers compensat ion insurance 3 1 2 

Other 6 3 9 

7 0 5 1 ,338 

* Oiicosi is raised salaries tc extinguish the cost of Ifiivc Imbslities. During / 9 9 5 / 9 6 the oncosts totalled SO.OHM. 

b ) O t h e r operat ing expenses comprise the f o l l o w i n g specific i tems:-

Occupancy 2 5 6 2 7 7 

Travel and M o t o r Vehicle 5 5 1 4 2 

Printing and Stationery- 2 8 2 4 

Postage and Te lephones 2 3 4 0 

Audit Fees 1 3 8 

Other 3 7 2 5 4 

4 1 2 7 4 5 

c ) Deprec ia t ion is charged as foUows:-

Fumiture and Fittings 3 7 4 

Computer Equipment 5 8 

O l h c e Equipment 1 1 5 

4 3 2 7 

d) Grants and Subsidies comprise the fo l lowing items;-

Redundancies 7 3 6 3 , 9 9 2 

Interim Addit ional Staff Costs 2 . 0 6 0 2 . 7 9 6 

Communi ty U s e Facilities paid to O H A - 1 2 , 0 0 0 

Maintenance o f Infrastnicture paid ro D H A - 3 , 7 6 0 

Government Cleaning Service Sick Leave Liability 1 2 2 2 2 1 

Capital Grants-

Royal Agricultural Showground Safety and Maintenance W o r k s 2 , 0 0 0 2 , 1 2 0 

Darl ing Harbour Authority - 2 , 1 1 7 

Stoneworks Program 3 , 9 5 0 5 , 4 0 0 

Coffs Harbour Jertv Restoration 8 3 5 1 5 0 

Government H o u s e 4 3 5 6 0 6 

State Mobi l e Radio N e t w o r k 4 , 6 6 0 1 0 . 6 3 6 

Governor Macquarie T o w e r P A B X 1 ,296 -
Other 2 7 4 8 1 

16 ,121 4 4 , 2 7 9 

9 2 DHA refers lo Darling Harhour Authority 
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mm 

e ) O t h e r Services comprise the fo l lowing items:-

1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

Project Risk Management 9 , 2 5 7 9 , 2 3 2 

Tota l Asset Management 7 1 9 8 3 5 

Construction Industry Development 3 . 9 3 9 4 , 3 9 2 

Investigations and Special Advice 5 , 1 3 2 4 , 9 9 6 

Compliance with Regulations 9 8 6 1 ,008 

Public Buildings 3 0 2 6 6 5 

Period Contract Administration 3 . 7 6 3 4 . 1 1 5 

Information Technology & Telecommunicat ion Policy & Services 4 . 5 6 7 1 ,946 

Information Services 2 , 1 5 5 2 . 1 6 2 

Parliament H o u s e Maintenance 7 5 4 7 5 4 

Govemmenr H o u s e Maintenance 5 2 0 5 2 0 

3 2 , 0 9 4 3 0 , 6 2 5 

5. Revenue - Other 

Other Revenue of $ 0 . 6 0 0 M represents the interest earned o n the bank account. 

6. Current Assets - Cash 

1 9 9 6 

$ ' 0 0 0 

. I t Rank 4 . 2 7 9 

1 9 9 5 

$ • 0 0 0 

4 . 1 0 2 

7. Current Assets - Work in Progress 

W o r k in Progress represents the expenditure ro date on the Commemorative Museum at the First 

Governincm Hou.se Site. Expenditure in 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 amounted to $ 0 . 5 0 0 M ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 - $ 1 . 5 1 9 M ) . T h e 

Office ol the Minister for Public W o r k s and Services was allocated Special Deposir Funds in 1 9 9 0 for 

the construction o f the Firsr Govemmenr H o u s e Site, and has held the asset in the accounts o f the 

Minister during the projecr management and constmct ion stage. T h e asset will be transferred to the 

Historic Houses T m s t upon complet ion. 

8. Non-current Assets - Prepaid Lease 

O n 18 N o v e m b e r 1 9 9 2 , Executive Council approval was granred for the then Minister for Public 

Works , o n behalf o f the State o f N S W entering into arrangements with Kooragang Coal Loader 

Limited (KCL) , Port Waratah Coal Services Limited. National Australia Bank Limited ( N A B ) and 

others involving the sale o f future lease payments o n rhe Kooragang Coal Loader site. 

O n 19 November 1 9 9 2 . the then Minister for Public W o r k s ( M P W j borrowed a sum o f $ 4 9 . 9 4 M 

from N A B on a limited recourse basis, secured against and repayable firom the lease payments due under 

the current 1 9 8 2 Lease Agreement between M P W and KCL. T h e lease payments are being paid directly 

to N A B . T h e proceeds o f the loan were paid to Treasury. T h e balance outstanding o n this loan as at 3 0 

June 1 9 9 6 was $ I 2 . 8 I M ( $ 2 5 M as at 3 0 / 6 / 9 5 ) . It is anticipated that the loan will be extinguished by 

the end o f the financial year 1 9 9 6 / 9 7 . 9 3 

http://Hou.se


9. Non-current Assets - Plant and Equipment 

Furniture C o m p u t e r Of f i ce 

& Fit t ings E q u i p m e n t E q u i p m e n t T o t a l 

$ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

At cost 

Balance I July 1 9 9 5 5 5 0 7 0 7 2 6 9 2 

Addi t ions - 3 8 12 5 0 

Transfers In 4 4 4 - - 4 4 4 

Transfers O u t ( 5 5 0 ) ( 7 0 ) ( 7 2 ) ( 6 9 2 ) 

Disposals - - - -

Balance 3 0 June 1 9 9 6 4 4 4 3 8 12 4 9 4 

Accumulated depreciat ion 

Balance I July 1 9 9 5 2 1 5 5 5 3 1 2 9 

Depreciation for the year 3 7 4 1 4 2 

Dep'n o n transferred assets ( 2 1 ) ( 5 5 ) ( 5 3 ) ( 1 2 9 ) 

Wri te hack on disposal - - - -

Balance 3 0 Jime 1 9 9 6 3 7 4 I 4 2 

W r i t t e n D o w n Value 

At I July 1 9 9 5 5 2 9 15 19 5 6 3 

Ar 3 0 June 1 9 9 6 4 0 7 3 4 11 4 5 2 

Furniture and fittings include rhe tltour costs associated with the leased accommodat ion at Governor 

Macquarie Tower . 

Transfers I n / O u t represent asset transfers on the restructure o f Mmisterial responsibilities. Assets o f t h e 

previous Mmister for Public W o r k s and Services were transferred to die Minister for R o a d s and 

Minister for the Olympics while the assets o f tiie previous Minister for Business and Regional 

Deve lopment were transferred to the Minister for Public W o r k s and Services. 

It is considered thar the market value of the Non-Current Assets is the urirten down value as expressed above, 

10. Equity - Accumulated Surplus 

94 

1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

Opening Balance 2 4 . 1 6 0 2 4 . 5 0 5 

Add: Assets tran.sferrcd in on restructure o l Ministerial responsibilities 4 4 4 -
Less: Assets transferred out o n restructure of Ministerial responsibilities. ( 5 6 2 -

Adjusted Open ing Balance 2 4 , 0 4 2 2 4 . 5 0 5 

Operating S u r p l u s / ( D c l i c i t ) for rhe year 5 8 1 ( 3 4 5 ) 

Closing Balance 2 4 . 6 2 3 2 4 , 1 6 0 



11. Commitments for Expenditure 

1 9 9 6 

$ ' 0 0 0 

1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 

Capital Commitments 

Aggregate capital expenditure contracted for ,it balance date but 

not provided for in Accounts Pavable 

N o t later than one year 

Later than one year but not later than two years 

Later than t w o years but not later than five years 

Later than five years 

1 2 , 3 9 5 

1 3 . 0 8 7 

1 0 , 3 8 7 

3 5 . 8 6 9 

1 2 , 8 9 0 

1 0 , 5 8 5 

2 6 , 8 2 7 

5 0 . 3 0 2 

T h e Office o f tlie Minister for Public works and Services receives appropriarions from the Consol idated 

Fund which are subsequently disbursed to the Department o f Public W o r k s and Services to frind 

construction programs for a number o f the State's key assets. T h e above commitments represent 

Treasurer's forward budget estimates at 3 0 June 1 9 9 6 that will be appropriated to the Minister tor 

Public W o r k s and Services. 

12. Audit Fee 

The audit fee payable to the Auditor-General's Office for 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 amounted to $ 1 3 , 0 0 0 ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 -

$ 8 , 1 0 0 ) . T h e Auditor received no other beneflr. 

13. Contingent Liabilities 

Claims n u d e against the Office in respect o f compensation and litigation arising from its operations are 

fijlly covered by the Office's insurance cover. As at 3 0 June 1 9 9 6 n o claims were pendmg. 

14. Note to Cash Flow Statement 

a) Reconci l iat ion o f Cash 

For the purposes o f the Cash F low Statement, cash comprises cash in bank. Cash at the end o f the 

reporting period as shown in the Statement o f Cash Flow and in the Statement o f Financial Posi t ion is 

$ 4 . 2 7 9 M . 

Reconci l ia t ion o f N e t Cash used o n O ^ e r a t m ^ A c t i v i t i e s t o N e t C o s t o f Services ^ 

1 9 9 6 1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 $ ' 0 0 0 

N e t Cost o f Services ( 4 8 , 7 7 5 ) ( 7 6 , 2 3 6 ) 

Depreciation 4 3 2 7 

Gain o n Sale o f Property, Plant & Equipment - ( 9 ) 

Acceptance by State o f Office's Liabilities 2 9 2 0 8 

Decrease in Payables ( 1 3 6 ) ( 6 0 3 ) 

Assets provided free o f charge - ( 4 9 2 ) 

Decrease in Receivables 2 4 0 2 , 0 8 3 

N e t Cash used on Opcraiinii Activiries ; 4 8 . 5 9 9 ! ( 7 5 . 0 2 2 ) 9 5 
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15. Receivables 

Receivables o f $ 0 . 5 8 2 M ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 $ 0 . 8 2 2 M ) is comprised o f accrued Imerest o f $ 0 . 3 I 3 M and 

$ 0 . 2 6 9 M payable by the Department o f Public W o r k s and Services. 

16. Sundry Creditors 

Sundry Creditors represent amount payable to other government agencies ( 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 $ 4 , 0 0 0 ) . TTie total 

value o f Sundry Creditors is classified as current. 

17. Program Information 

Program - Risk Management and Pol icy D e v e l o p m e n t for G o v e r n m e n t 

Program Objective: T o provide risk management and policy services to the Minister and the 

Government and rhe operating costs o f the Minister's Office. 

1 9 9 6 

$ ' 0 0 0 

1 9 9 5 

$ ' 0 0 0 

Expenses 

Grants and Subsidies 

Other 

T o t a l Expenses ; 

1 6 , 1 2 1 

3 3 , 2 5 4 

4 9 , 3 7 5 

4 4 , 2 7 9 

3 2 , 7 3 5 

7 7 , 0 1 4 

R e v e n u e 

Gain o n Sale o f Non-Current Assets 

Other 

9 

7 6 9 

N E T C O S T O F S E R V I C E S 4 8 , 7 7 5 7 6 , 2 3 6 

G o v e r n m e n t Contr ibut ions 

Consol idated Fund reairrent appropriation 

Consol idated Fund capital appropriation 

State acceptance o f Office's l iAbi l i t ie .<: 

Return to State on sale o f assets 

S u r p l u s / ( D e f i c i f ) after G o v e r n m e n t Contr ibut ions 

4 9 . 3 2 7 

2 9 

5 8 1 

7 5 . 6 2 2 

6 8 

2 0 8 

^^.), 

( 3 4 5 ) 

T o t a l Assets 3 7 , 4 4 4 4 9 , 3 0 6 

END OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Published as required under Section 14 o f rhe Freedom of Information AcL 

Corporate Philosophy 

Client service is the organisation's highest priority, as is: 

• Providing strategically selected commercial and 

professional services to the N e w South Wales 

Government 

• Providing genuine impartial advice and innovative 

solutions to meet the needs of other public sector 

agencies 

• Providing leadership in using information technology 

and telecommunications to transform the way services 

are delivered and reduce the cost o f delivering services 

to clients 

• Being a pacesetter in environmental design, energy 

clficicncy and ecologically sustainable development 

• Providing expert procurement services and advice, 

harnessing the Government's purchasing power to 

benefit the people o f N e w South Wales 

• Managing the commercial interface between industry 

and government agencies, especially those which d o 

not have rhe relevant skills in-house 

• Providing leadership by setting and maintaining 

standards focusing on probity, competitiveness, sound 

eco-management and use o f technology 

• Strengthening the commercial focus o f the 

organisation and its off-budget status while ensuring 

the provision of competitive services to clients 

• Maximising the benefits to Government by providing 

services to the public and private sectors in Australia 

and overseas. 

Acts Administered 

T h e principal Act administered is the Public W o r k s 

Act, 1 9 1 2 , under which construction works and 

associated property acquisitions are carried out. D P W S 

also has specific responsibilities imder other Acts, 

including the: 

• .'Vrchitects Act I 9 2 I N o . 8 

• Bennelong Point (Parking Srarion) Act N o . 189 

• Border Railways Act 1 9 2 2 N o . 16 

• Glen Davis Acr 1 9 3 9 N o . 3 8 , Parr 4 (remainder. 

Minister for Local Government) 

• Government Telecommunicat ions Act 1991 N o . 7 7 

' Land Acquisit ion (Charitable Institutions) Act 1 9 4 6 

N o . 5 5 

• Land Acquisirion Qust Terms Compensat ion) Act 

1991 N o . 2 2 

• Public Sector Management Act 1 9 8 8 N o . 3 3 sections 

1 0 2 ( 2 ) , 1 0 2 ( 5 ) and ( 6 ) 

• Public W o r k s Act 1 9 1 2 N o . 4 5 (except sections 

3 4 ( 3 ) and ( 4 ) Minister for Land and Water 

Conservation) 

• Snowy Mountains Engineering Corporation ( N e w 

South Wale s ) Act 1 9 7 2 N o . 5 0 

• Snowy Mountains Hydro-e lec tnc Agreements Act 

1 9 5 8 N o . 2 0 , sections 1 0 .ind 11 (remainder. 

Minister for Energy and Minister for Land and Water 

Conservation) 

• State Brickworks Act 1 9 4 6 N o . 16 . 

In addition. D P W S has responsibilities under various 

other Acts and Regulations which have an impact on its 

activities. 
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Corporate Structure 

D P W S is the N e w South Wales Government's key 

pohcy adviser o n the development, management and 

conservation o f natural and built assets including: 

• leadership and interaction with the building and 

construction industry 

• policies and advice regarding government programs 

entrusted to D P W S 

• asset planning. 

Providing quality value added services to assist clients in 

the development, management, and conservation o f 

their assets is a top priority for D P W S , along with 

striving to be innovative in service and product delivery 

in its business imits. 

D P W S offers a comprehensive range o f multi-

disciplinary professional services including design, 

documentat ion, contract administration, project 

management, program management, and construction 

management. 

T h e Department's expertise is available for local and 

overseas commercial projects, cither independently or as 

joint public and private sector ventures. 

Project teams or individual advisers can be appointed 

for every stage ranging from asset strategic planning and 

project initiation to design and implementation. 

D P W S offers specialised services in asset planning, 

development management, program management, 

project risk management, urban planning, feasibilities 

and commercial development. 

Construction activities are managed by the Operarions 

Divis ion which also arranges most maintenance 

activities thtough its six regional offices across N e w 

South Wales . 

Planning Mechanisms 

The Department employs a number ot planning, 

budgeting and review techniques to strengthen its 

management o f public funds so that its clients, 

including the Government, receive value for money. 

T h e techniques include business planning, strategic 

planning, annual operating planning zero-based activity 

reviews, performance indicators and monitoring and 

program performance reviews. Benefits firom these 

practices include: 

• A clear direction for the Department 

• Deve lopment o f a corporate identity 

• Improved communicat ion at all levels 

• Clear accountability to the N e w South Wales 

Parliament and the public 

• Effective management o l l imited resources (staff and 

finance) 

• Effective management o f change. 

Performance Criteria 

T h e Department has the fol lowing broad categories o f 

corporate indices: 

• Work load indicators 

• Output indicators 

• Level o f service 

• Efficiency indicators 

• Effectiveness indicators 

• Cost effectiveness indicators 

• Assets utilisation. 

Resources Employed 

• T h e Department has net assets to the value o f 

$ 1 8 0 . 7 mill ion. 

• W a g e s and salary staff total 2 4 2 3 and use is also 

made o f contract staff to meet short term needs. 

• Annual turnover is approximately $ 1 . 3 bill ion. 

Decision-Ma king 
T h e Department's organisational structure and business 

direction is determined corporately. Accountabil ity for 

operational and financial pcrtormance is expected at all 

levels in the organisation. Authority delegations place 

most decis ion-making at the divisional or business 

centre level. 

Public Participation 

Whils t the Deparrmenr primarily provides a service to 

its various government and semi-government clients, 

many o f its activities have an indirect affect o n the 

community at large. D P W S is also required to prepare 

environmental impact statements on its major projects. 
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Records 

Each division, business unit and office maintains 

records relevant to its operations. There are t w o basic 

categories; 

• project files which deal with maners relevanr to the 

delivery o f that particular project 

• administrative fdes dealing with operational and 

policy matters. 

These files include sub-categories such as: 

• Adminis trat ion/Management 

• Financial and budgetary 

• Policy and planning 

• Personnel and staff files 

• Departmental reviews 

• Depanmental performance agreements 

• Customer and client files 

• Departmental status and progress reports 

" Contract.s and tendering 

• Occupational health and rehabilitation 

' Ministerial enquiries & advisings 

• Regisrer oi consultants 

• Program performance evaluations 

• Accommodat ion 

• Training 

• Audit 

Changes in policies are advised in procedural circulars 

issued by the responsible division and are incorjiorated 

ultimately in the relevant manual. 

Access to all o f the above documents is not always 

granted automatically. T h e aim is to be as open as 

possible, however, for various reasons (for example, 

commercial confidentialiiv. personal privacy, protection 

o f essential government interests, etc.) some of these 

documents may not be made available without a formal 

application under the Freedom of Information Act. All 

applications are a.ssessed on their merits in accordance 

ivith the relevant sections of this Act. 

Documents Available for Inspection 

Procedural Guidel ines and Manuals 

• Accounts Administration Manual 

" Accounting Policies - Procedures Manual 

• Building Energy Manual 

' Capital Project Procurement Manual 

• Codes of Conducr: Departmental and Business Uni t 

• Contract Management Committee Guidelines 

• Constmction & Contractual Ptocedures Manuals and Guidelines 

" Construct Only Contracts (AS 2124) 

' Construction Law Advising (2 volumes) 

• Consultant Management 

• Contraas Manual 

• Demolition Contracts (AS 2124) 

° Demolition Contract.s (Minor Services and Works) 

° Design, Development, and Construct Contraas (DDC) 

and Design and Constract Contracts (DC) 

° Design, Novate, and Constma Contracts 

' General Conditions of Contract AS 2124-1986: 

Evaluation and Experiences 

° Guidelines for Preparation of Inspection and Test Plans 

" Minor Services or Works 

' Minor Services or Works-Government Agency Version 

(disk only) 

° Procedures Manual for Construction Management by the 

Private Sector 

' Procurement Systems Manual 

° Qualitj' Assur,ince Requirements for Contractors and Sub­

contractors 

• Guide to Period Conrracts 

• Guidenotes for Lead Audirors 

• Heritage Asset Management Guidelines, second edirion 

• Occuparional Health, Safety and Rehabilitation 
Guidelines 

• Corporate and Divisional Quality Manuals 

" Environmental Plannmg Guide N o t e s 

" Legionnaire's Disease: Code of practice for the control of 

Legionnaire's Disease and some other health hazards 

• N S W Government's C o d e o f Practice for the 

Construction Industry 

• N S W Govemmenr's Code of Tendering tor the 

Cons tmct ion Indusrry 

• N S W Govemmenr's Implementation Guidelines for 

Code of Practice and Code o f Tendering for the 

Consrmct ion Industry' 

• Risk Management Guidelines 

• Scalds Prevention Manual 

• Service Guidelines for Pubhc Buildings 

• Toral Asset Management Manual 

• Value Management Manual 

• W a r m Water Ablutions systems incorporating 

Thermostatic Mix ing Valves: Code ot Practice. 
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Conference Papers 

Papers were presented during the year o n a ranj 

Conference 

;e o f issues in professional and other forums, including the following: 

Author T o p i c 

National Institute o f Accountants N e w 

South Wales Congress 1996 

Stock Feed Manufacmrer's Association of 

Australia, Australian Technical Miller's 

Association combined Conference 

Bruce Cooke, Chris 

Nicholls. Chris Marrable 
Improving Fiscal Performance through 

Asset and Energy Management 

Bruce Cooke, Barry Sharah, Energy Management: Impact o f 

Eric Yeo Reforms in the Energy Sector 

Australian Institute o f Radiography, 

Bathurst, March 1996 

M W A International Conference on Dam 

Engineering, Kuala Lumpar. Malaysia, 1995 

M W A International Conference on Dam 

Engineering. Kuala Lumpar, Malaysia, 1995 

Willy Van Den Berg 

P. Carter 

P. Carter 

Picmre Archival & Communications 

System Implemented at Children's 

Hospital 

Babagon Dam, Sabah 

Raising and Strengthening o f Dams 

A N C O L D & N Z S O L D Conference, 

"Dams: The Implications of Ownership" 

Christchurch. N e w Zealand, 1995 

P. Carter Design & Constmction o f Babagon 

Dam 

A N C O L D & N Z S O L D Conference, 

"Dams: The Implications of Ownership" 

Christchurch, N e w Zealand, 1995 

J.Dixon & S.Lees Loyalty Road Flood Retarding Basin 

University o f N S W , School o f Civil 
Engineering 

T.K. Can Mardi Dam, A Case Smdy 

Trans American Geophysics Union, 
May 1996 

Global Seismic Hazard Assessment Program, 

Melbourne, November 1995 

T.D. Jones. M.J. Neville, 
G. Scott, G. Sinadinovaki 

T . D . Jones, M.j . Neville 

Results from Sydney Pilot 
Microzonation Project 

Earthquake Moni tonng & Seismic 

Hazards in N S W 

May 1996 issue of Government Officer 

Australian Acoustical Society Annual 

Conference. Perth. November 1995 

T . Rogerson 

G.E. W o o d s 

Data Capture for Assets in N S W 
Enters N e w Stage 

Aircraft Noise Impact at Grahamstown 
Public School 

1995 N S W Coastal Councils Conference at 

Tweed Heads 
W . V . Strachan & S. Wyllie 

o f M H L 
Coastal and Estuary Data Technology 

and the Decision Maker 
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Conference Papers (continues) 

Conference Author T o p i c 

Fourth International Conference on Coastal 

and Port Engineering in Developing 

Countries at Rio De Janeiro, Brazil, 

Seprember 1995 

Brisbane City Council 

Federal Govt. Senior Execurive Development 

Program, Canberra 

Depr of Health & Community Care. 

Canberra 

Aquatorium. A Q C Forum, Sydney 

1 )IR tiradiiatcs, C^anberra 

Senior Managers, Dept o f Education and 

Children's Services, Adelaide 

Masonic Centre, A Q C Seminar - Emerging 

Insights. Sydney 

Office o f Stare Revenue, Parramarta 

Local Govt. Industry Training Committee -

Sydney 

DIR Conference for Private Sector 

Organisations. Newcastle 

Australian Society o f Certified Practising 

Accountants. Adelaide 

N S W Police Dept., M.isonic Centre, Sydney 

Newcastle HunterNet. collective of private 

sector Engineering and Manufacmring 

companies 

I.F.W. Jayewardene. M H L . 

D . K . C Haradasa. M H L . ] . 

Tainsh, Coasr & Estuaries, 

D L W C 

John Carnegie, Sally Fairley 

John Carnegie 

Sally Fairley, George Diaz. 

Nadia Georges, Ernie 

Abordo, Jean Fabien 

Sally Fairley, Christine 
Johnston. Eileen Hodge, 
Michael Movlan 

Sally Fairley 

John Carnegie 

Jim Boyd, Terry Box 

Sally Fairley, Christine 

Johnston. Eileen Hodge, 

Michael Moylan 

Sally Fairley 

John Carnegie 

John Carnegie 

John Camcgic, Chris Galea 

John Carnegie 

Model Study on Water Levels Due to 

Irregular Wave Overtopping of Sea 

Defences 

Self Managed Teams 

Leadership 

Self Managed Teams 

Self Managed Teams 

Change 

Leadership and Self Managed Teams 

Self Managed Teams 

Self Managed Teams 

Training for Best Practice 

Leadership and Self Managed Teams 

Le.idership 

Implementing Change 

Leadership, Changed Management, 

Team Buddmg 
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Reports 

A number o f feasibility and operational reports o n engineering and architectural projects and matters relevant to the 

organisation's area o f activities were released. These reports arc available from Manly Hydrauhcs Laboratory, at a 

cost of $ 3 5 per report. Examples mclude: 

N o . D a t e Title 

7 6 7 

7 5 8 

7 5 6 

7 5 5 

7 5 3 

7 5 1 

7 4 9 

7 4 8 

7 4 7 

7 4 4 

7 4 3 

7 4 2 

7 4 1 

7 4 0 

7 3 8 

7 3 6 

7 3 4 

7 3 3 

7 3 2 

7 3 1 

7 3 0 

7 2 9 

7 2 7 

7 2 5 

7 2 4 

7 0 6 

6 7 8 

6 7 4 

1 9 / 4 / 9 6 Camden Council Data Capture 1 9 9 5 

7 / 3 / 9 6 Environmental Impact Statement for Port o f Yamba Improvements on the Clarence 

River 

7 / 2 / 9 6 T h e R a n d o m W a v e Facility Operation Manual 

6 / 6 / 9 6 Belongil Creek Water Quality Moni tor ing Interim Report 

1 3 / 6 / 9 6 Smiths Lake Water Quality Profdes N o v e m b e r 1 9 9 5 

2 9 / 2 / 9 6 Hydraulic M o d e l Study o f Weirs in N S O O S Downstream o f Outlet Channel at 

N o r t h Head S T P 

5 / 2 / 9 6 R i c h m o n d River at Coraki Water Quality Moni tor ing 

1 3 / 1 2 / 9 5 R o c k y M o u t h Creek Water Quality Moni tor ing 

5 / 2 / 9 6 Coila Lake Water Quality Monitor ing 

2 2 / 1 2 / 9 5 S R A Early Warning RainfaU System Annual Summary 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 

1 4 / 1 1 / 9 5 Preliminary Examination o f Sand Ingress at R o s s Jones Memorial Pool , Coogee 

1 2 / 4 / 9 6 N o r t h Clarence Breakwater Des ign W a v e He ight s and Armour Sizes 

2 3 / 1 2 / 9 5 A Physical M o d e l Study to Determine Air Injecrion Rates in Effluent Mains with 

Adverse Gradients 

8 / 9 / 9 5 Stockton Beach Revetment Inspection Report, March 1 9 9 5 Storms 

2 8 / 9 / 9 5 N o r t h H e a d Sewage Treatment Plant Physical M o d e l Study o f Sedimentation T a n k s 

1 / 4 / 9 6 Pos t -Comple t ion Reviews, Waterways Infrastructure Deve lopment Program 

2 7 / 9 / 9 5 Bermagui Sewerage Augmentation - Ocean Discharge Study 

9 / 1 / 9 6 N S W W a v e Chmate Annual Summary 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 

9 / 1 / 9 6 N S W Ocean T i d e Levels Annual Summary 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 

I / l 1 / 9 5 N S W Estuary and River Water Levels Annual Summary 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 

1/11/95 N S W Coastal Rainfall Annual Summary 1 9 9 4 / 9 5 

2 / 1 1 / 9 5 Tuross Lake Water Quality Study 

3 / 4 / 9 6 A Preliminary Study on the Upgrade O p t i o n s for N o r t h Curl Curl R o c k Poo l 

6 / 6 / 9 6 Wallaga Lake Data Collect ion, March 1 9 9 5 

2 6 / 7 / 9 5 Burrawang Pumping Station Hydraulic M o d e l Study of Forebay and P u m p W e l l s 

1 3 / 1 2 / 9 5 Lake Cathie and Lake Innes Water Quality Study 

1 5 / 1 2 / 9 5 Sydney Ocean Beaches Stormwater Study 

1 2 / 1 1 / 9 5 Cudgen Creek and Lake Water Quality Survey December 1 9 9 3 
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Brochures, Manuals and Foctsheets 

(Free of Charge) 

These give information either on specific projects or 

general matters of inrerest. T h e range produced 

includes: 

• Albury T A F E College Stage 4 

• Auburn Public School: Upgrade 

• Blue Mountains College o f T A F E : Stage I 

• Broulee Public School: Stage 2 

• Capabilities brochure 

• Electromedical-lnnovative Solut ions in Health Care 

• Cleaning Services 

• Coffs Harbour Education Campus 

• Communicat ions 

• Con io W e s t Public School: Reconstnict ion 

• Contract schedules 

' D u b b o Public School: N e w school 

• Eastwood Public School: Upgrade 

• Eden High School: Addit ions 

• Electromedical Equipment-Innovative solutions in 

health care 

• Energy Managcment-The Benefits o f Efficient Energy 

Use 

• Epping Boys H i g h School: Upgrade 

• Fairfield Public School: Replacement school 

• Governmenr Information Technology Condit ions 

( G I T C ) 

• Guarantee o f Service - Corporate 

• Hinchinbrook Public School: N e w school 

• H o m e b u s h Bay PubHc D o m a i n Strategy 

• Inglebum Public School: Upgrade stage I 

• Inverell Public Schooh Upgrade 

• Interior Des ign-Nineteenth to the Twenty-First 

Century 

• I T Tender Advisory Service 

• K.atoomba High School: Special Education U n i t 

' Kingsdi f f High School: Addit ions 

• Lidcombe College o f T.A.F.E.: Stage 4 

• Mackellar Girls High School: Mult i -Purpose Centre 

• Moniya High School: Mult i -Purpose Centre 

• Mount Terry Public School: N e w school 

• Mudgce High School: Upgrade 

• Mullaway Public School: N e w school 

• Narara Val ley H i g h School: N e w school 

• Nat ional Landcare Program 

• N e m i n g h a Public Schoo l Handover Manual 

• N i m b i n Central School: Replacement school 

• Port Macquarie College o f T.A.F.E.: Stage 3 

• Presrons Public School: Upgrade 

• Quahry Management Brochure ( I 9 9 5 - I 9 9 8 ) 

• R i c h m o n d College o f T.A.F.E.: Stage 2 

• Rouse Hill Public 5>chool: Upgrade 

• Security-Improving Business Performance by 

Minimising Risk 

• Site Contamination Profiles-Assessment and 

Remediat ion Services 

• Sterilising Engineering-Mmimising Risk and 

Improving Health Care for Patients 

• Strathfield South Public School: Upgrade 

• Tacking P o m t Public School: N e w school 

• Telemetry Systems: Information for effective 

management 

• The Oaks Public School: Stage 2 

• The Responsible Workplace-Innovative Solut ions for 

a Healthy and Productive Workplace 

' T h e Use of Steel Roof ing in Indonesia and Malaysia 

• Wagga W a g g a Techno logy H i g h School : Upgrade 

• Werrington College o f T A F E : Stage 4 

• Wol longbar Col lege o f T A F E : S u g e 2 

• W h a t to Expect when Dealing with Government 

(joint project with I C A C ) 

• Your Guide to Tendering. 
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Documents Available for Purchase 

H i s t o r y Series 

• Historic Court H o u s e s o f N e w South Wales $ 2 0 

" James Barnett, Colonial Architect $ 2 0 

• Landmarks in Public W o r k s $ 2 0 

• Significant Sites $ 2 0 

• T h e Greatest Public W o r k $ 2 0 

• TTie Unreasonable M a n $ 2 0 

Construct ion 

• Capital Project Procurement Manual $ 1 0 0 

• Construct O n l y Contracts ( A S 2 1 2 4 ) $ 2 0 0 or disk 

copy $ 1 5 0 

• Construction Law Advising ( 2 volimies) $ 2 5 0 

• Consultant Management $ 2 0 0 or disk copy $ 1 5 0 

• Contracts Manual $ 9 7 0 (hard copy only) update 

$ 2 0 0 p.a. 

• Demol i t i on Contracts ( A S 2 I 2 4 ) $ 2 0 0 or disk copy 

$ 1 5 0 

• Demol i t i on Contracts ( M i n o r Services or W o r k s ) 

$ 2 0 0 or disk copy $ 1 5 0 

• Design, Novate & Constnict $ 2 0 0 or disk copy $ 1 5 0 

• Design, Deve lopment and Construct Contracts 

( D D C ) and Design and Construct Contracts ( D C ) 

$ 2 0 0 

• General Condi t ions Contract A S 2 1 2 4 - I 9 8 6 : 

Evaluation and Experiences $ 1 0 0 

" Heritage Asset Management Guidelines, second 

edit ion $ 2 5 

• M i n o r Services or W o r k s $ 2 0 0 or disk copy $ 1 5 0 

• Minor Services or Works-Government Agency 

Vers ion $ 2 0 0 or disk copy $ 1 5 0 

' Procurement Systems Manual $ 1 0 0 

• Tota l Asset Management Manual $ 3 0 0 

• Value Management Manual $ 2 5 

• Combined Set: Capital Project Procurement Manual 

and Tota l Asset Management Manual $ 3 5 0 

Misce l laneous 

• Code o f Practice for Legionella & Other Heal th 

Diseases $ 5 0 

' Measurement ot Life Cosrs $ 1 5 

" N e w South Wales Government Information 

Techno logy Contacts Directory $ 6 5 

• O H S & R Management Systems Guidehnes $ 2 5 

• Office Furnirure-$30 

• Scalds Prevention Manual $ 4 0 

Updates 

• Documentat ion manuals and guidelines $ 5 0 per 

manual 

• Contracts Manual per annum $ 2 0 0 (hard copy on ly ) 

Business Units 

StateFleet -Guide l ines and N e w s l e t t e r 

• Commitment to Service 

• StateFleet Management 

• StateFleet Leasing 

• N e w South Wales Government M o t o r Vehic le 

Operating Lease Arrangement User Guide 

• Fleetsheet (bi -monthly newsletter) 

Q Stores-Brochures and Guide l ines 

" Catalogue 

• Corporate Brochure 

' Q Deals 

" Q S r o r e s C o m m i t m e n t r o S e r v i c e 

• Pricing Pol icy 

• Credit Policy 

• Supplier Agreement Guidelines 

G o v e r n m e n t Advert i s ing Agency-Publ icat ions and 

Guide l ines 

• Advertising Rate List for Clients 

• Newslet ter 

• C o m m i t m e n t ro Service 
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G o v e r n m e n t Advert is ing Agency-Publ icat ions 

available for purchase 

' PubUc Service N o t i c e s ( $ 1 0 0 per annum) 

G o v e r n m e n t Information Service- Brochures and 

Guide l ines 

• Government Information Service ( G I S ) 

• I\irlidex Brochure 

• GIS Commitment to Service 

G o v e r n m e n t Information Serv i ce -Documents 

Available for Purchase 

• N e w South Wales Government Directory, 1 9 9 5 ( $ 5 5 

hardcopy or disk) 

• N S W Legislarion (hardcopy various prices, disk base 

price $ 1 8 ) 

• [.egislation in Force ( $ 2 5 ) 

• Status o f Statutory Rules ( $ 2 0 ) 

G o v e r n m e n t Print ing Service-Catalogues, Guide l ines 

and News le t t er 

• G P S Fastfonns Catalogue-Education 

• GI*S Fastforms Catalogue-TAFE 

• G P S Fastforms Catalogue-Health 

• CJPS Fastforms Catalogue-Accounting and Personnel 

• G P S Fastforms Catalogue-Police Firearms 

' Statement ot Service 

• T enns and Condi t ions ot Contract 

• 1 emis and Condit ions ot Tender 

• 1 emis and Condit ions o f Trading 

• Terms and Condi t ions of Trading-GPS Fastfonns 

• CjPS Newsletter 

G o v e r n m e n t Print ing Serv ice -Doc iunents Available 

for Purchase 

• N e w South Wales Government Gazet te -$7 per copy 

or $ 4 0 0 annual subscription 

State Mai l Service-Brochures and Guide l ines 

• Best Practice Brochures ( 2 ) 

• ("ommitment to Service 

N S W Supply Service & Information T e c h n o l o g y 

Service-Brochures and Guide l ines 

• Contract Management Committee Guidelines 

• Commitment to Service 

' N S W Supply Code o f Conduct and Ethics 

• A Guide to Period Contracts 

• Your Guide to Tendering 

" Answers to C o m m o n Quest ions 

' Guide for the Selection o f Photocopiers 

• M o t o r Vehic le Users Guide and Schedule o f 

Participating Dealers 

" M o t o r Vehicle Auction N e w s 

• Electrical products 

• Safety and Personal Protective Clothing 

" General Stationery and Paper Products 

• Physical Education Equipmenr 

N S W Supply Service & I n f o m u t i o n T e c h n o l o g y 

Ser^'ice-Newsletters 

• Marketing Bulletin 

• Healthlink 

• Contract N e w s 

" Supplvlink 

• Ciovemment Selected Application Systems ( G S A S ) 

• Hardware Producrs 

• Plumbing Products 

' Air Travel and Associared Services 

• Temporary Staffing 

• Temporary Staff-Accounting and Audit Staff 

• Customer Service Guide 

N S W Supply Service & Informat ion T e c h n o l o g y 

Serv i ce -Documents Available for Purchase 

• N e w Sourh Wales Government Infomurion Technology 

Contacts Director)'-$65 or $ 7 2 including postage 

' Office F u m i t u r e - $ 3 0 or $ 3 5 . 5 0 including postage 

Statement o f Affairs 

The most recent Statement o f Affairs was published in the 

1 9 9 4 / 9 5 Annual Report. Copies are available at a cost o f 

$3 .00 from the Freedom o f Information Coordinator. 
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Access to Published Documents 

All published documents (reports, pol icy and procedure 

manuals, business plans and other planning documents ) 

may be obtained by contacting the F O l Coordinator, 

Level 2 2 , McKel l Building, 2 - 2 4 Rawson Place, Sydney, 

between the hours oi 9am and 5 p m . 

Staff Access to Documents Concerning the 
Industrial Relation Affairs of Staff 

Staff d o no t need to use F O l to access their personal 

files. A request to access one's personal fJe can be 

directed to the Corporate Human Resources Branch. 

Amendment of Documents about Personal Affairs 

An applicant may request the correction o l any personal 

information held by the Department o f Public W o r k s 

and Services concerning them, where the applicant 

considets this information to be inaccurate, incomplete, 

or gives a misleading impression. In most cases, a 

written application will be required in terms o f the F O l 

Act. Proof of the amendments being requested will also 

be required, but as the form it takes may vary fi-om case 

to case, it should be discussed with the F O l 

Coordinator. 

Access to All Other Departmental Documents 

T o access all other files or records it is necessary to 

apply, in writing, under the F O l Act to: 

T h e F O l Coordinator 

Level 2 2 , McKel l Building 

2 - 2 4 Rawson Place, 

S Y D N E Y N S W 2 0 0 0 

Enquires relating to Freedom o f Information may be 

made by telephone ( 0 2 ) 3 7 2 8 7 4 3 between 9am and 

5 p m , M o n d a y to Friday. 

Fees: 

All applications: $30 plus processing charge of $ 3 0 per hour 

Statistical Information 

There were 14 new applications. N o applications were 

carried forward firom the previous year. 

T h e results of the applications were: 

Granted in full 3 

Granted in parr 7 

Granred-no documents found I 

Reflised I 

Deferred I 

Ministerial Certificates 3 

N u m b e r o f requests requiring formal consultations 9 

Transferred I 

Res idt o f A m e n d m e n t R e q u e s t 

Result Agreed 0 

Residt Refused 0 

N u m b e r of requests for notation 0 

Basis o f Disal lowing or Restricting Access 

Section 19 (application incomplete, wrongly directed) 0 

0 

0 

7 

0 

0 

0 

$ 3 9 6 0 

0 

0 

Section 2 2 (depos i t no t paid) 

Section 2 2 (diversion o f resources) 

Section 2 5 ( I ) ( a ) (exempt) 

Section 2 5 ( I ) ( b ) , (c ) , ( d ) (otherwise available) 

Section 2 5 ( I ) (e) (documents over 5 years o l d ) 

D e e m e d refused-2I day time limit expired 

All completed requests-FOI fees 

Fee discount 

Correction o f records 

Elapsed T i m e 

Applications where period extended under Section 59B 0 

Processing hours: 

0 - 1 0 hours 9 

1 1 - 2 0 hours 4 

2 1 - 4 0 hours 0 

Over 4 0 hours 1 

Reviews Processed 

Internal reviews finalised 2 

Ombudsman's reviews finalised 0 

District Court acnons fmalised 0 

Ombudsman's reviews pending 0 

General Comments 
Applicants generally focused on seeking access to their 

competitors' tender documents . T h e applicants sought 

to obtain information which may be seen as affecting 

the commercial affairs of companies with which the 

Department o f Public W o r k s and Services could have 

regular dealings and have far reaching effects upon rhe 

way in which the organisation conducts fiiture business 

with these and other prospective contractors. 

S o m e o f the issues had an impact upon the 

Department's compliance with the requirements o f the 

Freedom o f Information Act. 
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T h e public has a right to expect the Department o f 

Pubhc W o r k s and Ser\'ices to conduct its business wirh 

efficiency, impartiality and integrity. This requires staff 

perform their duties at a high standard and that there 

not be, nor seem to be, any conflicr berween private 

interests and responsibilities to the public. 

T h i s Code o f Conduct and Ethics has been designed to 

assist staff in the proper performance of their duties and 

incorporates statutory requircmcnrs o f rhe I C A C Acr 

1 9 8 8 , 

T h e Code is based on the principles that staff should: 

• perform their duties professionally, objectively and 

with integrity 

• efficiently and effectively serve the Government 

• maintain the confidentiality o f information received in 

the course o f their duries 

• observe fairness and equity in all official dealings with 

the public and with other public secror employees 

• .ivoid real or apparent conflicts o f interest 

• report suspected instances o f corrupt conduct, and 

• respect the righrs o f public sector employees under the 

c o m m o n law and within the provisions o f legislation. 

In addition, the Code is based o n the principle that all 

staff must adhere to it and are accountable for the acts 

and omissions of themselves and ot those they may 

supervise. Managers and Supervisors arc responsible for 

ensuring appropriate practices are in place to support 

the Code and that it is able to be accessed and 

understood by all staff. If not clear as to what is 

expected, staff should seek clarification from their 

Manager or Supervisor. 

All staff should be familiar with the contents o f this 

Code and should observe its provisions at all times. In 

view o f the importance o f this Code, any departure 

from the provisions may be grounds for disciplinary 

action under the Public Sector Managemenr Acr 1 9 8 8 . 

Values Underlying The Code 

T h i s Code of Conduct rests upon the assumption of a 

number o f values which require staff o f D P W S behave wi th 

• integrity 

• honesty 

• loyalty to the public interest and fairness 

• conscientiousness, and 

• compassion. 

PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES 

In accordance with the pnnciple o f personal 

accountability staff should, when o n duty, give their 

whole time and attention to ensuring that work is 

carried out efficiently, economical ly and effectively. 

Staff must give effect t o the pwlicies o f the Government 

and D P W S irrespeaive o f wherher rhey personally 

endorse these policies. Should a siniarion arise in which 

a policy, or the steps contemplated to give effect to it, is 

so at variance with a person's o w n views that he or she 

cannot conscienriouslv give effect to them, the matter 

must be immediately brought to the attention o f their 

senior officers a n d / o r Divisional Director with a view 

to resolving the situation. 

W h e n o n duty staff must refrain from any form o f 

conduct likely to cause unwarranted offence or 

embarrassmcnr. T h e y shall not make allegations which 

are unseemly or derogatory or which are intended to 

vilify, insult or injure the repuration o f any other 

person, ro make personal rcflecrions on. or impute 

improper motives to any other staff member, harass or 

discriminare against other staff, clients o f D P W S or 

members of the public on the grounds o f sex, marital 

status, prcgn.incy, age, race, colour, nationality, ethnic or 

national origin, physical or intellectual impairment, 

sexual preference or religious or political conviction. 

Staff must conduct their duties in a fair and equirable 

manner at all times and apply the principles ot Equal 

Employment Opportunity. 

LAWFUL ORDERS 

Staff shall not willfully disobey or disregard any lawful 

order given by any person having the authority to make 

or give rhe order. 

Staff who dispute the propriety o f any such order may 

appeal to their Divisional Director againsr being 

required to carry out the order, but shall, as far as 

possible, comply with the order unril the appeal is 

decided. 

STANDARDS OF HONESTY AND INTEGRITY 

Staff should observe the srricrest pranices o f honesty and 

integrity, and avoid conduct which could suggest any 

departure from them. TTiis includes a duty to bring to 

notice dishonesty, inefficiency, malpractice or suspected 

corrupt conduct on the pan o f another staff member. 109 
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PRIVATE EMPLOYMENT 

Staff should not engage in private employment without 

the prior apptoval o f the Directot-Genetal . D P W S 

policy on private employment has been issued as a 

Departmental Circular. 

T h e v should also ensure that there is no conflict or 

incompatibilitj' between personal mterests and the 

impartial fulfillment of pubUc or professional duty. 

T h e y must also not engage in private work with or for 

any person or body with an inreresr in a proposed or 

current contract with D P W S without first making 

disclosure to the Director-General. In this respect, it 

does not mattet whether advantage is in fact obtained, 

as any appearance that private dealings could conflict 

with performance o f public duties must be scrupulously 

avoided. 

USE OF OFFICIAL INFORAAATION: 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Staff should always act in the interests o f the Crown 

and the general public interest and not in their o w n 

interest or those o f any other individual. T h e y should 

also be able to show they have done so. In particular, 

official information must not be used so as to violate 

any confidentiality or privilege, or to gain improperly 

anv kind o f benefit or advantage personally or for any 

other person. 

Staff should disclose in writing to D P W S any pecuniary 

or other definite interest held, immediately they become 

aware that a potential conflict between personal interest 

and official duty, whether real or apparent, has arisen or 

is likely to arise. 

T h o s e w h o exercise a starurory. regulatory, inspccrorial, 

or other discretionary function m relation to members 

o f the public must make disclosure when dealing with 

relatives and close friends and, wherever possible, 

disqualify themselves fi-om dealing with them. 

A relative is defined as: 

• parents, grandparents, brothers, sisters, uncles, aunts, 

nephews, nieces, natural or adopted children or 

grandchildren, o f the person or the person's spouse or 

de facto partner, and 

• a spouse or de facto partner o f the staff member, or o f 

any o f the relatives listed above. 

POLITICAL PARTICIPATION 

Staff o f D P W S need to ensure that their participation 

in political matters does not bring them into conflict 

with their primary dutj' as public servants to serve the 

government o f the day in a politically neutral manner. 

T h i s is important in order to maintain Ministerial and 

public confidence in the impartiality o f the advice given, 

and actions taken, by public servants. 

Determining what is appropriate in any particular case 

will depend on the extent o f the participation o f the 

individual, the nature o f the issue, and the posit ion held 

by the individual. 

If a staff member becomes aware that a potential 

conflict, whether real or apparent, has arisen or is likely 

to arise, they should immediately inform the Director-

General. 

I f a conflict of interest does arise, the staff member may 

have to refrain from participating in the political 

activity or withdraw from areas o f his or her duties 

giving rise ro rhe conflicr o f inrerest. 

REWARDS AND GRATUITIES 
Staff shall not direcdy or indirecdy (eg through another 

staff member, a spouse, relative or friend) demand or 

receive from any person or organisarion any present, 

hospitality, gratuity or remuneration o f any kind, in 

respect o f services performed, or to be performed, 

whether during working hours or not, in connect ion 

with their posit ion in D P W S . 

T h e acceptance o f gifts or benefits requires selective and 

sound judgment. T h e y may well be perceived as putting 

that person in a pos i t ion in which h e / s h e may, or may 

appear to he, compromised by rheir acceptance. 

T h e fo l lowmg D P W S policy applies: 

i) Gifts of a token nature, or acts o f hospitality such as 

rhe provision o f moderate meals during genuine 

business meetings, may be accepted. These must be 

seen to be inconsequential or trivial and where there 

is any doubt, the officer should seek guidance from 

their senior officers a n d / o r Divis ional Director. 

As flirrher guidance, an example ot a token gift 

might be where an officer receives calendars as part 

o f an industry or community-wide mailing which is 

obviously not targeted specifically at the business o f 
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l ^ P W S or the person concerned. O n the other 

hand. leather bound diaries or other obviously 

expensive items which are likely to have been 

spccificallv targeted are without doubt substantial 

gifts. 

ii) Substantial gifts, offers or suggestions o f offers o f 

free travel, substantial hospitality and 

accommodation must be rejected. In the event o l 

such offers being made, or the suggestion o f an offer 

made, cither directly or indirectly, they must be 

reported at the first opportunity to the Branch 

Manager or Divisional Director. 

i i i) Staff should avoid situations which may create the 

appearance that any person or body, through the 

provision o f hospitality or benefirs o f any kind, is 

securing or attempting to receive influence or 

favour. 

iv) Staff should take all reasonable steps t o ensure other 

staff members and relatives (as defined earlier) are 

not the recipients o f benefits which could give the 

appearance o f an indirect attempt to receive 

influence or favour from D P W S . 

Any substantial gift received unexpectedly should be 

returned with an appropriate letter. T h e Manager, 

Corporate H u m a n Resources or the Manager, 

Corporate Relations, can advise on the wording o f any 

respon.se. 

INFLUENCE TO SECURE ADVANTAGE 

Staff shall not seek the exercise ot improper influence o f 

any person in order to obtain promotion, or other 

advantage, m relation to their employment or because o f 

their starus as employees of the Crown. 

DUTY TO REPORT SUSPEQED CORRUPT 
CONDUCT 

Section 1 I of the Independent Commiss ion Againsr 

C o m i p t i o n Act 1 9 8 8 requires the Direcror-Gencral to 

report suspected cases of corrupt conducr to the 

Independent Commiss ion Against Corruption and we 

should assist the Director-General to fulfil this 

requirement. 

W h a t is "corrupt conduct"? 

"Corrupt conduct" includes any dishonest or improper 

use o f posit ion by a public official and specifically 

includes misuse o f information or material acquired in 

the course o f official duties (even if the information or 

material is misused when the person is no longer a 

public official). "Corrupt conduct" also includes 

conduct by anyone which might lead directly or 

indirectly to the dishonest or improper use o f posit ion 

by a public official or conduct which involves a breach 

o f public trust, and includes conduct by anyone which 

might directly or indirectly interfere with the carrying 

out by a public official o f his or her functions. 

Further points to note about "corrupr conduct" are: 

• "Corrupt conducr" includes a conspiracy or an 

attempt to engage in "corrupt conduct" 

• It does not matter that a person or persons who were 

public official(s) at the time o f the "corrupt conduct" 

are no longer public official(s), and 

' It may not matter that the conduct occurs outside 

N e w South Wales or Australia. 

Conduct IS not "corrupt conducr" unless it could be, or 

involves: 

• a criminal offence under N e w South Wales law or anv 

other law which could apply in the particular 

circumstances 

• a disciplinarj' offence which could lead to disciplinary 

action under any law including regulations, or 

' reasonable grounds to dismiss or terminate the services 

o f a public official. 

Regardless o f the passage o f time or changed 

ciraimstances such as resignation, staff and former staff 

may still be charged wirh a criminal offence, disciplined 

or dismissed. 

By law all staff must assist the Director-General in 

meeting the obligation to report suspected corrupt 

conduct by reporting any matter we suspect on 

reasonable grounds involves, or may involve, corrupt 

conduct. 

Because reporting suspected corrupt conduct is a 

statutory responsibility, reports made in g o o d faith are 

protected from defamation acrion even if they are 

proved to be groundless. 

Supervisors, Divisional Directors and others who 

receive complaints o f suspected cotrupt conduct must 

maintain the confidenriality o f the complainant and the 

contents o f the complaint and take immediate action in 

infonning the Director, Internal Audit, the Manager, 

Executive Support or the Director-General. 

I l l 

http://respon.se
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PROTECTED DISCLOSURES ACT 1994 

T h e Act offers protection lor pubhc officials who make 

disclosures which concern: 

' corrupt conduct, as defined in the Independent 

Commiss ion Against Corruption Act 1 9 8 8 ; 

' maladministration, defined for the purposes o f the Act 

as conduct which involves action or inaction o f a 

serious nature that is: 

' contrary to law. or 

" unreasonable, unjust, oppressive or improperly 

discriminatory, or 

* based wholly or partly o n improper motives, and 

' serious and substantial waste of public money. 

Under the Protected Disclosures Act it is an offence to 

take detrimental action in teprisal against a person who 

makes a protected disclosure. Further, the Public Sector 

Management Act 1 9 8 8 makes it a breach o f discipline 

to take detrimental action or disciplinary action in such 

circumstances. 

When does protection exist? 

A staff member has the full protection o f the Act when 

reporting to a nominated D P W S officer or an 

"investigating authority" defined as the Independent 

Commiss ion Against Corruption, the N S W 

O m b u d s m a n or the Auditor-General. 

A staff member is also protected under the Act when 

making a disclosure to a M e m b e r o f Parliament or to a 

journalist subject to specific circumstances having been 

met, le: 

1. Substantially the same disclosures must have already 

been made to a nominated D P W S officer or to one 

o f t h e investigating authorities set out above. 

2 . T h e investigating authority or D P W S must have: 

• decided not to investigate the matter, or 

• decided to investigate the matter but not completed 

the investigation within six months o f the original 

disclosure being made, or 

• investigated the matter but not recommended the 

taking o f any action in respect o f the matter, or 

• failed to notify the person making the disclosure, 

within six months o f the disclosure being made, o f 

whether or not the matter is to be investigated. 

In addition, a staff member making a disclosure to a 

Member o f Parhament or to a journalist "must have 

reasonable grounds for believing that the disclosure is 

substantially true" and "the disclosure must be 

substantially true", otherwise the disclosure may no t be 

subject to protection under the Act. 

F o r m s of disclosure not protected 

Protection is not available for disclosures which are: 

• frivolous or vexatious 

• primarily question the merits o f government policy, or 

• made in an attempt to avoid dismissal or disciplinary 

action. 

It is an offence to willflilly make a false or misleading 

statement when making a disclosure. 

What protection is available? 

T h e Protected Disclosures Acr makes ir a criminal 

offence to take "detrimental action" in reprisal against a 

person w h o makes a prorected disclosure. Detrimental 

action means action causing, comprising or involving 

any o f the following; 

• injury, damage ot loss 

• intimidation or harassment 

• discrimination, disadvantage or adverse treatment in 

relation to employment 

• dismissal from, or prejudice in, employment 

• disciplinary proceedings. 

T h e Protected Disclosures Act also protects a person 

against liability for action which may otherwise be 

available against the person making the disclosure, eg 

defamation, breach o f secrecy or confidentialiiy. 

REPORTING CORRUPT CONDUa AND 
MAHERS COVERED BY THE PROTECTED 
DISCLOSURES ACT 

T h e Director, Internal Audit and the Manager, 

Executive Support are the D P W S officers to w h o m 

reports should be made. 

If this is not considered appropriate the matter should 

be reported to the Director-General or to an 

investigating authoritj', ie the Independent C o m m i s s i o n 

Against Corruption, the Auditor-General or the 

O m b u d s m a n , as appropriate. 

Matters should be reported as quickly as possible, in 

writing. As well, in order to assist the investigation. 
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reports should not be anonymous. Whi ls t anonymous 

complaints will be treated with all seriousness, 

anonymity hinders hill pursuit ot the matter. 

Matters suspected on reasonable grounds involving, or 

maybe involving, corrupt or other incorrect conduct, 

must be reported through the appropriate channels in 

spite o f any duty o f secrecy or other restrictions on 

discourse. 

In respect o f each internal report, the Director-General 

will ensure the complainant is informed o f the outcome 

o f the investigation. 

PUBLIC COMMENT AND DISCLOSURE OF 
OFFICIAL INFORMATION 

Other than wliciv .luthorised in the course o f duty or 

when called to give evidence in court, staff should not 

comment o n matters relating to official business or 

govemmenr policies. T h i s is particularly so where: 

i) a new Govemmenr policy is proposed or a policy is 

under Government review 

ii) a comment is made as a public servant rather than as 

a private citizen 

iii) it might be inferred that a comment made is made 

by a person purporting to have specialised direct or 

official knowledge or authoriry in relation to the 

matter which is the subject o f the comment, 

Statt are, however, not prohibited from comment ing on 

information which is either the subject o f public 

knowledge or would be given to any member o t the 

public seeking disclosure o f that information. 

USE OF DEPARTMENTAL FACILITIES AND 
EQUIPMENT 

Statt should .dl ensure that resources, fiinds, staff or 

equipment entmsted to us are used effectively and 

economically in the course o f their duties. 

I'nlcss permission has been granted by a duly 

authorised person or in accordance with stated policy, 

staff must not use the services o f other officers and 

employees or official facilities or equipment for private 

purposes. 

Arrangements for the private use o f equipment and 

facilities such as facsimile machines, photocopiers and 

long distance phone calls with associated staff charges 

are covered by Circular I 9 9 3 / 3 8 S . 

PERSONAL BEHAVIOUR 

Staff should refrain from any form o f conduct, in 

relation to other staff or the public. likely to cause the 

Crown, D P W S or any person offence or 

embarrassment. Staff are required t o notify the 

Dirertor-Gencral if they become bankmpt or are 

charged or convicted o f a serious offence. A serious 

offence is where the courts can impose a custodial 

sentence o f 12 months or more. 

CONDUa ON RESIGNATION OR 
RETIREMENTS 

U p o n retirement or resignation staff members have an 

ethical and moral obligation not to mi.suse information 

or material gained in the course o f their employment or 

to otherwise engage in activities detrimental to the 

standing o f the public sector, D P W S or. importantly, 

fellow staff members. In some circumstances it may be 

necessary to obtain approval to use infonnat ion from 

D P W S . 

FURTHER INFORMATION 

This Code is not designed or intended to unnecessarily 

restnct private activities. It does however, include lawful 

requirements applicable in N S W . It is also a framework 

which reinforces and provides for professional and 

personal integrity. If fiinher advice or infonnat ion is 

required concerning this C o d e o f Conduct contact the 

Manager, Corporate H u m a n Resources on telephone 

( 0 2 ) 3 7 2 - 7 1 1 2 . 

Advice on the application o f the Protected Disclosures 

Act is available from appropriate D P W S officers, 

especially the Director, Internal Audit and the Manager, 

Exeait ive Support. T h e N S W Ombudsman, telephone 

( 0 2 ) 2 8 6 1 0 0 0 or 0 0 8 4 5 1 5 2 4 will advise if required. 

T h e Independent Commiss ion Against Cormpt ion has 

issued detailed "Guidelines for Report ing by Public 

Authorities o f Possible C o r m p t Conduct t o the 

Commiss ion ." T h i s document is available from Branch 

Managers, the Manager. Corporate H u m a n Resources 

and rhe Manager. Legal Services. 

AmmJeJjuly / 9 9 5 

113 



APPENDIX D 

GUARANTEE OF SERVICE 

114 

T h e Department o f Public W o r k s and Service's primary 

focus is to provide leadership and help to other 

departments and agencies to assist them in delivering 

better services to the wider community . 

T h e Department is: 

• the Government's impartial adviser, especially in 

providing a client service on key resource issues such 

as a sensible total asset management approach to 

clients' assets 

• a pacesetter in establishing a whole -o f -govemment 

approach - in the application o f information 

technology and telecommunications, in procurement 

and supply o f a wide range o l goods and services, in 

the strategic management and disposal ot government 

property assets; and building and construction 

industry policy 

' a pacesetter in environmentally sensitive design. 

T h e Department aims to achieve a prominent posit ion 

as the service provider o f choice, through 

ditferentiation, recognised innovation and service 

excellence. 

Our Guarantee o f Service is to provide clients with 

quality, accessible advice, information and services in an 

equitable, timely, professional and courteous manner. 

In particular: 

• all staff take responsibility for ensuring a high level o f 

client satisfaction 

• we strive for best practice in meeting and exceeding 

clients' expectations and needs 

• we maintain highest quality standards in all our 

operations 

• we listen to clients and understand their needs 

• we work with our clients in responding to and 

fulfilling their needs 

" we work with our suppliers to ensure our clients 

benefit from the use o f best practices at all times 

• we are professional in all that we d o 

" we strive for value tor money for our clients 

• we encourage innovation, both in providing our 

clients with solutions, and internally in reforming 

operations 

• we encourage efficiency and effectiveness in all our 

operations 

• we deal fairly with both clients and suppliers 

" we deliver our project services in a timely and cost 

effective manner 

" we regularly monitor client satisfaction with our 

services and ensure all steps are taken to improve 

satisfaction. 

T h e standards o f service outl ined overleaf help ensure 

that these guarantees are achieved. 

STANDARDS OF SERVICE 

TTie Department is committed to providing its clients, 

including the communit ies they represent, with quality 

services, delivered in a rehable and responsible fashion. 

Our clients are our top priority in all that we do . Our 

organisation is based around a client focused structure 

encompassing Client Service T e a m s a n d / o r Client 

Managers for each client. 

OUR CUENTS 

Our clients include: 

" rhe N S W Government 

• N S W Government Agencies 

• N S W Authorities 

• N S W Local Government 

• Federal Government Agencies and Authorities 

• Interstate Governments 

• Overseas Governments 

• N S W businesses requiring our assistance and expertise 

on interstate and overseas projects 

' many non-profit government tiinded organisations 

including; 

" Schools 

" Hospita ls 

" Universities and Colleges 

° Church Groups and Societies. 

ACCESS 

1 he first thing clients notice is h o w easy it is to access 

our services. Our H e a d Off ice is located near Sydney 

Central Railway in the centre o f Sydney and is 

supported by six regional offices throughout the State. 

Commercial business units are strategically located in 

the Sydney and Parramatta C B D s and metropoliran 
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Sydney. Wherever our ehents are, we are on hand to 

help. In addition: 

• newsletters and service information brochures are 

readily available containing intomiat ion on the 

services that we provide and h o w they can be accessed 

• we realise that it is important for clients to reach the 

appropriate person within D P W S for expert advice or 

assistance swiftly and easily. All staff have access to an 

"Internal Directory o f Services" ro assist them in 

helping clients reach the most appropnate person 

• we provide equal access to our services without 

discrimination 

• telephone calls to our main switchboards are answered 

on average in less than 15 seconds. 

QUAUTY 

Clients' dealings with [^PWS will meet the highest 

possible standards. T h i s is assured through: 

• the introduction ot Quality Assurance systems 

meeting the A S / N Z S ISO 9 0 0 1 : 9 4 Standard 

throughout the Department, covering both our 

internal procedures and our dealings with third parties 

• our contractors and consultants being required to 

fol low equally stringent Quality Assurance procedures 

to ensure, as far as possible, the clients needs are 

protected. 

COMMUNICATIONS 

W e believe that open and frequent communications are 

essential to understanding and fultilling clients' needs 

and expectations. W e want to know what is important 

to clients, and how we can improve our range and 

delivery of services. T h e fol lowing steps have been 

initiated to improved communications at every level: 

• we contact clients at regular intervals to ensure that 

they are happy with our service to date and listen to 

suggestions 

" client Service Teams a n d / o r Client Managers are 

established for each client. In this way, clients have 

access to someone who has an in-depth knowledge o f 

their business and individual requirements at all times. 

Several orher client service mechanisms allow easy access 

to D P W S management, such as Steering Committees 

on all major projects. 

RESOLUTION OF PROBLEMS 

W e understand that the swift resolution o f problems is 

essential for a harmonious relationship. 

W e have introduced formal procedures for dealing with 

complaints - procedures that make it easier for our 

clients to be totally firank with us and that allow us to 

respond swiftly and effectively while continuously 

improving our services, A D P W S staff member is 

appointed to each client to act as first port o f call for 

concerns. If a client's concern is not resolved swiftly it 

will be passed on to an appropriate Director who will 

attend to the matter personally. 

All complaints will be responded ro promptly and at the 

outside within a week. 

Where we arc assisting a client to negotiate with a third 

pany, we keep the client informed o f progress at all 

INTEGRITY 

W e are honest and have integrity m all our dealings. 

T h i s involves: 

• respecting clients' privacy and confidentiality of any 

sensitive dealings 

• being fair and honest with our suppliers and clients 

• adhering to standards o f conduct and ethics which 

maintain public confidence and tnist in us. 

COMPETENCE 

W e are professional in all rhat we do. W e encourage 

professionalism and the highest level o f competence 

through: 

• ensuring that staff are appropriately trained and 

qualified to deliver top quality services 

• encouraging staff to undertake training in multiple 

disciplines, both to fulfil their individual potentials 

and ro improve the quality o f services offered 

• including staff development and training as an 

essential component o f our staff performance 

planning and review system. 

REUABIUTY 

W e strive to be reliable in all our dealings. T h i s entails 

being consistent with our responses and doing what we 
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GUARANTEE OF SERVICE 

say wc will do. In the delivery o f project services this 

translates into the fol lowing service standards: 

' Project services will be delivered m a timely fashion -

with a m i n i m u m o f 9 5 per cent o f projects delivered 

o n time 

• Project services will be delivered in a cost effective 

manner - with a min imum o f 9 5 per cent o f projects 

delivered on budget. 

RESPONSIVENESS 

W e aim to be responsive to clients' needs and desires. 

Responsiveness is enhanced by: 

• responding promptly to correspondence, and 

" providing information that is accurate and up-to-date. 

COURTESY 

Our staff are polite and considerate at all t imes. Staff 

membets are accountable for their dealings with clients 

and treat all clients with equal respect. A contact name 

and telephone number is provided in all correspondence 

and Telephone enquiries. 

APPENDIX E 

CONTRAQING OUT AND MARKET TESTING 

T h e Department continued to be an extensive user o f 

private sector contractors to assist in the provision o f 

services for our clients. Traditionally, these have been 

technical contractors for preconstruction aspects o f our 

business, such as concept design and documentat ion 

work. T h e use o f technical contractors supplements 

existing staff and reduces the need to appoint 

permanent staff. 

In association with the use o f technical conrractors, 

D P W S is continuously reviewing its operations and 

uses contractors lor the provision o l services to its 

internal and external customers. 

Some o f the areas where contracting out was used 

during the year, included; 

• the sale o f government property 

• payroll services 

• facilities management 

" fleet management 

• printing. 

Reviews are in progress in a number o f corporate service 

areas, such as in lonnat ion technology services, corporate 

printing and parrs o f our deparrmenral fleet 

management. 
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USE OF CONSULTANTS 

ENGAGEMENTS OVER $30,000 

Consul tant Project Descr ip t ion Expenditure 

Price Waterhouse Urwick 

BSR Pacific 

C & H Business Solutions 

Poulter Stanford 

Milliways Pty Ltd 

Deve lopment o f Information 

Technology Strategic Plan 

Strategic Systems Review 

Development of Corporate Plan 

H u m a n Resource Management 

Information System Evaluation 

Departmental Information 

Technology Restructure Evaluation 

$ 8 5 , 3 5 0 

$ 7 4 , 6 5 5 

$ 3 2 , 2 0 0 

$ 5 6 , 0 5 1 

$ 4 9 , 9 0 0 

Tota l $ 2 9 8 , 1 5 6 

ENGAGEMENTS UNDER $30,000 

N u m b e r 5 3 $ 2 6 2 , 0 8 9 

APPENDIX G 

FUNDS GRANTED TO NON-GOVERNMENT COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS 

T h e Department contributed $ 5 0 , 0 0 0 ( $ 2 5 , 0 0 0 each firom Commercial Business Divis ion and Client Service 

Div is ion) to rhe Cooperative Research Centre for waste management and pollution control which is a joint venture 

controlled by the University o f N S W . 
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PERFORMANCE SUMAVVRIES SES OFFICERS GRADE 5 AND ABOVE 

N A M E 

P O S I T I O N 

Richard Mark P E R S S O N 

Director-General SES Band 4 , Lower 

P E R I O D I N T H E P O S I T I O N Commenced on the 4 December 1 9 9 5 . Previous Director-General was Ronald 

David Christie. 

R E S U L T S 

Commerc ia l Practices 

Cl ient Service 

G o v e r n m e n t Service 

Project Risk 

M a n a g e m e n t Services 

Project De l ivery and C o m p l e t i o n 

Minister's Program 

Planning 

People M a n a g e m e n t 

Pol icy 

Procurement 

Informat ion M a n a g e m e n t 

and T e c h n o l o g y 

118 

Achieved budget requirements as set out in the 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 Statement o f 

Financial Performance. An operating surplus o f $ 2 9 . 2 M and a total 

distribution to Government o f $ I 6 3 . 8 M under the Financial Distr ibution 

Pol icy exceeded budget. Reduct ion in operating costs by 5 .5%. 

Memorandums o f Understanding were established with 11 major clients and 

draft Memorandums o f Understanding were established with 6 other clients. 

Corporate Guarantee o f Service developed. 

All major building projects completed on budget. 

All majot engineering works completed o n budget. 

3 Partnering projects were commenced, bringing the total number o f 

partnering projects trialed to 2 9 . 

1 9 7 major building projects were completed. 2 6 water and sewerage schemes 

were completed. 2 5 6 minor building projects were completed. 

All targets achieved. Major works included: Marcus Clarke Building, facade 

repair; Australian Museum, W i l l i a m Street wings repair; Government House , 

northern elevations and porte cochere repair; former M u s e u m o f Appl ied Arts 

and Science building, facade repair. 

A major innovation was the commencement o f the 'Make-Safe' program to 

inspect and remove loose stone from public buildings. 

Strategic Plan "Vis ion 2 0 0 1 " released and Corporate Plan developed. 

Regular visits to regional staff. 

T h e Enterprise Agreement with the construction wages staff i s operating 

successfully. W h o l e o f Department enterprise agreement registered in March 

1 9 9 6 . Presentations to staff made on a regular basis. Affirmative action 

program developed. Corporate Best Practice program established. Induction 

and Orientation program established. Staff "Recognit ion ot Excellence 

Program" established. 

Code o f Practice. Code o f Tendering and Implementation Guidel ines for the 

construcrion industry developed. A Best Practice Contractor Accreditation 

Scheme developed. 

$ 1 , 2 7 5 billion worth o f purchases by clients through goods and services 

contracts. 

Information Management and Techno logy Blueprint being developed. 

Established C E O messaging service. Deve loped D P W S h o m e page o n Internet 

and commenced placement o f tender infonnation. 
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PERFORMANCE SUMMARIES SES OFFICERS GRADE 5 AND ABOVE 

NAME 

POSITION 

PERIOD IN T H E POSITION 

RESULTS 

F i n a n c i a l P e r f o r m a n c e a n d 
C o m m e r c i a l P r a c t i c e 

Marketing Strategy 

International 

Qualiry Management 

People Management 

Ronald E A G L E 

Direcror, Commercial Business Divis ion SES Band 3 , U p p e r 

From 1 July 1 9 9 5 , as Acring Director and confirmed in the posit ion 

from i April 1 9 9 6 

All targets achieved. Better than budgeted net profit achieved. 

Marketing and sales opportunities identified and new services offered in 

purchasing and property. 

Continued structured quarterly presentations to client groups. 

Advisorj- Boards formed lor Government Prinring Service and 

Government Informarion Service, 

Continued to develop relationships with key participants and to expand 

the level of intemational project work. 

A Memorandum o f Understanding has been signed with the Department 

o f Public Works , South Africa. 

State Projects retains full compliance with A S 3 9 0 1 / I S O 9 0 0 I , also n o w 

achieved by Government Printing Service. T Q M and continuous 

Lniprovement programs continue to be embraced. 

Continued specific Training programs for young staff and others with 

leadership potential and supported corporate-wide expansion. 

Training Courses instigated for purchasing officers. 
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PERFORMANCE SUMMARIES SES OFFICERS GRADE 5 AND ABOVE 

NAME 

POSITION 

PERIOD IN T H E POSITION 

RESULTS 

Commercial Practices 

CEent Satisfaction 

People Management 

Policy Development and 
Implementation 

Public Sector Capital Program 

Industry Reform 

Alan G R I F F I N 

Director, Policy SES Band 3 , Lower 

From I July 1 9 9 5 as Acting Director and confirmed m the posit ion from 13 

December 1 9 9 5 

All business and finance targets achieved. T h e division's net contribution 

exceeded the budget target. 

Database updated for government and industry clients prior to the issue o f t h e 

revised Code o f Practice for the Construction Industry. Positive feedback 

received for the division's training program for project management, contract 

administration, quality assurance, total asset management and occupational 

health safety & rehabilitation. 

Provided risk management and dispute resolution processes for chent 

construction contracts through ongoing management o f tendeting and 

contractor/consultant qualification systems and negotiation and settlement o f 

contractual claims. 

Staff focus groups have been used to identify and address human resource, 

staff development and business issues as part o f the Business Planning process. 

Staff performance targets have been linked with Corporate and Divis ional 

business planning actions. 

Enhanced staff communicat ion processes established including month ly 

divisional presentations and branch meetings. 

Confinued to manage the interface between government and key stakeholders 

in the construction industry and this is bemg expanded to include goods and 

services. Chair o f State Contracts Control Board. 

Review o f whole o f government purchasing pol icy commenced. 

Provision o f leadership in the application o f the Government's industry 

relations strategies to the construction industry. 

Upgrade o f Tota l Asset Management Manual commenced. 

Cont inued implementation o f the Government's O H S & R guidelines and 

development o f environmental policies for government projects. 

Executive support and chair o f the Construcrion Policy Steering Commit tee . 

Facilitated workshops to produce a strategic vision for a construction industry 

that can efficiently service a forecast increased workload. 

A revised C o d e o f Practice and Code o f Tendering for the construction 

industry was developed. 

T h e promot ion o f trialing o f innovative contracting methods was continued 

on public sector projects. 

Closer links developed with all construction agencies in information sharing. 

Deve loped economic forecasting mode l for construction industry'. 
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POSITION 

PERIOD IN POSITION 

RESULTS 

Policy advice and standards 

Impartial adviser 

APPENDIX H 

PERFORMANCE SUMMARIES SES OFFICERS GRADE 5 AND ABOVE 

Michael H A N N O N 

Director Operations Divis ion SES Band 3 . Lower 

1 July 1 9 9 5 to 3 0 June 1 9 9 6 as D i r e a o r Operations, Acting Director Client 

Service Divis ion, performing dual role from 2 0 March 1 9 9 6 . 

Implementarion o f the Government's Code o f Pracrice, Code o f Tendering 

and Occupational Health Safety and Rehabilitation Management Systems 

Guidelines. 

Provision of Total Asset Management advice and services to goveniment 

Information Technology 

and Telecomini in icat ions 

Pacesetter in Envirormiental 

Design 

Program delivery 

and management 

Quality Assured Services 

Risk Management 

Resource Management 

Commercial Practices 

Client Service and 

Market Development 

Emergency Services Management 

Updated Operations Divis ion Information Management Strategic Plan 1 9 9 5 -

1998 . Implemented a W i n d o w s Based. Business Information System (BIS) 

providing Managers with a decision making tool. 

Fostered an environmentally aware workplace through adherence to "green" 

operating procedures such as waste recycling, waste minimisation. Increased 

awareness and commitment amongst staff o f environmental issues . 

.Achieved 9 5 % target for client program in cyclic maintenance ( $ ] 0 5 M ) and 

minor capital ( $ 6 7 M ) . Led the development o f a new contracting concept for 

the delivery o f $ 1 0 0 M school maintenance program in conjunction with the 

Department oi School Education. 

Divisional Q A System upgraded from A S 3 9 I 0 to A S 9 0 0 1 . Twenty five 

regional and project offices have achieved full cenification. 

Project Risk Management ( P R M ) services provided t o clients. Client surveys 

undertaken to determine clients level o f satisfaction with P R M services 

provided. 

O p e n communications between staff and management on issues effecting the 

D i v i s i o n s operations. Staff survey results indicated improved communicat ion 

and te.imwork. 

Services provided at competitive prices through effective use o f available 

resources and technology. 

W o r k s h o p s held with other Divis ions to identify opportunit ies to promote the 

total range of services provided by D P W S - "one stop shop" delivery o f 

services concept. 

Natural Disaster Rel ie f Program provided financial assistance to 5 4 councils as 

a result of declared natural disasters. Financial assistance exceeded $ 1 . 7 3 M . 
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BOARDS AND COMMITTEES WITH DEPARTMENTAL REPRESENTATION 

S T A T U T O R Y B O A R D S A N D C O M M I T T E E S 

• Archives Author i ty o f N S W (Archives Act, I 9 6 0 ) 

J D Leek, Director, Infonnat ion T e c h n o l o g y and 

Telecommunicat ions 

• Austral ian Mar ine Industries and Finances C o u n c i l 

R ] Eagle, Director, Commercial Business Divis ion 

• Board o f Architects (Architects Act. I 9 2 I ) 

C Johnson. Government Architect 

C Ts iou los . Manager, Portfolio Strategies, Client 

Service Div is ion 

• Board o f Direc tors for Major M a i l Users 

J Carnegie, General Manager, State Mai l Service 

• Central Sydney Planning C o m m i t t e e ( S y d n e y City 

C o i m c i l ) 

C Johnson, Government Architect 

• Cobar W a t e r Board 

(Water Supply Authorities Act. 1 9 8 9 ) 

D Barrett, Regional Manager, M e t N o r t h W e s t 

Region (President) 

• Cons truc t ion Pol icy Steer ing C o m m i t t e e 

A Griffin, Director, Policy Div is ion 

E Smithies, D e p u t y Director, Policy Divis ion 

• D a m s Safety C o n u n i t t e c ( D a m s Safety Act, 1 9 7 8 ) 

L A M c D o n a l d , Assistant Principal Engineer, D a m s 

• Govertmient Informat ion Service M a n a g e m e n t 

Advisory Board 

R J Eagle, Director, Commercial Business Div is ion 

C Moore , General Manager, Government Information 

and Advertising 

• G o v e r n m e n t Print ing Sei^ice M a n a g e m e n t Advisory 

Board 

R J Eagle, Director, Commercial Business Division 

R Miliigan, General Manager, Government Printing 

Service 

• G o v e n m i e n t Radio N e t w o r k Joint M a n a g e m e n t 

Board 

R W Wheeler , Manager, Operations and Contracts, 

Information Techno logy and Telecommunicat ions 

Div is ion 

• Her i tage Co imci l o f N e w S o u t h W a l e s (Heritage 

Act, 1 9 7 7 ) C Johnson, Government Architect 

A Warr, Manager, Heritage Group (Alternative 

M e m b e r ) 

• M i n e s Subs idence Board 

P Carter, Manager, D a m s and Civil Engineering 

• N S W T e l e c o m m t m i c a t i o n Author i ty Board 

( T E L C O ) (Government Te lecommunicat ions Act. 

I 9 9 I ) J D Leek, Director. Information T e c h n o l o g y 

and Telecommunicat ions Divis ion 

• O l y m p i c Coordinat ion Author i ty D e s i g n R e v i e w 

Panel 

C Johnson, Government Architect 

• N a t i o n a l Publ ic W o r k s C o i m c i l 

D Persson, Director-General 

• State Contracts C o n t r o l Board 

(Pubhc Sectot Management [Stores and Services] 

Regulation 1 9 8 8 ) 

A Griffin, Director. Policy Divis ion 

B Campbell , General Manager, N S W Supply 

C Moore , General Manager, Government Information 

and Advertising ( D e p u t y M e m b e r ) 

• State Emergency M a n a g e m e n t C o m m i t t e e 

A Collins, A / D i r e c t o r . Operations Divis ion, 

J Carnegie, General Manager, State Mail Service 

R W Wheeler , Manager, Operations and Contracts, 

Information Techno logy and Te lecommimicat ions 

Divis ion 

" Survey and M a p p i n g Advisory C o m m i t t e e 

G V Smith, Principal Surveyor 

• Sydney Cove R e d e v e l o p m e n t Author i ty 

(Sydney Cove Redeve lopment Aurhoriry Act, 1 9 6 8 ) 

C Johnson, Government Architect 
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I N T E R - D E P A R T M E N T A L C O M M I T T E E S A N D P R O F E S S I O N A L B O D I E S 

Government Energy Management Work ing Group Accessible Buildings Steering Committee (Ageing & 

Disability Deparrment) 

Advisory Committee to the Fire Code Reform 

Committee 

Austcl Technical Committees - Work ing Groups 

Producmg Technical Standards 

Australia Day Decorations Committee 

Australian Government Printers Association 

Australian Institute o f Valuers and Land Economists 

Professional Board 

Building and Construction Council 

Building Energy Code o f Australia Advisory Panel 

Building Regulations Advisory Committee 

Building Science Forum of Australia 

Charmichael Committee on Vocational Training and 

Competency Achievements in Industry 

Chief Executive Officers Conference on C o m m o n 

Service Provision 

Commonweal th State Consultative Committee -

Telecommunicat ions 

Construction Industry Consultation Committee 

C o n t r a a Management Committee 

Department o f School Education Data Capture Steering 

Committee 

Department ot School Education Facilities Standards 

Committee 

Department o f School Educat ion /Department ot 

Public W o r k s and Services Steering Coirunittec 

D I S P L A N - Disaster Planning Committee 

Facilities Management Association o f Australia, N S W 

Branch Executive Board 

Government Information Techno logy Condit ions 

( G I T I C ) Forum 

Govemmenr Selected Applications Systems Contracr 

Management Committee 

Health Peak Purchasing Council 

Hunrer Emergency Management Committee 

Informarion Industries Advisory Board 

Institute ot Value Management, Australia Inc. 

South W e s t Tablelands Water Supply Advisory 

Commit tee 

Srandards Australia Committee I T / 1 6 - Private 

Telecommunicat ions Networking 

Standards Australia Energy Saving Lighting Commirree 

( S A A L G I / 6 ) 

Standards Australia Energy Auditing Committee 

( S A A E N / I ) 

Supplier Deve lopment Committee for N S W 

T r e a s u r ) / D P W S Asset Management Steering 

Committee 

W o r k C o v e r Cons tmct ion Industry Consultative 

Commit tee 

Lake Macquarie Council Technical Advisory Panel 

M i d North Coast District Emergency Management 

Committee 

Mid N o r t h Coast District Engineering Functional Area 

Sub-Committee 

National Centre for Value Managemenr 

National Communicat ions and Information Systems 

Advisory Group (Emergency Management Australia) 

National Printing Industry Training Council (Australia) 
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BOARDS AND COMMITTEES WITH DEPARTMENTAL REPRESENTATION 

I N T E R - D E P A R T M E N T A L C O M M I T T E E S A N D P R O F E S S I O N A L B O D I E S ( C o n t i n u e s ) 

Nat ional Printing Training Council ( N S W Div i s ion) 

Nat ional Public W o r k s Council - Asset Services 

Steering Group 

Nat ional Public W o r k s Council - Strategy Group 

Nat ional Supply Group 

Northern Rivers Engineering Function Area S u b -

Committee 

Northern Rivers District Emergency Management 

Commit tee 

N S W Health Heritage Steering Committee ( N S W 

Health Department) 

N S W Health Industry Forum 

N S W Government T A M Steering Conmiit tee 

N S W Recycled Water Coordination Commit tee 

N S W T A F E C o m m i s s i o n / D e p a r t m e n t o f Public 

W o r k s and Services Steering Committee 

O l y m p i c Security W o r k i n g Committee 

Communicat ions 

Property Council o f Australia, N S W Research 

Committee 

Rad io Advisory Committee 

Radio Consultative Council 

South W e s t Tablelands Water Supply Management 

Board 
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OVERSEAS VISITS 

During 1 9 9 5 / 9 6 , a number o f officers made overseas 

visits. T h e majority o f visits was to represent the 

mterests ot the Department's clients. Other visits were 

made to attend major intemational conferences and 

seminars to present papers demonstrating the skills base 

and the level o f leadership achieved by the organisation. 

1.0 VISITS AT COST TO THE DEPARTMENT 

I. I Attendance at International Conferences , 

Seminars and presentat ion o f papers etc. 

A number ot intemational conferences were held in the 

Uni ted States during the year and D i c k Persson, 

Direcror-General, and John Leek, then acting Direcror, 

Intormation Technology and Telecommunicat ion, 

attended the Second Intemational Summit on Services 

to the Citizen in Denver. Robert F u m e l l attended the 

6th W o r l d Elecrronic Commerce Users Congre.ss in San 

Anton io and W i l l i e van den Berg, T e a m Leader, State 

Projects, travelled to co-present a paper on the 

implementation o f Picture Archival and 

Cotnmunication Systems at the Sociery tor Computer 

Aided Radiology symposium in Denver. M i k e Cush, 

Manager. Industry Quality, attended an Inremational 

Partnering Conference in Texas. 

Carl Ginger, Director, Intemational Business, 

represented the Director-General at a seminar on "Re-

engineering Public W o r k s in the 21st Century" 

sponsored by the Malaysian Department o f Public 

Works , 

Chris Johnson, Govemmenr Architect, travelled to 

Indonesia to attend the intemational seminar on Urban 

Planning and Design for Sustainable Deve lopment in 

Indonesia as well as to hold discussions with Indonesian 

government otficials regarding the establishment o f a 

"heritage base " in Bandung. 

John Anderson, then acting Water and Environmental 

Service Unit , was invited ro artend the 2nd 

Intemational Symposium on Waste Water Reclamation 

and Reuse in Greece, Russe l l Thur l ing , Technical 

Specialist, State Projects, attended the W o r l d 

Conference on Central Services in Healthcare 

(Sterilising) held in the Netherlands. 

Vis i ts to N e w Zealand included Messrs Barrie 

Burrows, Electrical Engineer and A n t h o n y Papallo. 

Technical Specialist. State Projects, to attend the 

Intemational Illuminating Engineering Society 

Conference held in Christchurch. John D i x o n , Project 

Engineer and Len M c D o n a l d , Assistant Principal 

Engineer, both trom State Projects Branch, attended the 

Australia-New Zealand Conference on Large D a m s 

Annual Conterence in Christchurch. Graham 

Trednnick , Technical Specialist. State Projects Branch, 

was invited to attend a government sponsored 

procurement issues working party meeting in Auckland. 

1.2 Strategic Al l iances 

John Anderson, acting General Manager, Warer and 

Environmental Services Unit , accompanied a joint 

multi-organisational delegation to Korea to discuss 

environmental, platming and open space issues as well as 

to pursue other departmental projects with relevant 

Korean government agencies. 

Ed Shestovsky visited Malaysia and Singapore to 

investigate the selection ot contractors and other 

procurement issues regarding the organisation's "Best 

Practice ' initiatives. 

2.0 VISITS AT NO COST TO THE DEPARTMENT 

2.1 Expert advice o n behal f o f c l ients 

O n two occasions Greg W a r d , Project Deve lopment 

Manager, Operations Divis ion, travelled to the Uni ted 

States, on behalf ot the Department o f Correctional 

Services, to attend the American Correctional 

Association's Intemational Relations Committee 

meetings and the I 2 5 t h Congress o f Corrections. 

D o u g Anderson, then acting Manager, Portfolio 

Strategies Branch, visited the Uni ted States, Canada and 

United Kingdom to study overseas corrective service 

institutions methods regarding rhe remodelling o f 

Victorian period buddings tor m o d e m correctional 

uses. 

Phi l Carter, Manager, D a m s and Civil Branch, was 

invited by the government o f Mauritius to inspect seven 

dams and to submit a proposal for a safety analysis 

consultancy service. 
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Messrs Guy Boncardo, acting Manager Water 

Environment Infrastructure, Robert C h o n g , Manager, 

Sewage Technology , and Jae-Ryong Ryu, Deve lopment 

Manager, Sewage Techno logy , travelled to Korea to 

develop a pilot project for wastewater treatment and to 

provide specialist services in environmental management 

of waste water treatment. 

T e n visits were made to Malaysia as part of the 

Department's considtancy services to the Babagong 

D a m project in Sabah. John Y o u n g , Geologist State 

Projects, and Phi l Carter, Manager. D a m s and Civil 

Branch, made four visits each to inspect the project site 

and to provide geological and construction advice, 

Michae l Nev i l l e , Geological Engineer, Infrastnicture, 

and Peter Cloke , Hydro logy Manager, Water and 

Environmental Services, made one visit each to the dam 

project. 

Alan Butler, Director, Value Management Strategic 

Services, conducted a consultancy value management 

study on the Mass Transit Railway project in H o n g 

Kong. 

N i c k van Exter, General Manager, Education 

Development , represented Australia at the O E C D 

Program on Educational Building Steering Commit tee 

meetings conducted in France and the Uni ted Kingdom. 

T h e Department conducted a number o f consultancies 

with the Bahrain Defence Force involving separate visits 

by Messrs Barry Shara, then acting D e p u n - Manager, 

Energy Management Unit , M o h a m e d M o h i d e e n , 

Project Engineer. State Projects, and Bruce S m i t h , 

Manager. Hydrauhcs ancH Water Savings, to the Uni ted 

Arab Emirates for project work on maintenance 

management and quality audits o f energy and water. 

Barry Shara also attended a meeting with the local 

Austrade Commiss ioner ( D u b a i ) the Khalifa Commit tee 

(Abu Dhabi ) . Property Owners in Abu Dhabi and the 

Dubai Department of Hous ing , 

Messrs Alan Butler, Director, Value Management 

Strategic Services, and Chris Laird, Value Analyst, 

Va lue Management Srrategic Services, provided 

consultancy services for value management studies for 

the Wel l ing ton Regional Council and partnering 

workshops for the Golden Bay Cement Company Pty 

Ltd. 

T h e Snowy Mounta ins Engineering Corporation 

commiss ioned consultancy services tor its Lac City 

R o a d Project in N e w Guinea with Owen Ferguson, 

Concrete Quality Assurance Officer, Glebe Laboratory, 

undertaking site audits for the supply o f cement to the 

project. 

2.2 Strategic All iances 

Messrs Ron Eagle, Director, Commercial Business, Carl 

Ginger, Director. International Business and M s Linda 

Gosling, Atchitect, State Ptojects, visited South Afirica 

to funher relations with the South African Department 

o f Public W o r k s ( S A D P W ) and to complete 

negotiations on a "Partnership Agreement". That visit 

was fiinded by an AustAid grant. As part of that 

relationship, and subsequent agreement to build the 

capacity ot S A D P W in project management, a 

consultancy ser\'ice visit was made by Messrs Frank 

W i l l a n , Manager, Infrastructure, and Lee Sharma, 

Project Manager, Metropoli tan N o r t h W e s t Region . 

During the course ot that visit the officers attended a 

four day workshop investigating issues associated with 

the reorganisation of S A D P W . 

2.3 Grant Ftmds 

Regina Alfa, Assistant Architect, and Anne Warr, 

Manager, State Projecrs, travelled to Indonesia ro attend 

the international seminar o n Urban Planning and 

Design for Sustainable Deve lopment as well as to hold 

discussions with Indonesian government officials 

regarding the establishment o f a "heritage base" in 

Bandimg. 

Steve W y l l i e , Manager, Manly Hydraulics Laboratory, 

travelled ro Thailand to investigate shoreline stability of 

the Gulf of Thailand under an .AustAid grant. 

Funded by an Austaid grant John Gan visited Papua -

N e w Guinea to provide a training workshop for the 

P N G Bureau of Water Resources. 

126 

OVERSEAS VISITS 



j p " ^ ' • w i f p p - " " ^ , 

APPENDIX K 

MAJOR ASSETS 

(Other than land holdings) 

Details o f Department o f Public W o r k s and Services assets are contained in N o t e 2 3 o f the Financial Statements. 

During the year acquisitions valued at over $ 5 0 , 0 0 0 were: 

I file server $ 6 6 , 0 0 0 

1 Plotter $ 5 9 , 0 9 6 

Transoft software $ 6 5 , 5 5 0 

1 Motorola Rad io Equipment $ 1 3 3 , 3 9 9 

t, ii.ivity Rollers for Conveyor System $ 1 4 5 , 4 6 2 

l o t a l $ 4 6 9 , 5 0 7 

APPENDIX L 

DISPOSAL OF PROPERTIES 

T h e fol lowing properties, owned by the Department o f Public W o r k s and Services were so ld during the year: 

• 4 3 Brewery Street, Inverell for $ 9 8 , 0 0 0 

• 1 8 6 Glen Innes Road, Inverell for $ 8 8 , 0 0 0 

• 11 May Street. Inverell ar for $ 9 2 , 0 0 0 

• 4 0 Marsh Street, Gilgai for $ 8 3 , 0 0 0 

• Lot 3 o f f Burrows Road South, St Peters for $ 6 0 , 0 0 0 

• Lot 1 Whitbread Street. Taree for $ 9 6 , 5 0 0 . 
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APPENDIX M 

CONSUMER RESPONSE 

Summary of Compliments & Complaints Statistics 

Improving the services to our external and internal 

customers is a major corporate objective. Our business 

planning recognises that we need to understand the 

changing needs o f our customers and to provide them 

with services that are relevant. Our Coporate Best 

Practice Program 1 9 9 6 - 2 0 0 1 , launched during rhe year, 

sets about modifying our organisational culture to 

support many outcomes , one o l which is improvement 

in customer service. 

O n e o f t h e indicators in place, is to formally record and 

moni tor compliments and complaints received. T h i s is 

seen as an opportunity ro where we should focus our 

continuous improvement efforts. T h i s monitoring 

mechanism continues to be refined, to ensure that there 

is n o gap between the willingness to complain and the 

actual level o f complaints . 

D P W S formally recorded 2 5 6 external compliments 

and 8 4 external complaints during the year. In the 

previous reporting period. 141 compl iments and 8 1 

complaints were formally recorded. Complaints in our 

changing culture are seen in a positive way and will 

continue to be encouraged, so customer concerns can be 

addressed. 

T h e analysis o l complaints has highlighted deficiencies 

or scope fo t improvement to our existing systems. T h i s 

has enabled many corrective and preventative actions to 

take place. S o m e examples o f actions s temming from 

complaints include: improved checkmg of contents 

before despatching, delivery t imes adjusted to reflect 

customer needs, closer consultation with contractors o n 

aspects such as safety and site access improved printing 

instructions and certain types o f advertisement bookings 

be confirmed by telephone as well as facsimile. 

During the year, D P W S also conrinued with the 

Quality Customer Service Program that had begun in 

the previous year. O f the four projects, the Electronic 

Links with Customers and Defect Free Projects at 

Handover and Reduced Customer Error Credits were 

implemented. Our client for the Treasury Management 

Agreement Project asked we not proceed until the 

current agreement elapses. 

W h i l e not all the results are quantifiable. Phase I o f the 

Electronic Links with our Customer Project saw 

increased productivity by the sharing of information 

with our customers. O f the 3 2 9 projects completed in 

our Operarions Divis ion, 2 2 2 were reported as having 

nil defects at the practical complet ion stage. W h i l e 

complete figures are not available for all o f the previous 

year ( I 9 9 4 / I 9 9 5 ) , each six month ly period from 

1 / 1 / 9 5 to 3 0 / 6 / 9 5 has resulted in fewer projects 

being handed over with defects. As at the end o f the 

reporting period, 7 7 % o f projects were handed over 

with ml defects compared with 4 4 % at the 

corresponding period for the previous year. 
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APPENDIX N 

Major Litigation 

O n 2 August 1995 , B T Australasia P / L cortunenced 

proceedings in the Federal Court against the State o f 

N S W and Telstra Corporation Ltd. T h e Department 

o f Public W o r k s and Services has responsibility for the 

conduct o f the litigation on behalf o f the N S W 

Government. 

T h e litigation arises out o f an agreement B T Australasia 

had wirh the State Government for the design, 

implementation and operation o f a telephone and data 

nerwork for N S W government agencies. T h e 

Agreement was signed in November 1 9 9 2 with a ten 

year term, and was administered within the 

Government's then Cotrmiercial Services Group which 

in April 1 9 9 5 became part o f the new Department o f 

Public W o r k s and Services. 

In view ot B F Australasia's court action and purported 

tcnnination ot the Agreement, the Government formally 

terminated the Agreement on 10 August 1 9 9 5 . 

B T Australasia makes a number o f claims against the 

State and Telstra alleging breaches o f the Trade 

Practices .^ct and the N S W Fair Trading Act. B T 

Australasia also alleges that the State breached the 

Agreement. B T Australasia's claim for damages 

remained unquanrified as at the end o f June 1 9 9 6 . 

T h e State's defence was filed on 2 9 N o v e m b e r 1 9 9 5 

and essentially denies all B T Australasia's claims. 

O n 2 April 1 9 9 6 the Stare filed a cross-claim joining 

B T Australasia's ultimate holding company British 

Telecommunicat ions Pic, in the proceedings and in turn 

claiming damages for breach o f contract and breaches o f 

the Trade Practices Acr and Fair Trading Act. 

At the end o f June 1 9 9 6 , parties were proceeding with 

discovery and inspection o f documents . 
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Main Offices & Business A d d r e s s e s 

MAIN OFFICES & BUSINESS ADDRESSES 

HEAD OFFICE 

McKel l Building 2 - 2 4 R a w s o n Place 

Sydney N S W 2 0 0 0 

Tel: ( 0 2 ) 9 3 7 2 8 8 7 7 

Fax: ( 0 2 ) 9 3 7 2 7 0 7 0 

Internet address: 

ht tp: /www.dpws.nsw.gov .au 

METROPOLITAN REGIONAL OFFICES 

Metnorthwest Region 

2 3 6 R i c h m o n d R o a d 

D o o n s i d e N S W 2 7 6 7 

Teh ( 0 2 ) 9 6 7 2 5 1 1 1 

Fax: ( 0 2 ) 9 6 7 2 5 2 5 5 

Metsouth Region 

Level 7 Civic T o w e r 

6 6 - 7 2 Richard Road 

Bankstown N S W 2 2 0 0 

Tel: ( 0 2 ) 9 7 9 5 0 7 7 7 

Fax: ( 0 2 ) 9 7 9 5 0 8 8 8 

COUNTRY REGIONAL OFFICES 

Hunter-New England Region 

1 1 7 Bull Street Tel : ( 0 4 9 ) 2 6 9 9 2 0 

Newcasde West N S W 2 3 0 2 Fax: ( 0 4 9 ) 2 6 9 9 5 4 

South Coast Region 

8 4 Crown Street 

W o l l o n g o n g N S W 2 5 0 0 

Tel: ( 0 4 2 ) 2 6 8 1 1 

Fax: ( 0 4 2 ) 2 6 8 5 3 4 

North Coast Region 

Dalley Street 

Lismore N S W 2 4 8 0 

Tel: ( 0 6 6 ) 2 0 1 6 0 0 

Fax: ( 0 6 6 ) 2 0 1 6 6 6 

Riverina/Western Region 

1 4 0 Wil l iam Street T e h ( 0 6 3 ) 3 3 4 2 9 0 

Bathurst N S W 2 7 9 5 Fax: ( 0 6 3 ) 3 3 4 2 7 9 

BUSINESS UNIT ADDRESSES 

NSW Supply Service 

Level 9 , 1 Francis Street 

Darlmghuist N S W 2 0 1 0 

State Fleet Services 

Level 13, I Francis Street 

Darlinghurst N S W 2 0 1 0 

Teh ( 0 2 ) 9 3 3 9 7 1 1 1 

Fax: ( 0 2 ) 9 3 3 9 7 5 8 3 

Tel: ( 0 2 ) 9 3 3 9 7 4 2 6 

Fax; ( 0 2 ) 9 3 3 9 7 1 8 6 

Government Information Service 

Unit 10, Block V 

3 9 1 Park Road 

Regents Padi N S W 2 1 4 3 

Q Stores 

4 - 6 Hundey Street 

Alexandria N S W 2 0 1 5 

Tel: ( 0 2 ) 9 7 5 2 I I I I 

Fax: ( 0 2 ) 9 7 4 3 7 1 2 4 

Tel: ( 0 2 ) 9 3 1 8 7 8 8 8 

Fax: ( 0 2 ) 9 3 1 8 7 8 8 6 

Informotion Technology Service 

Level 10, 1 Franas Street Teh ( 0 2 ) 9 3 3 9 7 6 7 5 

Darlmghurst N S W 2 0 1 0 Fax: ( 0 2 ) 9 3 3 2 2 6 4 0 

Government Advertising Agency 

Level I , I Francis Street 

Darlmghurst N S W 2 0 1 0 

Tel: ( 0 2 ) 9 3 3 9 7 5 3 9 

Fax: ( 0 2 ) 9 3 3 9 7 1 7 0 

Government Printing Service 

Units 4 & 5. Block V 

391 Park Road 

Regents Park N S W 2 1 4 3 

State Moil Service 

15 Everley Road 

Ch<-ster Hill K S W 2 1 6 2 

Tel: ( 0 2 ) 9 7 4 3 8 7 7 7 

Fax: ( 0 2 ) 9 7 4 3 8 5 8 8 

Tel: ( 0 2 ) 9 7 5 2 1 7 0 0 

Fax: ( 0 2 ) 9 7 4 3 8 7 4 6 
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